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Note: Council will recess for lunch between 12 noon and 1 :00 p.m. 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. DISCLOSURES OF DIRECT OR INDIRECT PECUNIARY INTEREST 

3. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL MEETINGS 

(a) May 9,2012 

(b) May 16, 2012 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

5. PRESENTATIONS 

(a) MiWay Student Ambassador 

Geoff Marinoff, Director of Transit will provide an overview of the MiWay 
Student Ambassador program and then present the award to the 2012 
MiWay winners Umar Bhutta and Syed Kamran from Gordon Graydon 
Secondary School. 

6. DEPUTATIONS 

(a) May is Museums Month 

Fred Durdan, Chair of Friends of the Museums of Mississauga will provide 
un update to Council on their annual report and the activities for May 
during Museums Month. 

(b) Coalition for Persons with Disabilities 

Allison Jones, Project Coordinator for Coalition for Persons with 
Disabilities and students will present to Council an overview of the 
organization with a focus on youth, disabilities and employment. 

(c) May is Melanoma Awareness Month 

Annette Cyr, Chair of Melanoma Network of Canada will present to 
Council the regulation of indoor tanning facilities. 

Notice of Motion 
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(d) Our Future Mississauga Progress Report 

Gary Kent, Director of City Strategy and Innovation, Frank Giannone, Boyd 
Upper, Bill Checkly and Dorothy Tomiuk members of the Community 
Advisory Group will provide an overview of the Our Future Mississauga 
Progress Report. 

Corporate Report R-3 

(e) Mississauga Summer Series 

Melissa Agius, Manager of Celebration Square and Frank Giannone, Chair 
of Mississauga Celebration Square Events Committee will provide Council 
with an update on Mississauga Summer Series. 

(f) Sheridan College Phase II 

Dr. Jeff Zadbudsky, President of Sheridan College will provide Council 
with an update on Sheridan's plans for Phase II. 

(g) Enersource Corporation - Annual report 

Craig Fleming, President and CEO and Norm Loberg Chair of Enersource 
Corporation will present to Council the annual report. 

Corporate Report R-4 

7. PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD -15 Minute Limit 
(In accordance with Section 36 of the City of Mississauga Procedure By-law 0412-2003, as 
amended, Council may grant permission to a person who is present at Council and wishes to 
address Council on a matter on the Agenda. Persons addressing Council with a question should 
limit preamble to a maximum of two statements sufficient to establish the context for the question. 
Leave must be granted by Council to deal with any matter not on the Agenda.) 

8. CORPORATE REPORTS 

R-1 Report dated April 24, 2012 from the Commissioner of Planning and 
Building re: Rezoning and Draft Plan of Subdivision Applications 
to permit 22 semi-detached dwellings and preserve the existing 
heritage house and accessory structure 6671 Ninth Line east side of 
Ninth Line, south of Derry Road West Owner: Edilou Holdings Inc. & 
Cesta Developments Inc. Applicant: Weston Consulting Group Inc. 
Bill 51 Supplementary Report (Ward 10). 



Council Agenda -4- May 23,2012 

Recommendation 

That the Report dated April 24, 2012, from the Commissioner of Planning 
and Building recommending approval of the applications under Files OZ 
10/016 W10 and T-M10002 W10, Edilou Holdings Inc. & Cesta 
Developments Inc., 6671 Ninth Line, east side of Ninth Line, south of 
Derry Road West., be adopted in accordance with the following: 
1. That notwithstanding that subsequent to the public meeting, 

changes to the applications have been proposed, Council considers 
that the changes do not require further notice and, therefore, 
pursuant to the provisions of subsection 34(17) of the Planning Act, 

R.S.O. 1990, c.P.13, as amended, any R.S.O. 1990, c.P.13, as 
amended, any further notice regarding the proposed amendment is 
hereby waived. 

2. That the application to change the Zoning from"R1" (Detached 
Dwellings) to"R1-Exception" (Detached Dwellings), "RM2" (Semi­
Detached Dwellings), and "RM2-Exception" (Semi-Detached 
Dwellings) and to approve a Draft Plan of Subdivision to permit 22 
semi-detached dwellings and preserve the existing heritage house 
and accessory structure in accordance with the proposed zoning 
standards described in Attachment S-5, attached to the report dated 
April 24, 2012, from the Commissioner of Planning and Building, be 
approved subject to the following conditions: 

(a) That the draft plan of subdivision be approved. 

(b) That the applicant agree to satisfy all the requirements of 
the City and any other official agency concerned with the 
development. 

(c) That the school accommodation condition as outlined in 
City of Mississauga Council Resolution 152-98 requiring 
that satisfactory arrangements regarding the adequate 
provision and distribution of educational facilities have been 
made between the developer/applicant and the School 
Boards not apply to the subject lands. 
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(d) That in accordance with Council Resolution 160-91, a 
minimum of three car spaces per dwelling, including those 

in a garage, be required on-site and a minimum of 0.25 on­
street visitor parking spaces per dwelling be required for 
dwellings on lots less than 12 m (39.4 ft.) of frontage for the 

subject development. 

3. That the Plan of Subdivision under file T -M 1 0002 W1 0, be 

recommended for approval subject to the conditions contained in 
Appendix S-4, attached to the report dated April 24, 2012, from the 
Commissioner of Planning and Building. 

4. That the decision of Council for approval of the rezoning application 
be considered null and void, and a new development application be 
required unless a zoning by-law is passed within 36 months of the 
Council decision. 

5. That the Site Plan Control By-law (By-law No. 0293-2006), as 
amended, be amended to include the lands with the "R1-Exception" 
(Detached Dwellings) and "RM2-Exception" (Semi-Detached 
Dwellings) zones to ensure compatibility with, and preserve, the 
existing heritage house and accessory structure. 

6. That a by-law be enacted to authorize the Commissioner of 
Transportation and Works and the City Clerk to execute and affix 
the Corporate Seal to the Permission to Enter Agreement between 
Edilou Holdings Inc., Sierra Lane and The Corporation of the City of 
Mississauga to the satisfaction of the City Solicitor. 

Motion 

R-2 Report dated April 30, 2012 from the Commissioner of Planning and 
Building re: Official Plan Amendment, Rezoning and Draft Plan of 

Subdivision Applications To permit 104 townhouse dwellings on a 
CEC private road 5881 Creditview Road East side of Creditview Road, 
south of Britannia Road West Owner/Applicant: National Homes 
(Creditview) Inc. Bill 51 Supplementary Report (Ward 6). 
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Recommendation 

That the Report dated April 30, 2012, from the Commissioner of Planning 
and Building recommending approval of the applications under Files OZ 
11/007 W6 and T-M11004 W6, National Homes (Creditview) Inc., 5881 
Creditview Road, east side of Creditview Road, south of Britannia Road 
West, be adopted in accordance with the following: 

1. That notwithstanding that subsequent to the public meeting, changes 
to the applications have been proposed, Council considers that the 
changes do not require further notice and, therefore, pursuant to the 
provisions of subsection 34(17) of the Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, 
c.P.13, as amended, any further notice regarding the proposed 
amendment is hereby waived. 

2. That the application to amend Mississauga Plan from "Residential Low 
Density II" to "Residential Medium Density I" to permit 104 townhouse 
dwellings on a CEC private road, be approved. 

3. That the application to change the Zoning from "RM2" (Semi-Detached 
Dwellings) to "RM6-Exception" (Townhouse Dwellings on a CEC -
Private Road) to permit 104 townhouse dwellings on a CEC private 
road in accordance with the proposed zoning standards described in 
the Supplementary Report dated April 30, 2011, be approved subject 
to the following conditions: 

(a) That the draft plan of subdivision be approved. 

(b) That the applicant agree to satisfy all the requirements of the 
City and any other official agency concerned with the 
development. 

(c) In accordance with Council Resolution 152-98: 

"Prior to final approval, the City of Mississauga shall be advised 
by the Peel District School Board that satisfactory arrangements 
regarding the adequate provision and distribution of educational 
facilities have been made between the developer/applicant and 
the Peel District School Board for this plan." 
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"That the school accommodation condition as outlined in City of 
Mississauga Council Resolution 152-98, requiring that 
satisfactory arrangements regarding the adequate provision and 
distribution of educational facilities have been made between 
the developer/applicant and the Dufferin-Peel Catholic District 
School Board, not apply to the subject lands." 

4. That the Plan of Subdivision under file T-M11004 W6, be 
recommended for approval subject to the conditions contained in 
Appendix S-7, attached to the report dated April 30, 2012, from the 
Commissioner of Planning and Building: 

5. That the decision of Council for approval of the rezoning application be 
considered null and void, and a new development application be 
required unless a zoning by-law is passed within 36 months of the 
Council decision. 

6. That the Region of Peel be requested to make appropriate 
modifications to the new Mississauga Official Plan through the 
Regional approval process to redesignate the lands from "Residential 
Low Density II" to "Residential Medium Density I". 

Motion 

R-3 Report dated May 9, 2012 from the City Manager and Chief 
Administrative Officer re: Our Future Mississauga 2011 Progress 
Report. 

Recommendation 

That the report titled "Our Future Mississauga 2011 Progress Reporf', 
dated May 9, 2011 from the City Manager and Chief Administrative Officer 
be received for information. 

Motion 
Deputation (e) 

R-4 Report dated May 16, 2012, from the City Solicitor re: Enersource 
Corporation - Unanimous Shareholder Resolution in lieu of an 
annual general meeting. 
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Recommendation 

1. That City Council authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to execute 
Resolutions of the shareholders of Enersource Corporation 
("Enersource") for the purpose of accepting the audited 
consolidated financial statements of Enersource for the fiscal year 
ended December 31, 2011, confirming the election of the Directors 
of Enersource in accordance with the Amended and Restated 
Shareholders' Agreement, and appointing KPMG LLP as the auditor 
for Enersource; 

2. That City Council select a representative City nominated Director to 
serve on the Nominating Committee of the Enersource Board of 
Directors once the Amended and Restated Shareholders' 
Agreement is in effect, such representative being a then current 
Director of Enersource who does not need to be an independent 
Director; 

3. That City Council authorize a change to the effective date of the 
Amended and Restated Shareholders' Agreement to June 1, 2012 
from May 1,2012 

Motion 

9. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

(a) Audit Committee Report 2-2012 dated May 7,2012 

Motion 

(b) Planning and Development Committee Report 8 -2012 dated May 14, 
2012. 

Note: This report was not available for issuance with the agenda and 
will be disturbed prior to the meeting. 

Motion 

(c) General Committee Report 10-2012 dated May 16, 2012. 

Motion 
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(c) Public Meeting extracts from the Planning & Development Committee 
meeting dated May 14, 2012: 

(i) Proposed Mississauga Official Plan and Zoning By-law Respecting 
Crematoriums 
File: CD.02.CRE 

(ii) Information Report - Rezoning Application - To permit a Motor 
Vehicle Repair Facility - Restricted, 2795 Argentia Road, north side 
of Argentia Road, east of Winston Churchill Boulevard Owner: OPB 
Realty Inc. Applicant: JKO Planning Services Inc. (Jim 
Kostopoulos) Bill 51 (Ward 5) 
File: OZ 12/001 W9 

(iii) Re-zoning Application - To permit a two storey office and medical 
office building, 306 Queen Street South, west side of Queen Street 
South, south of Princess Street Owner: Frank Gusic Applicant: 
Zelinka Priamo Ltd. Bill 51 (Ward 11) 
File: OZ 101013 W11 

Note: The extracts were not available for issuance with the agenda 
and will be disturbed prior to the meeting. 

To be received 

10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

11. PETITIONS 

12. CORRESPONDENCE 

(a) Information Items: 1-1-1-5 

(b) Direction Item 

D1- Letter dated May 14, 2012, from Adam Clidero requesting a Special 
Occasion Permit (SOP) for the Port Credit Electronic Music 
Fesitival. 

Motion 
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13. MOTIONS 

(a) To approve recommendations from the following Committee Reports: 

(i) Recommendations AC-0004-2012 to AC-0011-2012 inclusive 
contained in the Audit Committee Report 2-2012 dated May 7, 
2012. 

(ii) Recommendations contained in the Planning and Development 
Committee Report 8-2012 dated May 14, 2012. 

Note: This report was not available for issuance with the 
agenda and will be disturbed prior to the meeting. 

(iii) Recommendations GC-0368-2012 to GC-0396-2012 inclusive 
contained in the General Committee Report 10-2012 dated May 16, 
2012. 

(b) To close to the public a portion of the Council meeting to be held on May 
23,2012, to deal with various matters. (See Item 18 Closed Session). 

(c) To adopt the recommendations in the applications under Files OZ 101016 
W10 and T-M10002 W10, Edilou Holdings Inc. & Cesta Developments 
Inc., 6671 Ninth Line, east side of Ninth Line, south of Derry Road West. 

Corporate Report R-1 

(d) To adopt the applications under Files OZ 11/007 W6 and T-M11004 W6, 
National Homes (Creditview) Inc., 5881 Creditview Road, east side of 
Creditview Road, south of Britannia Road West. 

Corporate Report R-2 

(f) To receive for information the report titled "Our Future Mississauga 2011 
Progress Report", dated May 9, 2011 from the City Manager and Chief 
Administrative Officer. 

Corporate Report R-3 
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(g) To authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to execute Resolutions of the 
shareholders of Enersource Corporation ("Enersource") for the purpose of 
accepting the audited consolidated financial statements of Enersource for 
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011, confirming the election of the 
Directors of Enersource in accordance with the Amended and Restated 
Shareholders' Agreement, and appointing KPMG llP as the auditor for 
Enersource. 

Corporate Report R-4 

(h) To correct an administrative error in GC-0106-2012 and the Council 
minutes for March 7, 2012. 

14. BY-LAWS 

B-1 A by-law to appoint members to the City of Mississauga's Committee of 
Revision, to set an honorarium for the Committee of Revision, and to 
repeal By-law 0084-2007 

B-2 A by-law to levy business improvement area charges pursuant to Section 
208 of the Municipal Act, 2001 S.O. 2001, c.25, as amended, for the 2012 
taxation year. 

B-3 A by-law to establish the tax ratios and to levy the residential, commercial, 
industrial, multi-residential, pipeline, farmland and managed forest taxes 
for the 2012. 

B-4 A by-law to provide for the collection of the final tax levies for the year 
2012. 

B-5 A by-law to authorize the payment of funds in relation to the Bus Rapid 
Transit Project to Her Majesty the Queen in Right of Ontario as 
represented by the Minister of Energy and Infrastructure (OllC) for the 
transfer of a permanent easement from the OllC to Enersource Hydro 
Mississauga Inc. 

B-6 A by-law to authorize the execution of a Municipal Statement to Schedule 
"G" to the Declaration for a Phased Condominium Corporation for Draft 
Plan of Phased Condominium CDM.12.005, Phase 2, located at 5972 
Turney Drive and 2288 Britannia Road West, Mississauga, Ontario. (Ward 
11) 

GC-0375-2012/May 16, 2012 
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B-7 A by-law to amend By-law 555-2000, as amended, being the Traffic By­
law to delete Schedule 10 through highways White Clover Way and 
Schedule 18 maximum speed limit on Miller's Grove and by implementing 
Schedule 10 through highways on White Clover Way and Schedule 11 
stop signs on White Clover Way and Schedule 18 maximum speed on 
Miller's Grove. (Wards 6 and 9) 

GC-0369-2012 and GC-0372-2012/May 16, 2012 

B-8 A by-law to temporarily close a public highway a portion of Donnelly Drive 
at Mary Fix Creek from 7:00 a.m. Tuesday July 3, 2012 to 7:00 p.m. Friday 
July 20,2012. (Ward 1) 

GC-0373-2012/May 16, 2012 

15. OTHER BUSINESS 

16. INQUIRIES 

17. NOTICE OF MOTION 

(a) To direct Compliance and Enforcement office to consult with all 
stakeholders affected by the Business Licensing By-law to prohibit minors 
from using indoor tanning beds or equipment. 

Motion 

18. CLOSED SESSION 

(a) Pursuant to the Municipal Act, Section 239. (2) 

(i) Litigation or potential litigation, including matters before 
administrative tribunals, affecting the municipality or local board re: 
Committee of Adjustment Appeal "A" 075/12 - Venoos Ighani-
5396 Flatford Road - Ward 6 

(ii) Litigation or potential litigation, including matters before 
administrative tribunals, affecting the municipality or local board re: 
Ontario Municipal Board Appeals to Peel Region Official Plan 
Amendment No. 24 - Proposed Settlement with North West 
Brampton Landowners Group; Proposed Settlement with 
Brampton Brick Limited. 
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(iii) The security of the property of the municipality or local board re: 
Final Audit Report: Community Services Department, 
Recreation Division - Mississauga Spectator Arena Complex 
(Hershey Centre) Management Agreement Audit - Phase I 

19. CONFIRMATORY BY-LAW 

A by-law to confirm the proceedings of the Council of The Corporation of the City 
of Mississauga at its meeting held on May 23, 2012. 

20. ADJOURNMENT 
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Commissioner of Planning and Building 

Rezoning and Draft Plan of Subdivision Applications 
To permit 22 semi-detached dwellings and preserve the existing 
heritage house and accessory structure 

6671 Ninth Line 
East side of Ninth Line, south of Derry Road West 
Owner: Edilou Holdings Inc. & Cesta Developments Inc. 
Applicant: Weston Consulting Group Inc. 
BillS1 . 

Supplementary Report Ward 10 

RECOMMENDATION: That the Report dated April 24, 2012, from the Commissioner of 

Planning and Building recommending approval of the applications 
under Files OZ 10/016 WIO and T-MI0002 WIO, Edilou Holdings 

Inc. & Cesta Developments Inc., 6671 Ninth Line, east side of 

Ninth Line, south of Derry Road West, be adopted in accordance 

with the following: 

I. That notwithstanding that subsequent to the public meeting, 

changes to the applications have been proposed, Council 

considers that the changes do not require further notice <lnd, 
therefore, pursuant to the provisions of subsection 34(17) of 

the Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, c.P.13, as amended, any 

R-l 
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Files: OZ 10/016 WIO 
T-MI0002 WIO 

April 24, 2012 

further notice regarding the proposed amendment is hereby 

waived. 

2. That the application to change the Zoning from "RI" 

(Detached Dwellings) to "Rl-Exception" (Detached 

Dwellings), "RM2" (Semi-Detached Dwellings) and "RM2-
Exception" (Semi-Detached Dwellings) and to approve a 

Draft Plan of Subdivision to permit 22 semi -detached 

dwellings and preserve the existing heritage house and 

accessory structure in accordance with the proposed zoning 

standards described in Attachment S-5, attached to the report 

dated April 24, 2012, from the Commissioner of Planning and 
Building, be approved subject to the following conditions: 

(a) That the draft plan of subdivision be approved. 

(b) That the applicant agree to satisfy all the requirements of 

the City and any other official agency concerned with the 

development. 

(c) That the school accommodation condition as outlined in 

City of Mississauga Council Resolution 152-98 requiring 

that satisfactory arrangements regarding the adequate 

provision and distribution of educational facilities have 

been made between the developer/applicant and the 
School Boards not apply to the subject lands. 

(d) That in accordance with Council Resolution 160-91, a 

minimum of three car spaces per dwelling, including 
those in a garage, be required on-site and a minimum of 

0.25 on-street visitor parking spaces per dwelling be 

required for dwellings on lots less than 12 m (39.4 ft.) of 

frontage for the subject development. 

3. That the Plan of Subdivision under file T-MI0002 WI0, be 

recommended for approval subject to the conditions contained 

in Appendix S-4, attached to the report dated April 24, 2012, 

from the Commissioner of Planning and Building. 
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4. Thatthe decision of Council for approval of the rezoning 

application be considered null and void, and a new 

development application be required unless a zoning by-law is 

passed within 36 months of the Council decision. 

5. That the Site Plan Control By-law (By-law No. 0293-2006), 

as amended, be amended to include the lands with the "Rl­

Exception" (Detached Dwellings) and "RM2-Exception" 

(Semi-Detached Dwellings) zones to ensure compatibility 

with, and preserve, the existing heritage house and 

accessory structure. 

6. That a by-law be enacted to authorize the Commissioner of 

Transportation and Works and the City Clerk to execute and 

affix the Corporate Seal to the Permission to Enter Agreement 

between Edilou Holdings Inc., Sierra Lane and The 

Corporation of the City of Mississauga to the satisfaction of 

the City Solicitor. 

A public meeting was held by the Planning and Development 

Committee on June 27, 2011, at which time a Planning and 

Building Department Information Report (Appendix S-l) was 

presented and received for information. 

At the Public Meeting, the Planning and Development Committee 

passed Recommendation PDC-0039-2011, which was 

subsequently adopted by Council and is attached as Appendix S-2. 

Subsequent to the Public Meeting, the applicant made minor 

changes to the proposal to increase the front yard setbacks to the 

dwellings fronting Ninth Line and other minor modifications to 

some of the dwelling footprints. A revised concept plan is attached 

to the report as Appendix S-3. 

See Appendix S-l - Information Report, prepared by the Planning 

and Building Department. 

12 -leb) 
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COMMUNITY ISSUES 

Files: OZ 10/016 WI0 
T-MI0002 WI0 

April 24, 2012 

A community meeting was held by Ward 10 Councillor, 

Sue McFadden,bnMarch 2,2011. A summary of the majority of 

comments raised by the community at that meeting and the 

responses from the Planning and Building Department can be 

found in the Information Report attached to this report as 
Appendix S-I. There were no additional comments raised at the 

Public Meeting held on June 27, 2011. 

The question regarding the suitability of the site for semi-detached 

dwellings is discussed in the Planning Comments section of 

this report. 

UPDATED AGENCY AND CITY DEPARTMENT 
COMMENTS 

Site Plan Plan Control By-law 

The Site Plan Control By-law is proposed to be amended to subject 

the "RI-Exception" (Detached Dwellings) and "RM2-Exception" 

(Semi-Detached Dwellings) zones to site plan control in order to 

preserve the historic Cordingly House and one storey brick 

accessory building and ensure compatibility between the heritage 

structures and the proposed semi"detached dwellings fronting 

Ninth Line. 

Halton Region Conservation Authority 

Comments updated April 3, 2012, state that Conservation Halton 

has reviewed the revised Functional Servicing Report and has no 

objection to the approval of the zoning amendment subject to 
appropriate conditions of approval for the draft plan of subdivision. 

Community Services - Heritage Coordinator 

Comments updated January 12,2012, state that the applicant has 

increased the separation between the existing one storey brick 

accessory building and the driveway for the adjacent semi-
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Files: OZ 10/016 WIO 
T-MI0002 WIO 

Apri124,2012 

proposed to the north of the heritage structure and that the 

Community Services Department now find the proposed 

development acceptable. 

Transportation and Works Department 

Comments dated March 28, 2012 indicate that a satisfactory 

Preliminary Noise Report has been received. The report addresses 

the impacts to the proposed development from road traffic noise on 

Ninth Line/Hwy. 407 and the stationary noise associated with the 

operations of the Union Gas plant/facilities on the west side of 

Ninth Line and provides recommended mitigation measures. 

The applicant has also submitted a satisfactory Functional 

Servicing Report that outlines the means whereby the external 

lands (Lots 42-46, Plan 43M-ll 05) are proposed to be serviced 

and how the external grading and drainage works will be proposed 

on an interim basis. 

The owner has entered into a 3-party Permission to Enter 

Agreement with the City of Mississauga and Sierra Lane to obtain 

permission to enter the lands that will ultimately be owned by 

Sierra Lane (Lots 42 to 46, M-ll 05) and currently held by the 

City. The agreement allows the owner to perform the necessary 

grading and servicing work in support of their 22 semi-detached 

dwelling development and extension of Banff Court. A 

recommendation to obtain the necessary authorization for the City 

to enter in to the 3-party agreement has been included in this 

report. 

In the event that this application is approved by Council, the owner 

will be required to make satisfactory arrangements with the City 

and the Region of Peel for the dedication, design and construction 

of roads and municipal services required along Ninth Line and the 

extension of Banff Court in support of this development. 

R-ICd) 
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School Accommodation 

Files: OZ 101016 WI0 
T-MI0002 WI0 

April 24,2012 

In comments, dated March 2,2011 and May 5, 2011, the Dufferin­

Peel Catholic District School Board and the Peel District School 

Board responded that they are satisfied with the current provision 

of educational facilities for the catchment area and, as such, the 

school accommodation condition as required by City of 

Mississauga Council Resolution 152-98, pertaining to satisfactory 
arrangements regarding the adequate provision and distribution 

of educational facilities, need not be applied for this 
development application. 

Street Name Change 

The applicant has submitted a request to the City of Mississauga to 

change the name of Banff Court and its proposed extension to 

Antonio Cesta Way. The proposed name change has been 

submitted to the Region of Peel Street Names Committee for 

review. Further information has been requested by City staff to 
determine the appropriateness of the proposed change. If 

approved, the Transportation and Works Department will bring 

forward a separate report to Council addressing the proposed street 

name change at a later date. 

PLANNING COMMENTS 

Official Plan 

As noted in Appendix S-I, the subject lands are designated 

"Residential-Low Density II" and are subject to special site 

policies to protect the historic Cordingly House. The proposal is in 

conformity with the land use designation. With respect to the 
Cordingly Property, the house, along with the one storey accessory 

building to the rear, will be retained in accordance with the Special 

Site 2 policies. 

The design of the dwellings facing Ninth Line address the policies 

requiring appropriate built form, scale, streetscape, context and 

compatibility. The applicant has proposed dwellings that have a 
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heritage appearance, and although they are semi -detached, appear 

as single detached homes with one front door facing the street. 

The dwellings will be sufficiently setback from Ninth Line, 

ensuring that the Cordingly House remains the prominent 

dwelling. 

The remainder of the development completes Banff Court with lot 

sizes and frontages compatible with the surrounding 

neighbourhood. 

New Mississauga Official Plan 

Mississauga Official Plan (20 II) was adopted by City Council on 

September 29, 2010 and partially approved by the Region on 

September 22, 2011. Mississauga Official Plan (2011) has been 

appealed in its entirety; therefore, the existing Mississauga Plan 

(2003) remains in effect. While the existing Mississauga Plan 

(2003) is the plan of record against which the application is being 

reviewed, regard should also be given to the new Mississauga 

Official Plan (2011). 

As noted in the Information Report, the proposed 22 semi-detached 

dwellings conform with the land use designation contained in the 

new Mississauga Official Plan and associated policies. 

Zoning 

The proposed "RI-Exception" (Detached Dwellings), "RM2" 

(Semi-Detached Dwellings) and "RM2-Exception" (Semi­

Detached Dwellings) zoning as shown in Appendix S-5 is 

appropriate to accommodate the proposed development and will 

ensure the protection of the existing heritage structures. Since the 

Public Meeting, the proposed front yard setbacks from Ninth Line 

to the proposed dwellings have been increased from 2.0 m (6.6 ft.) 

to the "RM2" Zone standard of 4.5 m (15.0 ft.) to provide a more 

traditional setback along the street. As a result of the increased 

front yard setbacks, the proposed rear yards for each of the new 

dwellings have been reduced between 1.6 m (5.2 ft.) and 3.1 m 

(10.2 ft.). A minimum distance of 5.7 m (18.7 ft.) is proposed 

Q-\(~) 
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between a dwelling and the associated detached garage for the 

"RM2-Exception" zone. 

Green Development Initiatives 

The applicant has indicated that they will be using energy efficient 

materials in the construction of the proposed dwellings and 
providing energy star rated appliances. 

Draft Plan of Subdivision 

The proposed plan of subdivision was reviewed by City 
Departments and agencies and is acceptable subject to certain 

conditions as outlined in Appendix S-4. Since the lands are the 

subject of a Draft Plan of Subdivision under File T-MI0002 WIO, 

development will be subject to the completion of services and 

registration of the plan. Matters such as road and gutter 

construction, sidewalk design and location, and broader drainage 
and grading matters will be reviewed through the development 

engmeenng process. 

Development charges will be payable in keeping with the 

requirements of the applicable Development Charges By-law of 

the City as well as fmancial requirements of any other official 
agency concerned with the development of the lands. 

In accordance with subsection 34(17) of the Planning Act, R.S.O. 

1990, c.P. 13, as amended, Council is given authority to determine 

if further public notice is required. Since the modifications to the 

Concept Plan are minor, it is recommended that no further public 
meeting need be held regarding the proposed changes. 

The proposed rezoning and draft plan of subdivision are acceptable 

from a planning standpoint and should be approved for the 

following reasons: 

1. The proposal for 22 semi-detached dwellings and the 

preservation of the existing heritage house and accessory 

structure is in confonnity with Mississauga Plan policies 
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for the Lisgar District as willi as the new Mississauga 

Official Plan (2011). 

2. The proposal represents an appropriate infill development 

and is compatible with the surrounding land uses as it 
provides for an appropriate built form and scale to the 

surrounding residential area with appropriate setbacks to the 

surrounding dwellings. 

3. The proposed "RI-Exception" (Detached Dwellings), "RM2" 
(Semi-Detached Dwellings) and "RM2-Exeption" (Semi­

Detached Dwellings) are appropriate to accommodate the 

requested uses and meet the overall intent, goals and 

objectives of Mississauga Plan and the new Mississauga 

Official Plan (20 II). 

4. The proposed Draft Plan of Subdivision provides for an 

efficient use of land and services and will result in the orderly 

development of the lands at an appropriate density and scale. 

Appendix S-I: Information Report 
Appendix S-2: Recommendation PDC-0039-2011 

Appendix S-3: Revised Concept Plan 

Appendix S-4: Conditions of Draft Approval 

Appendix S-5: Proposed Zone Standards (Revised) 

- \-
Edward R. Sajecki 

Commissioner of Planning and Building 

Prepared By: Jeff Markowiak, Development Planner 

,,~:r.LAN\DEVCONTL \GROUP\ WPDAT A \COUNCILlOZI 00 16 _ TMI0002 WI0 _supp to council_ CRjrn.so.doc 
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APPENDIX S-1 

Clerk's Files 

Originator's 

File, OZ 10/016 WIO 
T-MI0002 WIO 

Chair and Members of Planning and Development Committee 

Meeting Date: June 27, 2011 

Edward R. Sajecki 

Commissioner of Planning and Building 

Information Report 
Rezoning and Draft Plan of Subdivision Applications 
To permit 22 semi-detached dwellings and preserve the existing 
heritage house and accessory structure. 

6671 Ninth Line 

East side of Ninth Line, south of Derry Road West 

Owner: Edilou Holdings Inc. & Cesta Developments Inc. 

Applicant: Korsiak & Company Ltd. 

Bill 51 

Public Meeting Ward 10 

RECOMMENDATION: That the Report dated June 7, 2011, from the Commissioner of 

Planning and Building regarding the applications to change the 

Zoning from "RI" (Detached Dwellings) to "RI-Exception" 

(Detached Dwelling), "RM2" (Semi-Detached Dwellings) and 

"RM2-Exception" (Semi-Detached Dwellings) and to approve a 

Draft Plan of Subdivision to permit 22 semi-detached dwellings 

and preserve the existing heritage house and accessory structure 

under files OZ 10/016 WIO and T-MI0002 WIO, Edilou Holdings 

Inc. & Cesta Developments Inc., 6671 Ninth Line, be received for 

information. 
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File: OZ 101016 WIO 
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June 7, 2011 

BACKGROUND: 

COMMENTS: 

The above-noted applications have been circulated for technical 

comments and a community meeting has been held, 

The purpose of this report is to provide preliminary information on 

the applications and to seek comments from the community, 

The 0.81 ha (2 acre) site is currently occupied by the Cordingley 

House and a dairy building, which are on the City's Heritage 

Register and are currently protected under a Notice of Intent to 

Designate per the Ontario Heritage Act. A large metal barn is also 

on the site but is not listed on the heritage inventory. The applicant 

is proposing 22 semi-detached dwellings and also to preserve the 

Cordingley House along with the dairy building on a separate 

block within the proposed draft plan of subdivision. 

Details of the proposal are as follows: 

Development Proposal 

Applications 

submitted: January 24, 2011 

Deemed 

complete: January 31, 2011 

Height: 2 storeys 

Minimum Lot Detached Dwelling 

Frontages: (Cordingley House - Lot 6) 

20.9 m (68.6 ft.) 

Along Ninth Line 

Semi-Detached Dwellings (Lots 4, 5 & 7) 

6.7 m (22.0 ft.) 

North and south sides of Banff Court 

Semi-Detached Dwellings 

(Lots 1,2,3,8,9,10, 11 & 12) 

6.8 m (22.3 ft.) 
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Development Proposal 

Lot Areas: Detached Dwelling 

Cordingley House (Heritage House) 

Maximum - 656 m2 (7,061 sq. ft.) 

Along Ninth Line 

Semi-Detached Dwellings (Lots 4, 5 & 7): 

Minimum - 280 m2 (3,014 sq. ft.) 

North and south sides of Banff Court 

Semi-Detached Dwellings 

(Lots 1,2,3, 8, 9, 10, 11 & 12) 
Minimum - 200 m2 (2,153 sq. ft.) 

Net Density: 34.8 units/ha 

(86.0 units/acre) 

Number of 22 semi-detached dwellings 

units: 

Anticipated 74' 
Population: 'Average household sizes for all units (by 

type) for the year 2011 (city average) based 

on the 2008 Growth Forecasts for the City of 

Mississauga. 

Parking 2 spaces per unit 

Required: -

Parking 2 spaces per unit 

Provided: 

Supporting Plan of Survey 

Documents: Draft Plan of Subdivision 

Building Elevations and Floor Plans 

Planning Justification Report 
Heritage Impact Study 

Noise Feasibility Study 

Arborist Report 

Existing Tree Inventory & Removal Plan 

Phase I and II Environmental Evaluation 

Functional Servicing Report 
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Frontage: 70 m (229,7 ft.) on Ninth Line 

Depth: 106 m(347.77 ft.) Irregular 

Lot Area: 0.81 ha (2.0 ac.) 

Existing Use: Cordingley House, dairy building, a barn 
and vacant lands 

Neighbourhood Context 

The subject property is located within an established residential 
neighbourhood within the Lisgar District. On the abutting lands to 
the north there are townhouses. The abutting lands to west consist 

of five (5) vacant lots held in escrow by the City of Mississauga 
until such time as Banff Court is extended westerly. Further east 
of the vacant lots and to the south are detached dwellings. The 
lands immediately to the west are the Union Gas plant which 

screened from Ninth Line by a largely wooded area. The 
Cordingley House, dairy building and metal barn currently occupy 
the portion of the lands abutting Ninth Line with sloped vacant 
land to the rear towards Banff Court. 

Information regarding the history of the site is found in 
Appendix 1-1. 

The surrounding land uses are described as follows: 

North: Townhouse Dwellings. 

East: Five (5) vacant residential held in escrow by the City of 
Mississauga, Detached Dwellings and Dillingwood Drive. 

South: Detached Dwellings. 
West: Across Ninth Line, Union Gas facility. 

Current Mississauga Plan Designation and Policies for Lisgar 
Planning District (May 5, 2003) 

"Residential- Low Density II - Special Site 2" which permits 
detached, semi-detached, street townhouse and duplex dwellings, 

R-I(J') 
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within a density range of 17 - 45 units per net residential hectare 

(7-18 units per net residential acre). 

The "Special Site 2" policies require that provisions should be 

made to integrate the existing Cordingley House at 667l Ninth 

Line, which is recommended for designation under the Ontario 

Heritage Act, with future development plans. 

The applications are in conformity with the land use designation 

and no official plan amendments are proposed. 

There are other policies in the Official Plan which are also 

applicable in the review of these applications including: 

Urban Design Policies 

Section 3.18 of Mississauga Plan provides for policies which speak 

to appropriate built form, scale, streetscape, context and 

compatibility with the surrounding built form. This section also 

speaks to road and lotting patterns are to retain and incorporate 

established patterns of development and heritage resources. 

Heritage Resources should be conserved and incorporated into the 

community design and new development in a manner that 

enhances the heritage resources and makes them a focal point for 
the community. 

Residential Policies 

Section 3.2.3 of Mississauga Plan indicates that residential design 

will be promoted in a form which reinforces and enhances the local 

community character, respects its immediate context, and creates a 

quality living environment. Innovative housing types and zoning 

standards will be encouraged. 

Heritage Policies 

Section 3.20.3 of Mississauga Plan contains policies which 

requires that development adjacent to a Heritage Site is encouraged 

to be compatible with the Heritage Site and properties designated 
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under the Ontario Heritage Act will be required to bave regard for 

the preservation of the significant architectural features. 

New Mississauga Official Plan 

Mississauga Official Plan was adopted by City Council on 

September 29, 20 I O. Until the new Mississauga Official Plan is 

approved by the Region of Peel and comes into force, Mississauga 

Plan continues to be in effect. While the existing Official Plan is 

the plan of record against which the application is being reviewed, 
regard should also be given to the new Mississauga Official Plan. 

Under the new Mississauga Official Plan, the subject lands are 

designated "Residential Low Density II". The proposed 22 semi­

detached dwellings conform with the land use designation 

contained in the new Mississauga Official Plan and 

associated policies. 

Existing Zoning 

"RI" (Detached Dwellings), which permits detached dwellings 

with a 22.5 m (73.8 ft.) minimum lot frontage for both interior and 

comer lots. 

Proposed Zoning By-law Amendment 

"RI-Exception" (Detached Dwelling) to preserve the existing 

heritage house and accessory structure subject to the following 

modified standards:. 

Required Zoning Proposed Standard 
By-law Standard 

Minimum 22.5 m (73.82 ft) 20.9 m (68.57 ft) 
Lot Frontage 

Minimum 750m' 655 m2 

Lot Area (8 072.93 sq. ft) (7050.36 sq. ft) 
Maximum 

Lot Coverage 25% 32% 
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"RM2" (Semi-Detached Dwellings), to pennit semi-detached 
dwellings and "RM2-Exception" (Semi-Detached Dwellings) to 
pennit semi-detached dwellings with a reduction in lot frontages 
and Jot areas. 

As part of the rezoning, the applicant is proposing that the 
following standards be applied for the parcel identified on 
Ninth Line proposing a "RM2-Exception" (Semi-Detached 
Dwellings) zone category: 

Required Zoning Proposed Standard 
By-law Standard. 

Minimum 6.8 m (22.3 ft.) 6.7 m (21.9 ft.) 
Lot Frontage 

Minimum 4.5 m (14.8 ft.) 2.0 m (6.6 ft.) 
Front Yard Setback 

Minimum Rear Yard 7.5 m (24.6 ft.) to be detennined 
Setback 

Minimum Setback of NIA 7.5 m (24.6 ft.) 
a Detached Garage to 

a Semi-Detached 
Dwelling 

Detached Garage Not Pennitted Pennitted 

* for the purpose ofthe proposed 'ExceptIOn Zone' Nmth Lme IS 

considered the frontage (Appendix 1-4). 

COMMUNITY ISSUES 

A community meeting was held by Ward 10 Councillor, 

Sue McFadden on March 2, 20 II. 

The following is a summary of comments raised by the 
community: 

• Suitability of townhouses versus additional detached 
dwellings; 

• Concern about outcome of the Cordingley House and 

existing bam and metal building on the site; 
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• General increase in traffic in the area and from Banff 

Court; 

• Question if there would be access from Ninth Line or 

access being only from Banff Court; 

• Concern about dust and noise during the construction of the 

subdivision; 

• Who will build the five (5) vacant lots along Banff Court. 

Response 

The comments regarding suitability of the proposed development 

will be considered by the Planning and Building Department in a 

future Supplementary Report and evaluated against the 

Mississauga Plan policies regarding compatibility, design and the 

Heritage specified in the plan. The applicant intends to preserve 

the Cordingley House as specified in the Mississauga Plan and to 

incorporate design elements to enhance the heritage house. With 

respects to traffic concerns, the existing street network can 

accommodate the proposed development as the intent to continue 

Banff Road has been maintained for this proposal. The applicant is 

required to conform with the City's noise by-laws and has not 

advised the City as to the purchase of the vacant lots abutting this 

property. All plans and studies submitted with this application are 

under review. 

DEVELOPMENT ISSUES 

Agency comments are summarized in Appendix 1-8 and school 

accommodation information is contained in Appendix 1-9. Based 

on the comments received and the applicable Mississauga Plan 

policies the following matters will have to be addressed: 

• Compatibility and transition within the stable residential 

neighbourhood to the north, south and east; 

• Tree Preservation Plan and enhanced landscape plans for 

the Ninth Line and Banff Court streetscape; 

• Archeological Assessment of the subject property; 
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FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

CONCLUSION: 

ATTACHMENTS: 

• Review of the requested zoning standards, in particular 
proposed setbacks to Ninth Line, the Cordingley House and 

accessory dairy building being preserved; 

• Further details in the Functional Servicing Report for 

Conservation Halton review and Transportation and Works 
requirements; 

• Clarification of timing of development of the adjacent 
undeveloped Lots 42-46, Plan 43M-II05; 

• Satisfactory arrangements with the Transportation and 
Works Department for service connections, temporary 
grading and/or drainage works required for the abutting 
undeveloped Lots 42-46, Plan 43M-ll05; 

• A letter from the geotechnical consulting engineer outlining 
findings and conclusions of the Phase I and Phase II 
Enviromnental Site Assessments; 

OTHER INFORMATION 

Development Requiremeuts 

In conjunction with the proposed development, there are certain 

other engineering and other matters which will require the 

applicant to enter into appropriate agreements with the City, the 

details of which will be dealt with during the processing of the plan 
of subdivision, 

Development charges will be payable in keeping with the 

requirements of the applicable Development Charges By-law of 

the City as well as financial requirements of any other official 
agency concerned with the development of the lands, 

Most agency and City department comments have been received 

and after the public meeting has been held and all issues are 

resolved, the Planning and Building Department will be in a 

position to make a recommendation regarding this applications. 

Appendix I-I: Site History 

Appendix 1-2: Aerial Photograph 

Appendix 1-3: Excerpt of Lisgar District Land Use Map 

Appendix 1-4: Excerpt of Existing Land Use Map 
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Appendix 1-5: Draft Plan of Subdivision 
Appendix 1-6: Concept Plan 
Appendix 1-7 Elevations 
Appendix 1-8: Agency Comments 
Appendix 1-9: School Accommodation 
Appendix 1-10: General Context Map 

Edward R. Sajecki 
Commissioner of Planning and Building 

File: OZ 10/016 WIO 
and T-MI0002 WI0 

June 7, 2011 

Prepared By: Erica Pallotta, Development Planner 
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Edilou Holdings Inc. & Cesta Developments Inc. 

Site History 

• +/- 1843 - The Cordingly House was first constructed. 

Appendix 1-1 

File: OZ 10/016 WI0 
and T-MI0002 WI0 

• June 11, 1997 - T-M 87053 Phase 2 was register as 43M-II05 Phase 2 for the 
surrounding lands outlining the existing limits of Banff Court and future 

development of Lots 42-46. 

• June 20, 2007 - Zoning By-law 0225-2007 came into force except for those sites 

which have been appealed. As no appeals have been filed the provisions of the new 

By-law apply. The subject lands are zoned "Rl" (Detached Dwellings) . 

. 
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Edilou Holdings Inc. and Cesta Developments Inc. File: OZ 10/016 W10 
and T-M10002 W10 

Agency Comments 

The following is a summary of comments from agencies and departments regarding the 
applications: 

Ageucy / Comment Date 

Region of Peel 
(April 8,2011) 

Comment 

The Planning Justification Report for Cesta Developments 
Inc.lEdilou Holdings Inc. prepared by Korsiak & Company 
dated January 20 II bas been reviewed. Regional staff note 
that Regional and Provincial policies have been referenced. 
The lands are within Region of Peel's urban boundary 

therefore, a Region of Peel Official Plan amendment is not 
required. 

The Functional Service Report prepared by Skira and 
Associates Ltd, dated January 21, 20 II has been reviewed and 

is found to be satisfactory 

Municipal sanitary sewer facilities consist of250 nun (9.8") 
diameter sanitary sewer on Banff Court, and 250 nun (9.8") 
diameter sanitary sewer on Dillingwood Drive. Sanitary 
servicing will require extension of250 mm (9.8") diameter 
sanitary sewer on Banff Court from existing Manhole to the 
end of subject property and water servicing will require the 

construction of 150 nun (5.9") diameter watermain on Banff 
Court from the existing 150 mm (5.9") diameter to the end of 
subject property. 

Water facilities consist of 150 mm (5.9") diameter watermain 
located on Banff Court, and 200 nun (7.9") diameter 
watermain on Dillingwood Drive. 

The lands are located in Water Pressure Zone 5. 

Provisions will be required in the sanitary sewers to 
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Edilou Holdings Inc. and Cesta Developments Inc. File: OZ 10/016 WI0 
and T-MI0002 WI0 

Agency 1 Comment Date Comment 

acconnnodate external lands to the east of the subject property. 

According to Region of Peel records, there is no indication of 

the existence of a municipal waste disposal site or hazardous 

wastes in the vicinity of the subject lands. 

Curbside Collection will be provided by the Region of Peel. 

Dufferin-Peel Catholic In comments, dated May 5, 2011 and March 2, 2011, the Peel 

District School Board and District School Board and the Dufferin-Peel Catholic District 

the Peel District School School Board responded that they are satisfied with the current 

Board provision of educational facilities for the catchment area and, 

(March 2, 2011 as such, the school acconnnodation condition as required by 

And May 5, 2011) City of Mississauga Council Resolution 152-98 pertaining to 

satisfactory arrangements regarding educational facilities need 

not be applied for this development application. 

Halton Region Stormwater Management: 

Conservation Authority 

(April 8, 2011) Staff have reviewed the proposed draft plan as well as the 

Functional Servicing Report, prepared by Skira and Associates 

Ltd., dated revised January 21,2010 (assumed to be 2011) and 

received by Conservation Halton on March 2, 20 II. The 

document provides limited discussion with respect to 

stormwater management and does not confirm that the 

proposed increase in impervious area, as a result of the change 

from detached to semi-detached dwellings, can be 

accommodated in the existing stormwater management system. 

Staff request additional information be incorporated into the 

Functional Servicing Report in advance of approving the 

zoning and draft plan to confirm that the requested zoning and 

associated impervious levels are appropriate and can be 

accommodated by the stormwater system. 
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and T-MI0002 WI0 

I Agency / Comment Date I Comment 
I 

City Community Services In comments dated March 24, 20 II this Department notes that 
Department - Lisgar Fields (P-441) is located approximately 290 metres 
Planning, Development and (951 ft.) from the subject property. Lisgar Fields contain a 
Business Services play site, three basketball hoops, two soccer fields, four tennis 

DivisionlPark Planning courts and a multipad. The City's requirements for parks are 

Section met for this area. 

(March 24, 2011) 

Prior to registration of draft plan, a cash contribution for street 

tree planting will be required. Further, prior to the issuance of 

building permits, cash-in-lieu for park or other public 

recreational purposes is required pursuant to Section 42 ofthe 

Planning Act (R.S.O. 1990, c.P. 13, as amended) and in 

accordance with City's Policies and By-laws. 

City Community Services The property is listed on the City's Heritage Register and is 
Department - Culture currently protected under a Notice of Intent to Designate per 

Division the Ontario Heritage Act. 

(May 16,2011) 

The property has archaeological potential due to its proximity 

to a watercourse or known archaeological resource. The 

proponent shall carry out an archaeological assessment of the 

subject property and mitigate, through preservation or resource 

removal and documenting, adverse impacts to any significant 

archaeological resources found. No grading or other soil 

disturbances shall take place on the subject property prior to 

the approval authority and the Ministry of Tourism and Culture 

confirming that all archaeological resource concerns have met 

licensing and resource conservation requirements. 

Per the submitted plans for the Draft Plan of Subdivision 

application, the south property line of Lot 5, Street 'A' should 

be moved further north to provide a wider buffer between the 

existing 1 Storey Brick Building, and the proposed driveway 
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Edilou Holdings Inc. and Cesta Developments Inc. File: OZ 10/016 W10 
and T-M10002 W10 

I Agency / Comment Date I Comment 
I 

for Lot 5. Protective solid board hoarding may be required 

during construction to protect the existing heritage buildings. 

Heritage Advisory HAC-0020-2011 
Committee That the Cordingley House, 6671 Ninth Line, and the adjacent 
(May 11, 2011) brick outbuilding, be designated under the Ontario Heritage 

Act for its physical/design, historical/associative and 
contextual value and that the appropriate City officials be 
authorized and directed to take the necessary action to give 
effect thereto. 

This recommendation was approved by General Committee on 
May 4, 20 II and subsequently adopted by City Council on 
May 11,2011 via Resolution 0134-2011. 

City Transportation and The Transportation and Works Department comments dated 

Works Department May 25, 20 II indicated that a Preliminary Noise Report dated 

(May 25, 2011) November 23,2010 has been received, which addresses the 
impacts to the proposed development from road traffic noise 
on Ninth LinelHwy. 407 and the stationary noise associated 
with the operations of the Union Gas plant/facilities on the 
west side of Ninth Line and recommended mitigation 
measures. 

The applicant has also submitted a Functional Servicing Report 
by Skira and Assoc. dated November 30, 2010 indicating the 
means whereby the lands are proposed to be serviced and 
graded; and the temporary grading works that are proposed on 
the adjacent tmdeveloped Lots 42-46, Plan 43M-II05. 

Phase I and Phase II Environmental Site Assessments dated 
April 20 I 0, by B. A. Brown and Associates are also under 
review by this department. 

Prior to a Supplementary Report proceeding to Council, the 
applicant will be required: 

• to contact the owner of the adjacent undeveloped Lots 
42-46, Plan 43M-II05 determined the timing of the 
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Edilou Holdings Inc. and Cesta Developments Inc. File: OZ 10/016 W10 
and T-M10002 W10 

Agency / Comment Date Comment 

development ofthese properties, 

• to make satisfactory arrangements with the 
Transportation and Works Department for the provision 
of service connections for Lots 42-46, Plan 43M-II05 
and requirement for any temporary grading andlor 
drainage works required on an interim basis, 

• to provide a letter from the geotechnical consulting 
engineer allowing the City to rely on the findings and 
conclusions of the Phase I and Phase II Environmental 
Site Assessments submitted with the application, and; 

• to address the required revisions to the Functional 
Servicing Report. 

Further detailed comments/conditions will be provided prior 
the supplementary meeting pending receipt and review of the 
requested information. 

Other City Departments and The following City Departments and external agencies offered 
External Agencies no objection to these applications provided that all technical 

matters are addressed in a satisfactory manner: 
Bell Canada 
Canada Post Corporation 

Enersource Hydro Mississauga 
Ministry of Transportation 
Town of Milton 

The following City Departments and external agencies were 

circulated the applications but provided no comments to date: 

City Community Services Department - Fire and Emergency 
Services Division 
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Edilou Holdings Inc. and Cesta Developments Inc. File: OZ 10/016 WI0 
and T-MI0002 WI0 

School Accommodation 

The Peel District School Board 
The Dufferin-Peel Catholic District School 
Board 

• Student Yield: • Student Yield: 

4 Kindergarten to Grade 5 3 Junior Kindergarten to Grade 8 
6 Grade 6 to Grade 8 1 Grade 9 to Grade l2/0AC 
3 Grade 9 to Grade 12/0AC 

• School Accommodation: • School Accommodation: 

Trelawny Public School St. Therese of the Child Jesus 

Enrolment: 377 Enrolment: 594 
Capacity: 365 Capacity: 446 
Portables: 0 Portables: 8 

Lisgar Middle School Our Lady of Mount Carmel 

Enrolment: , 676 Enrolment: 1,886 
Capacity: 688 Capacity: 1,320 
Portables: 0 Portables: 16 

Meadowvale Secondary School 

Enrolment: 1,468 
Capacity: 1,497 
Portables: 0 



I 

I 
DERRY ROAD WEST 

I 
I "' GA 5 

I iE z 
;; 

I GA 
AT 

! 
! 

I 
R1 

R4 R4 
BAGGINS COURT , GRACUIELD DRJVE 

AT R4-30 R4 

G1 

R4-30 R4-30 § 

fk::'~J/ I 

I R4 OS1 

BERRYMAN TRAil R12 

R4 ~ 
J/ GA 

R4 R1 

RM2 R12 
INDIGO CRESCENT 

~ G1 

I 
I 
! J G2 

OS1 \\ R4 

R5 c 

"' ~ 

5 In R4 ~ 

~ 
~ 

F " iE COUIU 

~ 
INDIGO CRESCENT 

RM5 RM2 AT 
R5-19 

RM9 

~~~G~A~~\~ __ ~~~~~ ______ ~~==n=NT=ffi=N="~'rr~ro="~=~~===-~DD~UG~L~:V:EN~S~'O~UL~~=AA~O==~~==~~~~~~~ ____ l-~~ 
I:lCADIlo'PROlBCIS'REPORTMAP8lOZ 100Ui W1UU>IYVEcroR I1lHlI6C.dgo 

C1-22 



R-\O~Ch) 
Appendix S-2 

Edilou Holdings Inc. & Cesta Developments Inc. Files: OZ 10/016 W10 
T-M10002 W10 

Recommendation PDC-0039-2011 

PDC-0039-2011 "That the Report dated June 7, 2011, from the Commissioner of 
Planning and Building regarding the applications to change the 
Zoning from "R1" (Detached Dwellings) to "R1-Exception" 
(Detached Dwelling), "RM2" (Semi-Detached Dwellings) and 
"RM2-Exception" (Semi-Detached Dwellings) and to approve a 
Draft Plan of Subdivision to permit 22 semi -detached dwellings 
and preserve the existing heritage house and accessory structure 
under files OZ 10/016 W10 and T-M10002 W10, Edilou Holdings 
Inc. & Cesta Developments Inc., 6671 Ninth Line, be received, 
and, notwithstanding Planning Protocol, that the Supplementary 
Report be brought directly to a future Council meeting. 
File: OZ 10/016 W10 and T-MlO002 W10 
AMENDED (Councillor George Carlson)" 
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SCHEDULE A 
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T-MI0002 WI0 

Draft Plan of Subdivision 
Part of Lot 10, Concession 10, New Survey 
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East side of Ninth Line, south of Derry Road West 
City of Mississauga 
Edilou Holdings Inc. & Cesta Developments Inc. 

Approval of a draft plan of subdivision granted under Section 51 of the Planning Act, R.S.O. 
1990, c.P.l3, as amended, will be valid until approval is either withdrawn or the plan is 
registered. Approval may be withdrawn by the Commissioner, Planning and Building 
Department if approvai of the final plan has not been .. given three (3) years after the date of. 
approval of the draft plan. 

NOTE: City is "The Corporation of the City of Mississauga" 
Region is "The Regional Municipality of Peel" 

The City has not required either the dedication of land for park or other public recreational 
purposes, or the payment of money in lieu of such conveyance as a condition of subdivision draft 
approval authorizated by Section 51.1 ofthe Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, c.P.l3 as amended. The 
City will require payment of cash-in-lieu for park or other public recreational purposes as a 
condition of development for each lot and block, prior to the issuance of building permits 
pursuant to Section 42(6) of the Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, C.P.l3 as amended, and in 
accordance with the City's policies and by-laws. 

1.0 Approval of the draft plan applies to the plan dated March 28, 2012. 

2.0 That the owner agree, in writing, to satisfy all the requirements, financial and otherwise 
of the City and the Region. 

3.0 That the applicant/owner shall enter into Servicing, Development and any other necessary 
agreements, satisfactory to the City, Region or any other appropriate authority, prior to 
ANY development within the plan. These agreements may deal with matters including, 
but not limited to, the following: engineering matters such as municipal services, road 
widenings, construction and reconstruction, grading, signals, fencing, noise mitigation, 
and warning clauses; financial issues, such as cash contributions, levies (development 
charges), land dedications or reserves, securities, or letters of credit; planning matters 
such as residential reserve blocks, buffer blocks, site development plan and landscape 
plan approvals and conservation. THE DETAILS OF THESE REOUIREMENTS ARE CONTAINED 
IN COMMENTS IN RESPONSE TO THE CIRCULATION OF THE PLAN FROM AUTHORITIES, 
AGENCIES, AND DEPARTMENTS OF THE CITY AND REGION WHICH HAVE BEEN FORWARDED 



Conditions of Approval 
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TO THE APPLICANT OR HIS CONSULTANTS, AND WHICH COMMENTS FORM PART OF THESE 

CONDITIONS. 

4.0 All processing and administrative fees shall be paid prior to the registration of the plan. 
Such fees will be charged at prevailing rates of approved City and Regional Policies and 
By-laws on the day of payment. 

5.0 The applicant/owner shall agree to convey/dedicate, gratuitously, any required road or 
highway widenings, 0.3 m (1 ft.) reserves, walkways, sight triangles, buffer blocks and 
utility or drainage easements to the satisfaction of the City, Region or other authority. 

6.0 The applicant/owner shall provide all outstanding reports, plans or studies required by 
agency and departmental comments. 

7.0 That a Zoning By-Law for the development of these lands shall have been passed under 
Section 34 of the Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, C.P .13, as amended, and be in full force and 
effect prior to registration of the plan. 

8.0 That in accordance with CPD Resolution 0121-91, that a minimum of three car spaces 
per dwelling, including those in a garage be required and a minimum of 0.25 visitor 
parking space per dwelling be required on the street for the subject development. 

9.0 The proposed streets shall be named to the satisfaction of the City and the Region. In this 
regard, a list of street names shall be submitted to the City Transportation and Works 
Department as soon as possible after draft plan approval has been received and prior to 
any servicing submissions. The owner is advised to refer to the Region of Peel Street 
Names Index to avoid proposing street names which conflict with the approved or 
existing street names on the basis of duplication, spelling, pronunciation, and similar 
sounding. 

10.0 Prior to final approval, the Engineer is required to submit, to the satisfaction of the 
Region, all engineering drawings in Micro-Station format as set out in the latest version 
of the Region of Peel "Development Procedure Manual". 

11.0 Prior to [mal approval or preservicing, the developer will be required to monitor wells, 
subject to the homeowner's permission, within the zone of influence, and to submit 
results to the satisfaction of the Region. 

12.0 Prior to final approval, the Dufferin-Peel Catholic District School Board is to be satisfied 
that the applicant has agreed to include in the Development Agreement and all offers of 
purchase and sale for all residential lots, the following warning clauses until the 
permanent school for the area has been completed: 

12.1 Whereas, despite the best efforts of the Dufferin-Peel Catholic District School 
Board, sufficient accommodation may not be available for all antiCipated students 
from the area, you are hereby notified that students may be accommodated in 
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temporary facilities and/or bussed to a school outside of the neighbourhood, and 
further, that students may later be transferred to the neighbourhood school. 

12.2 That the purchasers agree that for the purpose of transportation to school, the 
residents of the subdivision shall agree that children will meet the bus on roads 
presently in existence or at another place designated by the Board. 

13.0 That the Servicing Agreement shall contain a clause satisfactory to the Dufferin-Peel 
Catholic District School Board that the developer will erect and maintain signs at the 
entrances to the subdivision which shall advise prospective purchasers that due to present 
school facilities, some of the children from the subdivision may have to be 
accommodated in temporary facilities or bussed to schools, according to the Board's 
Transportation Policies. These signs shall be to the School Board's specifications and at 
locations determined by the Board. 

14.0 Prior to fmal approval, the Peel District School Board is to be satisfied that the following 
provision is contained in the Development Agreement and on all offers of purchase and 
sale for a period of five years after registration of the plan: 

14.1 Whereas, despite the efforts of the Peel District School Board, sufficient 
accommodation may not be available for all anticipated students in 
neighbourhood schools, you are hereby notified that some students may be 
accommodated in temporary facilities or bussed to schools outside of the area, 
according to the Board's Transportation Policy. You are advised to contact the 
Planning and Resources Department of the Peel District School Board to 
determine the exact schools. 

15.0 That the Servicing Agreement shall contain a clause satisfactory to the Peel District 
School Board that the developer will erect and maintain signs at the entrances to the 
subdivision which shall advise prospective purchasers that due to present school 
facilities, some of the children from the subdivision may have to be accommodated in 
temporary facilities or bussed to schools, according to the Board's Transportation 
Policies. These signs shall be to the School Board's specifications and at locations 
determined by the Board. 

16.0 Prior to preservicing and/or execution of the Servicing Agreement, the developer shall 
name to the satisfaction of the City Transportation and Works Department the 
telecommunications provider. 

17.0 Prior to execution of the Servicing Agreement, the developer must submit in writing, 
evidence to the Commissioner of the City Transportation and Works Department, that 
satisfactory arrangements have been made with the telecommunications provider, Cable 
TV and Hydro for the installation of their plantin a common trench, within the prescribed 
location on the road allowance. 
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18.0 That prior to signing of the final plan, the Commissioner of Planning and Building is to 
be advised that all of the above noted conditions have been carried out to the satisfaction 
ofthe appropriate agencies and the City. 

THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE CITY WILL BE EFFECTIVE FOR THIRTY­
SIX (36) MONTHS FROM THE DATE THE CONDITIONS ARE APPROVED BY 
THE COMMISSIONER, PLANNING AND BUILDING DEPARTMENT. AFTER 
THIS DATE REVISED CONDITIONS WILL BE REQUIRED. 
NOTWITHSTANDING THE SERVICING REQUIREMENTS MENTIONED IN 
SCHEDULE A, CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL, THE STANDARDS IN EFFECT 
AT THE TIME OF REGISTRATION OF THE PLAN WILL APPLY. 
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Files: OZ 10/016 WI0 
T-MI0002 WI0 

Proposed Zoning Standards (Revised) - "RM2-Exception" (Semi-Detached Dwellings) 

Required Zoning By-law Proposed Standard 
Standard 

Minimum Lot Frontage 6.8 m (22.3 ft.) 6.7 m (2l.9 ft.) 

Minimum Rear Yard 7.5 m (24.6 ft.) 6.0 m (19.7 ft.) 

Setback 

Detached Garage Not Permitted Permitted 

Minimum Setback of a NIA 5.7 m (18.7 ft.) 

Detached Garage to a 

Semi-Detached 

Dwelling 
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COUNCJLAGENDA 
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April 30, 2012 MAY 2 32012 

Mayor and Members of Council 
Meeting Date: May 23,2012 

Edward R. Sajecki 
·Commissioner of Planning and Building 

Official Plan Amendment, Rezoning and Draft Plan of 
Subdivision Applications 

To permit 104 townhouse dwellings on a CEC private road 
5881 Creditview Road 
East side of Creditview Road, south of Britannia Road West 
Owner/Applicant: National Homes (Creditview) Inc. 
Bill 51 

Supplementary Report Ward 6 

RECOMMENDATION: That the Report dated April 30, 2012, from the Commissioner of 
Planning and Building recommending approval of the applications 
under Files OZ 111007 W6 andT-MI1004 W6, National Homes 
(Creditview) Inc., 5881 Creditview Road, east side of Credit view 
Road, south of Britannia Road West, be adopted in accordance 
with the following: 

1. That notwithstanding that subsequent to the public meeting, 

changes to the applications have been proposed, Council 
considers that the changes do not require further notice and, 
therefore, pursuant to the provisions of subsection 34(17) of 
the Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, c.P.13, as amended, any 
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Files: OZ 111007 W6 
T-Ml1004 W6 
April 30, 2012 

further notice regarding the proposed amendment is hereby 

waived. 

2. That the application to amend Mississauga Plan from 

"Residential Low Density II" to "Residential Medium Density 

I" to permit 104 townhouse dwellings on a CEC private road, 

be approved. 

3. That the application to change the Zoning from "RM2" 

(Semi-Detached Dwellings) to "RM6-Exception" (Townhouse 

Dwellings on a CEC - Private Road) to permit 104 townhouse 

dwellings on a CEC private road in accordance with the 

proposed zoning standards described in the Supplementary 

Report dated April 30, 2011, be approved subject to the 

following conditions: 

(a) That the draft plan of subdivision be approved. 

(b) That the applicant agree to satisfy all the requirements of 

the City and any other official agency concerned with the 

development. 

(c) In accordance with Council Resolution 152-98: 

"Prior to final approval, the City of Mississauga shall be 

advised by the Peel District School Board that 

satisfactory arrangements regarding the adequate 

provision and distribution of educational facilities have 

been made between the developer/applicant and the Peel 

District School Board for this plan." 

"That the school accommodation condition as outlined in 

City of Mississauga Council Resolution 152-98, 

requiring that satisfactory arrangements regarding the 

adequate provision and distribution of educational 

facilities have been made between the 

developer/applicant and the Dufferin-Peel Catholic 

District School Board, not apply to the subject lands." 
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April 30, 2012 

4. That the Plan of Subdivision under file T -Ml1004 W6, be 

recommended for approval subject to the conditions contained 

in Appendix S-7, attached to the report dated April 30, 2012, 
from the Commissioner of Planning and Building: 

5. That the decision of Council for approval of the rezoning 

application be considered null and void, and a new 

development application be required unless a zoning by-law is 

passed within 36 months of the Council decision. 

6. That the Region of Peel be requested to make appropriate 

modifications to the new Mississauga Official Plan through the 

Regional approval process to redesignate the lands from 

"Residential Low Density II" to "Residential Medium 

Density I". 

A public meeting was held by the Planning and Development 

Committee on February 13, 2012, at which time a Planning and 

Building Department Information Report (AppendixS-l) was 

presented and received for information. 

At the Public Meeting, the Planning and Development Committee 

passed Recommendation PDC-0012-20l2 which was subsequently 

adopted by Council and is attached as Appendix S-2. 

Since the Public Meeting, the applicant has made minor revisions 

to the proposal to address the concerns raised by the community 

and at Planning and Development Committee meeting. The rear 

yards of the proposed townhouses abutting the homes on Garcia 

Road have been increased and one additional visitor parking space 

has been provided. 

See Appendix S-l - Information Report prepared by the Planning 

and Building Department. 
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COMMUNITY ISSUES 

Comment 

Files: OZ 111007 W6 
T-Ml1004 W6 
April 30, 2012 

Concerns were raised regarding the impact of additional traffic 
arising from the proposal. 

Response 

An acceptable Traffic Impact Study has been provided in support 

ofthe applications which demonstrate that the additional vehicular 

traffic generated by the proposal can be adequately accommodated 

in the existing street network. 

Comment 

Concerns were raised regarding the adequacy ofthe number of 

visitor parking spaces proposed and tbe resultant increase in 

visitors parking on adj acent streets. 

Response 

Since the Public Meeting, one additional visitor parking space has 

been added to ensure conformity with the Zoning By-law 
requirement of 0.25 visitor parking spaces per unit. A total of 26 

visitor parking spaces are provided. 

Comment 

Concerns were raised regarding the number of units, the height 

of the units and privacy impacts on existing units to the south 

and east. 

Response 

The proposed number and height of the proposed townhouse units 

is in keeping with the density of the area and similar to the 
townhouses to the north. 
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Files: OZ 111007 W6 
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April 30,2012 

The 3-storey height of the units adjacent to existing 2-storey semi­

detached dwellings is an appropriate transition. The applicant has 

also amended the roof line ofthe units to de-emphasize the third 
storey with mansard roofs as shown on Appendix S-S. 

To address the concern regarding privacy and overlook, the 

applicant has increased the rear yard setback of the units that abut 

Weir Chase to provide a greater distance between the existing and 

proposed units. 

Comment 

There is concern that the proposal will exacerbate existing capacity 

issues at local schools. 

Response 

The Dufferin-Peel Catholic District School Board has indicated 

that they have no concerns with the proposal. The Peel Board of 

Education has indicated that as a condition of approval, the 

standard school acconnnodation condition be applied. 

Comment 

There is concern both that Garcia Park is already over-utilized and 

the proposal will only exacerbate the situation. 

Response 

The applications propose to delete the requirement for a private 
amenity space within the townhouse condominium site and provide 

additional facilities in Garcia Park for the existing and proposed 
residents. Information regarding this proposal is detailed in 

Planning Comments section of this report. 

12-2(d) 
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Comment 

Files: OZ 111007 W6 
T-Ml1004 W6 
April 30, 2012 

Concerns were raised about the impact the additional population 

generated from this proposal would have on Rivergrove 

Community Centre. 

Response 

The proposed development is expected to generate an estimated 

additional 312 residents, who will be served by the River Grove 

and Frank McKechnie Commuoity Centres, located in Service 

Area 2 as outlined in Future Directions for Recreation. These 
community centres have sufficient capacity to meet the service 

needs associated with this marginal increase in population growth. 

Comment 

Concerns were raised regarding noise and dust impacts that will 

occur during construction. 

Response 

While some disturbances associated with the construction of 

the new homes can be expected, all work will need to be 
undertaken in accordance with the City's Noise Control and 

other related by-laws. 

UPDATED AGENCY AND CITY DEPARTMENT 

COMMENTS 

City Transportation and Works Department 

In comments updated April 20, 2012, this department stated 

that satisfactory Site Plan, Site Grading/Servicing Plan, 

Functional Servicing Report, Utility Plans and Environmental 

Noise Assessment have been submitted and reviewed with 

the applications. 
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The Traffic Impact Study dated May 2011, by BA Group in 

support of the development states that the added vehicular trips 

generated by this proposal will have limited impact on the 

surrounding road network and can be adequately accommodated. 

A noise report and various addenda from YCA Engineering 

Limited have confirmed that with the appropriate acoustic 

mitigation measures and warning clauses, the development will be 

in compliance with City/Ministry of Environment criteria for 

transportation noise sources. 

Site specific details will be addressed through the processing of a 

future site plan application. 

City Community Services Department 

Comments updated May 1, 2012, state that subsequent to the 
Public Meeting, the applicant has prepared a concept plan which 

proposes various capital improvements to the adjacent Garcia Park, 

including an expanded children's play area, shade structure, 

benches and additional plantings. The applicant will be 

responsible for all expenses associated with the proposed park 

improvements, all of which is to be undertaken at no expense to 

the City. The detail design with respect to park expansion and 

securities related to this work will be reviewed and finalized 

through the Park Development Agreement. 

PLANNING COMMENTS 

Official Plan 

The proposal requires an amendment to the Mississauga Plan 

Policies for the East Credit District. As outlined in the Information 

Report, Mississauga Plan provides criteria for evaluating site 

specific Official Plan Amendments (Section 5.3.2). Each criterion 

is summarized below along with a discussion of how the proposed 

applications address the intent of the criteria. 

'Q-2C+j 
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Will the proposal adversely impact or destabilize the overall intent, 

goals and objectives of the Official Plan; and the development or 

functioning of the remaining lands which have the same 

designation, or neighbouring lands? 

• the proposal does not adversely impact or destabilize the 

overall intent, goals and objectives of the Official Plan as 

the intensity of the development is similar to other sites 
within the community. 

Are the lands suitable for the proposed uses, and are the proposed 

land uses compatible with existing and future uses of the 

surrounding lands? 

• the "Residential Medium Density I" designation represents 

an acceptable transition from the "Low Density II" 

designation to the south and east of the site and is the same 

designation as the lands to the north; 

• the lands are suitable for the proposed use and compatible 

with the existing uses of the surrounding lands. 

Is there adequate infrastructure and community services to support 

the proposed development? 

• in support of the applications, environmental, functional 

servicing and traffic impact reviews along with comments 
received from other agencies indicate satisfactorily that 

there is adequate infrastructure and community services to 

support the proposed development. 

New Mississauga Official Plan 

Mississauga Official Plan (2011) was adopted by City Council on 

September 29,2010 and partially approved by the Region on 

September 22,2011. Mississauga Official Plan (2011) has been 

appealed in its entirety; therefore, the existing Mississauga Plan 
(2003) remains in effect. While the existing Mississauga Plan 
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(2003) is the plan of record against which the applications are 

being reviewed, regard should also be given to the new 
Mississauga Official Plan (2011). 

The new Mississauga Official Plan (2011) designates the site 

"Residential Low Density II", which permits detached and semi­

detached dwellings and street townhouses, with no maximum 
density regulations. The proposed amendment to "Residential 

Medium Density" to permit townhouses on a common element 

condominium private road is considered an appropriate 
amendment as townhouses are a petmitted use; however it is the 

tenure from freehold to condominium that distinguishes the 

different official plan designations. 

Zoning 

The proposed "RM6-Exception" (Townhouse Dwellings on a 

CEC - Private Road) zone as shown in Appendix S-l is appropriate 

subject to the following revisions to accommodate the proposed 

development of 104 townhouse dwellings on a common element 

condominium private road. 

Since the Public Meeting, revisions have been made to the plan 

and proposed zoning that should be implemented through the 

exception zone proposed for the lands. The revisions include the 

following: 

• visitor parking shall be provided in accordance with the 
"RM6" zoning by-law standard of 0.25 spaces/dwelling; 

• the rear yards abutting the dwellings fronting on Weir 
Chase shall be a minimum of 8.3 m (27.2 ft.); 

• the minimum setback to CEC visitor parking shall be 2.0 m 

(6.5 ft.); 

• the minimum exterior side yard to a CEC private road shall 

be 2.6 m (8.5 ft.). 
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Through the site plan approval process, staff requires that a private 

amenity space be provided as part of any developments in excess 

of 20 residential units. Given the proximity of this site to Garcia 

Park, the applicant has requested an exemption from the private 

amenity space requirement and is instead proposing improvements 
to the park, including an expanded children's play area, shade 

structure, benches and additional plantings. Appendix S-6 

illustrates the proposed park improvements. In consultation 

with the community, Ward 6 Councillor Ron Starr has indicated a 
preference for improvements to Garcia Park that will provide a 

benefit to the neighbourhood. 

Community Services staff have reviewed the proposal and advise 

that the proposed park improvements can be accommodated within 

Garcia Park. The applicant will be responsible for all expenses 

associated with the proposed park improvements, all of which is to 
be undertaken at no expense to the City. 

Draft Plan of Subdivision 

The proposed plan of subdivision was reviewed by City 

Departments and agencies and is acceptable subject to certain 

conditions as outlined in Appendix S-7. 

Since the lands are the subject of a Draft Plan of Subdivision under 

File T-MI1004 W6, development will be subject to the completion 
of services and registration of the plan. 

Development charges will be payable in keeping with the 

requirements of the applicable Development Charges By-law of 

the City as well as financial requirements of any other official 

agency concerned with the development of the lands. 

The park improvements proposed by the applicant will be fully 

their responsibility and none of the work will be at any expense to 

the City. 
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In accordance with subsection 34(17) of the Planning Act, R.S.O. 

1990, c.P. 13, as amended, Council is given authority to determine 

if further public notice is required. Since the modifications to the 

Concept Plan are minor, it is recommended that no further public 

meeting need be held regarding the proposed changes. 

The proposed Official Plan Amendment, rezoning and draft plan of 

subdivision are acceptable from a plauning standpoint and should 

be approved for the following reasons: 

1. The proposal for 104 townhouses on a CEC private road 

represents a development that is compatible with the 

surrounding land uses and provides appropriate setbacks to 
existing land uses. 

2. The proposed "Medium Density I" designation and "RM6 -

Exception" zoning are appropriate to accommodate the 
requested I 04 townhouses on a CEC private road meets the 

intent, goals and objectives of the Official Plan. 

3. The proposed Draft Plan of Subdivision provides for an 
efficient use of land and services and results in the orderly 

development of the lands at an appropriate density and scale. 

Appendix S-I: Information Report 

Appendix S-2: Recommendation PDC-0012-2012 
Appendix S-3: Revised Concept Plan 

Appendix S-4: Revised Draft Plan of Subdivision 

Appendix S-5: Revised Rear Elevations 
Appendix S-6: Proposed Garcia Park Improvements 

Appendix S-7: Conditions of Draft Plan Approval 

Edward R. Sajecki 

Commissioner of Planning and Building 

Prepared By: Diana Rusnov, Development Manager 
f,:LANIDEVCONTLIGROUPIWPDAT AICOUNCILlozII007 _tmll004 wppceport.dmft.duodoc 
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Clerk's Files 

Originator's 

FilesOZ 111007 W6 
T-Ml1004 W6 

Chair and Members ofPlanning and Development Committee 
Meeting Date: February 13,2012 

Edward R. Sajecki 
Commissioner of Planning and Building 

Information Report 
Official Plan Amendment, Rezoning and Draft Pian of 
Subdivision Applications 
To permit 104 townhouse dwellings on a CEC private road 

5881 Creditview Road 

East side of Creditveiw Road, south of Britannia Road 

Owner/Applicant: National Homes (Creditview) Inc. 

Bill 51 

Public Meeting Ward 6 

RECOMMENDATION: That the Reportdated January 24, 2012, from the Commissioner of 

Planning and Building regarding applications to amend the Official 

Plan from "Residential Low Density II" to "Residential Medium 
Density I" and to change the Zoning from "RM2" (Semi-Detached 

Dwellings) to "RM6-Exception" (Townhouse Dwellings on a CEC 

- Private Road), under file OZ 111007 W6 and Draft Plan of 
Subdivision application, under T-MI1004 W6, to permit 104 

townhouse dwellings on a CEC private road, National Homes 

(Creditview) Inc., 5881 Creditview Road, be received for 

information. 
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.BACKGROUND: 

COMMENTS: 

The above-noted applications have been circulated for technical 

co=ents and a co=unity meeting has been held. . 

The purpose of this report is to provide preliminary information on 

the applications and to seek comments from the community. 

Details of the proposal are as follows: 

Development Proposal 
Applications . 
submitted: June 1, 2011 

App1icatio~ 

complete: June 21,2011 
Applications 

revised: November 28, 2011 
Existing Gross 1 420 m" (15,285.3 sq. ft.) - to be 

Floor Area: demolished 

Height: 3 storeys 

Lot Coverage: 38 % 

Landscaped 
Area: 34% 

Net Density: 52.4 unitslha 
21.2 units/acre 

Proposed Gross 

Floor Area: 20530.5 m2 (220,995.7 sq. ft.) 

Number of 

units: 104 

Auticipated 312* 

Population: * Average household sizes for all units 
(by type) for the year 2011 (city average) 

based on the 2008 Growth Forecasts for 

the City of Mississauga. 

Parking Resident: 208 @ 2.0 spaces/unit 
Required: Visitor: 26 @ 0.25 spaces/unit 

Total: 234 
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Development Proposal . 

Parking Resident: 208 @ 2.0 spaces/unit 

Provided: Visitor: 25 @ 0.24 spaces/unit 

Total: 233 

Supporting Planning Justification Report 

Documents: Functional Servicing Report 

Phase 1 ESA 

Record of Site Condition 

Traffic Impact Study 

Acoustical Feasibility Study 

Arborist Report 

Parcel Registry Documentation 

Concept Plan & Elevations 

Draft Plan of Subdivision & Layout Plan 

Tree Plan Inventory 

Tree Preservation and Removal Plan 

Utility Plans 

Site Servicing & Grading Plan and Cross 

Sections 

Site Characteristics 

Frontage: 128.97 m(423.l ft.) 

Depth: 154.79 m(507.8 ft.) 

Net Lot Area: 1.9864 ha (4.9 ac.) 

Existing Use: Place of worship 

Green Development Initiatives 

The applicant has identified that green development initiatives will 

be addressed through building technologies and energy efficient 

choices including the following: low flow toilettes, low flow 

shower heads, rough in for grey water recycling, power pipe 

energy recycling, energy star appliances, select green building 

materials and by achieving a minimum Energuide 80 Standard. 

Additional info=ation is.provided in Appendices I-I to I-II. 
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Neighbourhood Context 

The subject property is located in the East Credit District within an 

established residential neighbourhood. The surrounding area is 

characterized by a mix of detached, semi-detached and townhouse 

dwellings. The site is presently occupied by the Harvest Family 

Church, a place of worship building constructed in 1990. The site 

is generally flat, with significant landscaping, hard surface parking 

and mature trees. 

The surrounding land uses are described as follows: 

North: Townhouse dwellings ~.' 

East: Detached dwellings and Garcia Park 

South: Detached and semi-detached dwellings 

West: Beyond Creditview Road, detached dwellings 

Current Mississauga Plan Designation and Policies for East 
Credit (May S, 2003) 

"Residential- Low Density II" which permits detached, semi­

detached and street townhouse dwellings within a density range of 

18 to 30 units per net residential hectare (7.3 to 12.1 units per net 

residential acre). The applications are not in conformity with the 

existing land use designation. The proposed co=on element 

condominium townhouse dwellings are not permitted and the 

proposed density exceeds the range identified within the 

"Residential - Low Density II" designation. 

There are other policies in the Official Plan which also are 

applicable in the review of these applications including: 

Urban Design Policies 

Section 3.18.2.4 - Building and site design will be compatible with 

site conditions, the surrounding context, features and surrQunding 

landscape and the intended character of the area 
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Section 3 .18.2.5 - Building, landscaping and site design will create 

visual and functional relationships between individual buildings, 

groups of buildings and open spaces. 

Residential Policies 

Section 3.13.5.1 - Lands designated for residential purposes, 

outside .intensification areas, will not be the focus for 

intensification and should be regarded as stable residential areas 

where the existing character is to be preserved. 

Section 3.13.5.3 - Intensification outside intensification areas may 

be considered where the proposed development is compatible in 

built form and scale to surrounding development, enhances the 

existing or planned development and is consistent with the policies 

of this Plan. 

Criteria for Site Specific Official Plan Amendments 

Section 5.3.2 of :M::ississauga Plan contains criteria which requires 

an applicant to submit satisfactory planning reports to demonstrate 

the rationale for the proposed amendment as follows: 

• the proposal would not adversely impact or destabilize the 

following: the overall intent, goals and objectives of the 

Official Plan; and the development and functioning of the 

remaining lands which have the same designation, or 

neighbouring lands; 

• the lands are suitable for the proposed uses, and compatible 

with existing and future uses of surrounding lands; 

• there is adequate infrastructure and community services to 

support the proposed development. 
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Mississauga Official Plan (2011) was adopted by City Council on 

September 29, 2010 and partially approved by the Region on 

September 22, 2011. Mississauga Official Plan (2011) has been 

appealed in its entirety and, as such, the existing Mississauga f'lan 

(2003) remains in effect. The applications were originally 

submitted under the previous Official Plan which is the current 

plan in effect, but regard should be given to the new Mississauga 

Official Plan. The applicant is aware of the status of the City's 

new Mississauga Official Plan which designates the subject lands 

as "Residential Low Density II" . 

Proposed Official Plan Designation 

"Residential Medium Density I" to permit 104 townhouse 

dwellings on a CEC - private road with a density of 52.4 units per 

net residential hectare (21.2 units per net residential acre). 

Existing Zoning 

"RM2" (Semi-Detached Dwellings), which permits detached 

dwellings in accordance with the "R5" zone regulations and semi­

detached dwellings with minimum 6.8 m (22.3 ft.) lot frontage. 

Proposed Zoning By-law Amendment 

"RM6-Exception" (Townhouse Dwelling on CEC - Private 
Road), to permit 104 townhouse dwellings. 

As part of the rezoning, the applicant is proposing that standards be 

applied in accordance with Appendix 1-10. 

COMMUNITY ISSUES 

A co=unity meeting was held by Ward 6 Councillor, Ron Starr 

on November 7,2011. 
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The following is a summary of issues raised by the community at 

the meeting: 

• The possibility of traffic congestion on adjacent roads as a 

result of the development; 

• Visitor parking gravitating to off-site locations; 

• Units are too tall; 

• Privacy impacts on existing units to the south and east; 

• Too many units; 

• Will exacerbate existing capacity issues at local schools; 

• Adjacent Garcia Park is already over-utilized; 

• Noise, dust and odburimpacts will occur during construction; 

• Garcia Park closure during park upgrade; and, 

• Construction timeframes. 

DEVELOPMENT ISSUES 

Agency comments are summarized in Appendix 1-8 and school 

accommodation info=ation is contained in Appendix 1-9. Based 
on the comments received and the applicable Mississauga Plan 

policies the following matters will have to be addressed: 

Communal Amenity Area 

The proposed development is required to accommodate a 520 m2 

(5,597.4 sq. ft.) communal amenity area on-site to meet City 

standards. In response to this requirement, the applicant is 

proposing a financial contribution to the City to maintain or 

upgrade the facilities within Garcia Park, abutting to the east. 
Details pertaining to the proposed contributions have not been 

provided to date. 

Site Layout and Development Standards 

The concept plan (Appendix 1-5) depicts noise attenuation barriers 

to protect the rear yard amenity areas of the units flanking 

Creditview Road. The noise fences have been shown on a buffer 

block to be conveyed to the City. The City will not take ownership 
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FINANCIAL IMP ACT: 

CONCLUSION: 

of these barriers or be responsible for their long te= maintenance 

and as such, the plans must be revised to include the barriers on a 

co=on element block to be owned and maintained by the 

condominium corporation. Townhouse blocks adjacent to the 

co=on element block, on which the noise barriers are located 

shall be setback an appropriate distance to acco=odate rear yard 

access, drainage and servicing requirements within the privately 

held lands. 

Additional co=ents have been provided to the applicant 

pertaining to the appropriateness of the proposed "RM6-
Exception" zone standards, layout and configuration of the 

co=on element and townhouse blocks, on-site pedestrian 

connections and location of the co=unity mailbox. These matters 

must be resolved prior to the preparation of a Supplementary 

Report. 

OTHER INFORMATION 

Development Requirements 

In conjunction with the proposed development, there are certain 

other engineering and conservation matters with respect to 

sto=water management and easement requirements which will 

require the applicant to enter into the appropriate agreements with 

the City, the details of which will be dealt with during the 

processing of the plan of subdivision. 

Development charges will be payable in keeping with the 

requirements of the applicable Development Charges By-law of 

the City as well as financial requirements of any other official 

agency concerned with the development of the lands. 

All agency and City,department co=ents have been received and 

after the public meeting has been held and all issues are resolved, 

the Planning and Building Department will be in a position to 

make a reco=endation regarding these applications, 
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ATTACHMENTS: Appendix I-I: Site History 
Appendix 1-2: Aerial Photograph 
Appendix 1-3: Excerpt of East Credit District Land Use Map 
Appendix 1-4: Excerpt of Existing Land Use Map 

Appendix 1-5: Concept Plan 
Appendix 1-6: Draft Plan of Subdivision 
Appendix 1-7: Elevations 
Appendix 1-8: Agency Co=ents 
Appendix 1-9: School Acco=cidation 
Appendix 1-10: Proposed Zone Standards 
Appendix I-II: General Context Map 

Edward R. Sajecki 
Commissioner of Planning and Building 

Prepared By.' John Hardcastle, Development Planner 

~:\PLAN\DEVCONTL\GROUP\WPDATA\PDCI\OZll007 and t·mII004 mio reportjltdr.doclfw 
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National Homes (Creditview) Inc. File: OZ 11/007 W6 and T·M11004 W6 

Site History 

• January 26, 1966 - The Ontario Municipal Board approved the City of Mississauga 
C=prehensive Zoning By-law 5500. The subject lands are zoned "A" (Agricultural). 

• . April 5, 1988 -lvfutistry of Municipal Affairs and Housing approved the modified East 
Credit Secondary Plan. The subj ect lands are designated "Residential Low Density II", 

permitting detached, semi-detached and other types of freehold dwellings. 

• July 26, 1988 - Site Plan Application SP 243/86 was approved to permit the 
construction of a place of worship. 

• June 20, 2007 - Zoning By-law 0225-2007 came into force except for those sites 

which have been appealed. As no appeals have been filed the provisions of the new 

By-law apply. The subject lands are zoned "RM2" (Semi-Detached Dwellings). 
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Appendix 1-8 Page 1 

National Homes (Creditview) Inc. File: OZ 111007 W6 and T-Mll004 W6 

Agency Comments 

The following is a summary of comments from agencies and departments regarding the 

applications. 

I Agency f Comment Date I Comment 

Region of Peel Curbside waste collection will be provided by the Region of 
(January 11, 2012) Peel. Municipal sanitary sewers consist of a 250 mm (lOin.) 

diameter sanitary sewer along Evenstarr Court which will 
require an extension to the site. Water facilities consist of a 
300 mm (12 in.) diameter wate=ain located on Creditview 
Road which will require looping along the private CEC private 
road within proposed development. 

The developer will be required to enter into a Condominium 
Water Servicing Agreement with the local Municipality and 
Region for the construction of sewer and water associated with 
the lands. These services will be constructed and designed in 
accordance with the latest Region standards and requirements. 

The applicant shall grant/obtain (at no cost to the Region) all 
necessary easements for proposed! existing Regional 
infrastructure located in the vicinity of the proposed 
development. 

The developer is to provide a revised Functional Servicing 
Report addressing comments provided by the Region of Peel in 
July 2011 prior to approval. 

The Dufferin-Peel Catholic The Peel District School Board indicated that there is no 
District School Board and available capacity to accommodate students generated by these 
the Peel District School applications. Accordingly, the Board has requested that in the 
Board event that the applications are approved, the standard school 
(December 13, 20 II and accommodation condition in accordance with City of 
December 15,2011) Mississauga Resolution 152-98, adopted by Council on 

May 27, 1998 be applied. 

The Dufferin-Peel Catholic District School Board responded 
that they are satisfied with the current provision of educational 

"" ...-'_- . facilities for the catchment area and, as such, the school 
accommodation condition as required by City of Mississauga 

I 
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National Homes (Creditview) Inc. File: OZ 111007 W6 and T -Mll004 W6 

f Comment Date Comment 

Council Resolution 152-98 pertaining to satisfactory 
arrangements regarding the adequate provision and distribution 
of educational facilities need not be applied for these 
development applications. 

Among other things, this condition requires that a Bill 51 
development application include the following as a condition 
of approval: 

"Prior to final approval, the City of Mississauga shall be 
advised by the School Boards that satisfactory arrangements 
regarding the adequate provision and distribution of 
educational facilities have been made between the 
developer/applicant and the School Board for this plan." 

The developer shall agree to erect and maintain signs at the 
entrances to this development which shall advise prospective 
purchasers that due to present school facilities, some of the 
children from this development may have to be acco=odated 
in temporary facilities or bussed to schools, according to the 
Board's Transportation Policy. 

City Co=unity Services Garcia Park (P-446) is adjacent to the subject property, this 
Department - park contains a play site, two minor soccer fields, park 
Planning, Development and pathways and a parking lot. 
Business Services 
DivisionfPark Planning To provide a more direct public pedestrian connection between 
Section the subj ect lands and the park, access by way of an easement to 
(January 6, 2012) be registered in favour of the City over the subj ect lands will 

be required; 

As identified in the Functional Servicing Report (May, 2011), 
a storm water sewer connection is proposed within Garcia 
Park. Should this application be approved, fencing, protective 
hoarding, and associated securities for the adjacent park will be 
required. Arrangements will be made to secure for any clean-
up and reinstatement works that may be required within the 
adjacent park. 

Prior to registration of plan of subdivision, a cash contribution 
for street tree planting will be required. Further, prior to the 
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National Homes (Creditview) Inc. File: OZ 111007 W6 and T-Mll004 W6 

Agency I Comment Date Comment 

issuance of building permits, cash-in-lieu for park or other 
public recreational purposes is required pursuant to Section 42 
of the Planning Act (R.S.O. 1990, c.P. 13, as amended) and in 
accordance with City's Policies and By-laws. 

City Transportation and The applicant is to revise the supporting materials to illustrate 
Works Department appropriate acoustical barriers and buffer blocks along 
(January 12, 2012) Creditview Road and increase the separation distance between 

the parking arealback of the curb and Blocks 5, 8, 11 and 14. 
A 1.5 m (4.9 ft.) sidewalk will be required adjacent to the 
easterly limits of Blocks 5 and 8 to facilitate a pedestrian 
connection from the units on the southerly limit of the plan to 
the amenity area for the development located within the park to 
the north east. All plans and details are to be consistent with 
one another. 

The Traffic Analysis and the Record of Site Condition are 
currently under review. Further detailed comments/conditions 
will be provided prior to the preparation of the Supplementary 
Report, pending receipt and review of the foregoing. 

GTAA The 104 CEC townhouse dwellings proposed for the site at 
(December 19, 2011) 5881 Creditview Road in Mississauga, are within the allowable 

height limits associated with the Regulations. 

Bell Canada Satisfactory provisions within the agreement shall be provided 
(August 22, 2011) granting Bell Canada any easements that may be required for 

telecommunication services. In the event of any conflict with 
existing Bell Canada facilities or easements, the owner/ 
developer shall be responsible for the relocation of such 
facilities or easements. 

Bell Canada requires one or more conduit or conduits of 
sufficient size from each unit to the IOom( s) in which the 
telecommunication facilities are situated and one or more 
conduits from the IOom(s) in which the telecommunication 
facilities are located to the street line. 
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National Homes (Creditview) Inc. File: OZ 11/007 W6 and T-Ml1004 W6 

I Agency / Comment Date 

Other City Departments and 
External Agencies 

I Comment 

The following City Departments and external agencies offered 
no objection to these applications provided that all technical 
matters are addressed in a satisfactory manner: -

City Co=unity Services Department - Culture Division 
City Co=unity Services Department - Fire and Emergency 
Services 
City Economic Development Office 
Canada Post Corporation 
Enersource Hydro Mississauga 
Enbridge Gas Distribution 
Credit Valley Hospital 

The following City Departments and external agencies were 
circulated the applications but provided no co=ents: 

. City Realty Services 
Peel Regional Police 
Hydro One Networks Inc. 
Conseil Scolaire de District Catholique Centre-Sud 
Conseil Scolaire de District Centre-Sud-Ouest 
Rogers Cable 
Trillium Hospital 
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National Homes (Creditview) Inc. File: OZ 11/007 W6 and T-Mll004 W6 

School Accommodation 

The Peel District School Board 
The Dufferin-Peel Catholic District School 
Board 

• Student Yield: • Student Yield: 

25 Killdergarten to Grade 5 7 Junior Killdergarten to Grade 8 
13 Grade 6 to Grade 8 3 Grade 9 to Grade 12/0AC 
17 Grade 9 to Grade 12/0AC 

• School Accommodation: • School Accommodation: 

Whitehorn Public School St. Raymond 

Enrolment: 720 Enrolment: 625 
Capacity: 650 Capacity: 627 
Portables: 0 Portables: 0 

Fallingbrook Middle School St. Joseph 

Enrolment: 760 Enrolment: 1757 
Capacity: 315 Capacity: 1269 
Portables: 6 Portables: 22 

Rick Hansen Secondary School 

Enrolment: 1,950 
Capacity: 1,725 
Portables: 6 

* Note: Capacity reflects the Ministry of 
Education rated capacity, not the Board rated 
capacity, resulting in the requirement of 
portables. 
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National Homes (Creditview) Inc. File: OZ 11/007 W6 and T-Ml1004 W6 

Proposed Zone Standards 

"RM6" Required Proposed "RM6-
Zoning By-law Exception" 
Standard Standard 

Visitor Parking 0.25 spaces/dwelling 0.24 spaces/dwelling 

Minimum Lot Area - 190 m" (2,045 sq. ft.) 179.9m" 

Comer Lot (1,936.5 sq. ft.) 
MinimumLot Frontage- 8.3 m (27.2 ft.) 6.45 m (21 ft.) 
Comer Lot 

Minimum Exterior Side 7.5 m (24.6 ft.) 4.5 ill (14.8 ft.) 
Yard - Creditview Road 

Minimum Exterior Side 4.5 ill (14.8 ft.) 2.45 ill (8 ft.) 
Yard - CEC Private Road 

Minimum Interior Side Yard 1.5 m (4.9 ft.) 1.2 ill (3.9 ft.) 
-Unattached Side 

Minimum Rear Yard 7.5 m (24.6 ft.) 7.0 ill (23 ft.) 
Setback 

Minimum Setback to CEC 3.3 ill (10.8 ft.) 1.3 ill (4.3 ft.) 
Visitor Parking 
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Recommendation PDC-0012-2012 
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Appendix S-2 

Files: OZ 111007 W6 
T-Ml1004 W6 

"I. That the Report dated January 24, 2012, from the Connnissioner of Planning and Building 

regarding applications to amend the Official Plan from "Residential Low Density II" to 

"Residential Medium Density I" and to change the Zoning from "RM2" (Semi-Detached 

Dwellings) to "RM6-Exception" (Townhouse Dwellings on a CEC - Private Road), under 

file OZ 111007 W6 and Draft Plan of Subdivision application, under T-Mll 004 W6, to 

permit 104 townhouse dwellings on a CEC private road, National Homes (Creditview) Inc., 

5881 Creditview Road, be received for information and, notwithstanding Planning Protocol, 

that the Supplementary Report be brought directly to a future Council meeting. 

2. That the following correspondences be received: 

(a) Email dated February 3,2012, from Gina Manenella 

(b) Email dated February 9, 2012, from Vince De Angelis 

(c) Email and attachments dated February 9, 2012, from Cheryl Yetter 

(d) Email dated February II, 2012, from Cecilia C. 

(e) Email dated February 13, 2012, from Mihir Shah 

(f) Email dated February 13,2012,fromSaturninaD'sa" 
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FILE: 

SUBJECT: 

SCHEDULE A 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

T-Mll004 W6 

Draft Plan of Subdivision 

APPENDIX S-7 

Part of Lot 5, Concession 3, West of Hurontario Street 
East side of Creditview Road, south of Britannia Road 
West 
5881 Creditview Road 
City of Mississauga 
National Homes (Creditview) Inc. 

Approval of a draft plan of subdivision granted under Section 51 of tbe Planning Act, R.S.O. 
1990, C.P .13, as amended, will be valid until approval is either withdrawn or tbe plan is 
registered. Approval may be withdrawn by tbe Commissioner, Planning and Building 
Department if approval of tbe final plan has not been given three (3) years after the date of 
approval of the draft plan. 

NOTE: City is "The Corporation of the City of Mississauga" 
Region is "The Regional Municipality of Peel" 

The City has not required either tbe dedication of land for park or otber public recreational 
purposes, or a payment of money in lieu of such conveyance as a condition of subdivision draft 
approval autborized by Section 51.1 of the Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, c.P.13, as amended. The 
City will require payment of cash-in-lieu for park or other public recreational purposes as a 
condition of development for each lot and block, prior to the issuance of building permits 
pursuant to Section 42(6) of the Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, c.P.l3, as amended, and in 
accordance with tbe City's policies and by-laws. 

1.0 Approval of the draft plan applies to tbe plan dated April 18, 2012. 

2.0 That the owner agree, in writing, to satisfy all tbe requirements, financial and otherwise 
of the City and tbe Region. 

3.0 That the applicant/owner shall enter into Servicing, Development and any other necessary 
agreements, satisfactory to the City, Region or any other appropriate authority, prior to 
ANY development within the plan. These agreements may deal witb matters including, 
but not limited to, the following: engineering matters such as municipal services, road 
widenings, construction and reconstruction, signals, grading, fencing, noise mitigation, 
and warning clauses; financial issues, such as cash contributions, levies (development 
charges), land dedications or reserves, securities, or letters of credit; planning matters 
such as residential reserve blocks, buffer blocks, site development plan and landscape 
plan approvals and conservation. THE DETAILS OF THESE REOUIREMENTS ARE CONTAINED 
IN COMMENTS IN RESPONSE TO THE CIRCULATION OF THE PLAN FROM AUTHORITIES, 
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Conditions of Approval 

T-Ml1004 W6 
Page 2 

AGENCIES, AND DEPARTMENTS OF THE CITY AND REGION WHICH HAVE BEEN FORWARDED 

TO THE APPLICANT OR HIS CONSULTANTS, AND WHICH COMMENTS FORM PART OF THESE 

CONDITIONS, 

4,0 All processing and administrative fees shall be paid prior to the registration of the plan, 
Such fees will be charged at prevailing rates of approved City and Regional Policies and 
By-laws on the day of payment. 

5,0 The applicant/owner shall agree to convey/dedicate, gratuitously, any required road or 
highway widenings, 0,3 m (1 ft,) reserves, walkways, sight triangles, buffer blocks and 
utility or drainage easements to the satisfaction of the City, Region or other authority, 

6,0 The applicant/owner shall provide all outstanding reports, plans or studies required by 
agency and departmental comments, 

7,0 That a Zoning By-law for the development of these lands shall have been passed under 
Section 34 of the Planning Act, RS,O, 1990, c,P,13, as amended, and be in full force and 
effect prior to registration of the plan, 

8,0 That in accordance with CPD Resolution 0121-91, that a minimum of three car spaces 
per dwelling, including those in a garage be required and a minimum of 0,25 visitor 
parking space per dwelling be required on the street for the subj ect development. 

9,0 The proposed streets shall be named to the satisfaction of the City and the Region, In this 
regard, a list of street names shall be submitted to the City Transportation and Works 
Department as soon as possible after draft plan approval has been received and prior to 
any servicing submissions, The owner is advised to refer to the Region of Peel Street 
Names Index to avoid proposing street names which conflict with the approved or 
existing street names on the basis of duplication, spelling, pronunciation, and similar 
sounding, 

10,0 Prior to final approval, the Engineer is required to submit, to the satisfaction of the 
Region, all engineering drawings in Micro'Station format as set out in the latest version 
ofthe Region of Peel "Development Procedure Manual", 

11,0 Prior to final approval or preservicing, the developer will be required to monitor wells, 
subject to the homeowner's permission, within the zone of influence, and to submit 
results to the satisfaction of the Region, 

12,0 Prior to preservicing and/or execution of the Servicing Agreement, the developer shall 
name to the satisfaction of the City Transportation and Works Department the 
telecommunications provider. 

13,0 Prior to execution of the Servicing Agreement, the developer must submit in writing, 
evidence to the Commissioner of the City Transportation and Works Department, that 
satisfactory arrangements have been made with the telecommunications provider, Cable 
TV and Hydro for the installation of their plant in a common trench, within the prescribed 
location on the road allowance, 



Conditions of Approval 
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Page 3 

14.0 Prior to the registration of the plan of subdivision, satisfactory arrangements shall have 
been made with the Park Planning Section of the Community Services Department with 
respect to the conveyance of easements for public pedestrian access, connecting the lands 
to be redeveloped to the park (Garcia Park) located to the east. 

15.0 Prior to the registration of the plan of subdivision, satisfactory arrangements shall have 
been made with the Park Planning Section of the Community Services Department for 
the execution of a Parks Development Agreement with respect to the detail design of the 
park improvements for Garcia Park and securities related to this work. 

16.0 That prior to signing of the final plan, the Commissioner of Planning and Building is to 
be advised that all of the above noted conditions have been carried out to the satisfaction 
of the appropriate agencies and the City. 

THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE CITY WILL BE EFFECTIVE FOR THIRTY­
SIX (36) MONTHS FROM THE DATE THE CONDITIONS ARE APPROVED BY 
THE COMMISSIONER, PLANNING AND BUILDING DEPARTMENT. AFTER 
THIS DATE REVISED CONDITIONS WILL BE REQUIRED. 
NOTWITHSTANDING THE SERVICING REQUIREMENTS MENTIONED IN 
SCHEDULE A, CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL, THE STANDARDS IN EFFECT 
AT THE TIME OF REGISTRATION OF THE PLAN WILL APPLY. 

K:\PLAN\DEVCONTL\GROUP\WPDATA\SUBCOND\tml1004 SUBCOND2 Clty only supp appendix.doc 



DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

Corporate 
Report 

May 9, 2012 

Mayor and Members of Council 
Meeting Date: May 23, 2012 

Janice M. Baker, FCA 

Clerk's Files 

Originator's 
Flies 

City Manager and Chief Administrative Officer 

COUNCIL AGENDA 

HAY 2 32012 

SUBJECT: Our Future Mississauga 2011 Progress Report 

RECOMMENDATION: That the report titled "Our Future Mississauga 2011 Progress 

Report", dated May 9, 2011 from the City Manager and Chief 

Administrative Officer be received for information. 

BACKGROUND: In June 2007 Council approved "Our Future Mississauga - Be part of 

the conversation". This was an initiative to engage the community, 
Council, City leadership and staff in a conversation about what 
Mississauga needed to do to become a great city for the 21 5t century. 

The purpose of the project was to set the frarnework for the update to 

the Strategic Plan, with an emphasis on creating a detailed, action­

oriented and financially prudent plan to make Mississauga a vibrant, 
healthy and sustainable city for the 21 5t century. The initiative 

connected with over 100,000 people who shared their ideas on how to 
make Mississauga an even better city to live, learn, work and play. 

On April 22, 2009 Council endorsed the Strategic Plan titled "Our 

Future Mississauga". Part of the Plan included a commitment to report 

back annually to the community and Council in a Progress Report that 

outlined the actions that had been taken each year to advance the 
Strategic Plan. 
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Council 

COMMENTS: 

-2- May 9, 2012 

A number of successes continue to be realized following the approval 

of the Strategic Plan. Eighty-two (82) actions are currently underway 

with some significant actions having been completed since the launch 
in 2005. These initiatives demonstrate the City's commitment to 

achieving the goals described in the Plan and provide incentive to 

continue building on the goals expressed in the Plan. 

The following is a list of strategic actions launched or completed in 

2011 as described in the 2011 Progress Report attached (Appendix 1): 

Pillar Action 

Move Accessible Transit Fleet; Hurontario-Main LRT 

project; Presto; Cycling Master Plan implementation; 

Paid Parking; Transit Priority 

Belong Top Employer for Young People; Top Employer for 
New Canadians; Sheridan College; IIFA "Buzz" 

Location; Housing Choices 

Connect Infrastructure Stimulus Fund and Recreational 
Infrastructure Canada projects; Inspiration Lakeview 

Vision 

Prosper Port Credit Culture Node; Action Plan for Innovation 
in Mississauga; International Marketing Strategy 

Green Living Green Master Plan; 8ill place on WWF's Earth 

Hour List; Energy Reduction programs; Renewable 
Energy; District Energy 

In 2011 work was done as part of the Business Plan process to refine 

and revise the actions in the Action Plan as necessary. This fulfills the 
commitment to the community and Council to maintain the Action 

Plan as an up to date document reflecting the changing needs of the 
community. The Action Plan charts (found in the original Action Plan 

document and updated last year) have been updated with 2011 

progress and will continue to be updated annually in order for the 
information to remain current. The information on each action in the 

Action Plan will be available on the Strategic Plan website following 

Council on May 23,2012. 

The full details of what was accomplished in 2011 will be contained in 
an interactive and dynamic website. The revised format is in line with 
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STRATEGIC PLAN: 
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- 3 - May 9, 2012 

best practices and feedback that was gathered during the recent 

Connnunications Master Plan consultation. The website will be more 
user-friendly and accessible as well as serve as a source of information 

on all aspects ofthe Strategic Plan. A downloadable text only version 

containing the written text of the progress report will be available in a 
printable format from the website. It will contain all of the same 20 II 

Progress Report information as the website, but without photos or 

graphics, for those who wish to have a printed version of the content. 

A summary version of the report will also be available on the website 
and in print (Appendix 1). These two publications were compiled in 

the same way as in previous years and demonstrate the commitment to 

being extensive, inclusive and transparent that was established with 

the connnunity during Our Future Mississauga. 

Following the May 23, 2012 presentation to Council, a brief summary 

of our 20 II successes including a link to the website will be circulated 
to Council. This summary may be used in newsletters or websites if 

desired by individual Councillors. 

In addition to the Progress Report being available on the website, the 
2011 Highlights Report will also be available. The 2011 Highlights 

Report (Appendix 2) outlines 2011 Corporate Awards and the City'S 

key achievements organized by the Business Plan Priority areas of 
Delivering Existing Services, Implementing the Strategic Plan, 

Delivering Value for Money, Maintaining our Infrastructure and 

Healthy and Productive Workplace. The City has been producing this 

report since 1994 to highlight corporate accomplishments achieved 
during the preceding year. Later this summer, the Financial Report 

will be available on the website as well. This family of reports provide 

a comprehensive look at the City's achievements. Posting all three on 

the website is in keeping with how the reports were made available in 
2009. 

The positive change resulting from the Strategic Plan can be seen all 

around as Mississauga continues to attract people, employment and 

opportunities. The Strategic Plan made a commitment during its 

initial presentation to monitor progress and keep the Plan on track by 

producing an annual Progress Report. The 2011 Progress Report is the 

third annual document that maintains the connnitment to the 



R-3Cc,) 
Council - 4 - May 9, 2012 

community and Council. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Not applicable. 

CONCLUSION: The Strategic Plan has made notable progress since being approved by 

Council in 2009. The Progress Report outlines the top achievements in 

2011 and fulfills the commitment that was made to the community to 

report back aunually on the Plan's progress. Achievements such as 

recognition through awards, the continued level of public engagement 
on strategic projects and the ongoing monitoring of actions through 

the Business Planning process all demonstrate the positive impact the 

Plan has had on the community. With four projects completed within 
three years of the Plan's approval and actions underway in every 

Strategic Pillar, the Plan is playing a key role in decision making, 

priority setting and city building. As the city continues to grow and 

evolve the objectives and actions in the Strategic Plan will continue to 
inspire and challenge us to be a great 21 5t century global city. 

ATTACHMENTS: Appendix 1: Executive Summary 
Appendix 2: Highlights Report 

rty Manager and Chief Administrative Officer 

Prepared By: Gary Kent 

Director, City Strategy and Innovations 
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'or b'~<itr of cou~~ii an~j~'EfGity',s, Leade'~hip + 8;am,' it i;'-~t Plea;;~:to W_81;fth'~"Ctty Of_ MiSSiss¥ill;;~'~:201, 1 '-BChi~~nl~ in:~~i$ annUciI 
Hlghlig,hts'RejJbrt>TI1es'? ,examples or.,6tJr suCIJ~~ ejernons,UB.te 1h:l ()1:ty:S, cprnmitment 10 8xcelieriCe: and:ildvanclil jIle,.Qity's ,201:1'-,2014 
BW;>iness PlartprJortlle,s.' As we ,deliver on DUr pnoritles, we,are,carefullQ'strl~ ~ palance',betweet:l S€rvice exp9ctatlohs,and':1ispal:r9$.tnt 

APPENDIX 2 

It~~"i~portantiha;twa:re,fie~_p,a6~:~~ 01Jr;awjfhpii~h~ents ,~s:4 coJltinLi~t~)iJnd:~,'strpng,iiict vi~'bity: iOl1: Wa,S a_b~ilei:Year ~ ': 
jIi1issrssauga. Fo~'9XElmpte", We-savv the_completion and, op~ning:0f 15$ JnfreslrDo\Ure,Stilll_ulus-Fund 9Sf) ,~nd R~rea~onal ltlfrastrLioture"Caii3dit_ 
(R1re) projecls; MiWay. the ~,~'~!nnin~,'brar:id,frn::transil serviQe:. 'beCaJl)8 J;r h?ys~pld :':1'9'9: aBh8rtd,an p:illege cal1Jpu,s',op~~e? In, d?'Vntown ' 
Missfssauga: we Go)l1inU):ld 10 ~Qd sav[ng~,lbr:ough opera:tronai,efllcie;ln,cles 9DCt pai1n!i>rships:,-a,nd (eSpect ior our environment vvas DJgh mOYf'radar. 

We 'el~oJ9poit:anhUally on, clUr):iro~resS'o( {he: ctty"s Stra{s9i6 :Plan ::Th~'?oj 1 '~r8tegio ~lll1:.Progr9~'~'Report 'can 'pe:found, on 
a rlfNI w81;:is~e,atwww.Ol.irfiJfl:JremisslssaUGaca, " -

:rh3,Gity'iS co;.n;nltt~io in;omil~~ resids~ts'pf ,6ut prog;oo's an9 we.EIre Very '~ro~,a;e qual~\progr$ms~and S~nJiba~ d81[vere:d,by'Durqedlcaisd 
eniployeas, Please take the-ume,torea6abduttl);r annll<ll:h,ighlij;Jhts ,in tlii!3- repprt and Wiitthe f'1e'N su-eteQio' p,lanweb<;ite to mon,itorourbrg-,rerm 
'progress, Stay ,connected,aS W\:)' conUnLI8 [0 build on our suocesses, We ,be-I~ YOU will. sae [h,e \,I,alye~ of trust, qualiDt and exoeUe,noe in PL1~IIO 
'oominlstratlon ieJiec19d In,all we,do, '" 

Hazel McGaIllon, O:M.i Lt.D. 
Mayor 

.....•.. ~ •......................................................................... (j .. ........ > .. 

,Janice M."Baker;,FCA 
City Managera:,ctCAO 
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Oi,StirigUisti~d B~d9~tPr~SeTiiati~~' A~;:Ird, ,for" the 'cuirerrt hu~ge\,' 
-from lhe,l3overnmenl FinOlnce 0fficB(S AssoCiab'on (GFQIli) for the 
22nd Wla( il') a J()ifV.-, 

Canadian AVio'ardJQr:FhjancJaJ Reporting (CAn.,FR);for excellence' 
jnmu(1iclpal,fillange. ,from the Governl1)snt I;1nance OfIipers ASsociation 
(GFOA) fOr the- 13th co(1secuUve j'8Br, 

Award fOr: ,plarining, ~xcellericejn the, Soci,aIJ'iahni!19 ----: 
Transportation and,lnfras&vcture category,Jar the, f:lurontanQlMain 
Street Corridor Ma$;lr Plan, from the: Canildlar) b3titUIe 
of Planners lCIP). -

Fourth'Place: ir(the ,0ir~~:G~ies of the.F_UlUre cffieg,ciry among 
the American cbfTtinents, ranksd byforelgrrDJrect Investment 
(IDi) Magazine. ' 

Sixth placa ,for ,economic Pc\tenllal ahd hinth place for infraStl1Jcture, 
in the LargeOltles a~ori<ranked by fDJ Milg~zln8, -

BrucE!' BruntO_o Awardior th:e ,6rtY'S:Natior\~J pUblic Works Week, 
from the'Ontario Public Works ASsociation. 

'Fri~nds 9fth~,i=redit ConservatIon AVI'aro fof tjle'ElrDDrlye 
project, from,Gredil, Valley CO[lSerliellon. 

Award-o(EXcelien'ce in Urb'eh Deslgl) to Millsissr~uga Celebration 
Square and Awards of Merit lO'the redeveloped ,B,Urnhamtilorpe 

'E~~llence Ii.-st~ra~e',~w~rd,' tq,tne Malion,:'-MeadOwVaie "rid 
Mavis DlstrjctWcirks:Ya[lJs, from:th,e 8$,lt Institlfte (SI). 

" "," , 
:Eia'rriiaor,cFree DesIgn A~r,d;,of Mert; ID 'MaltOri Community 
-Centre; from the'Ontano-March Of Dinjes, ' 

~OldMaTeo'm:A~~~~; r;r ,lhe Irrt~;na1io~al' l~d~an:Rlrri Academy­
OIFA) :'SuzZ': eveDls',corrl.rnun~ai:ipns strW;jY' and fDcthe; LitterbWg 
campaign,'froro ,the AsSoclatlDn'Of Marke1jng and'CD[ll,muf)ica~ons 
PrOreSsjon,B1~: 

OpWA - PrOj~t 'Of tlle'Y~ai' Award in' ihe. 'EiWlronm,e;-;i~ 
catt;lgory; to, tllE:(Regfor:iHPe,eL, 9ity of'Mlssissaug:" aJld Credit 
:Vall~y CQnseryation 'foi"the ,Cooksville Dre~k FloQdlng RemediaUon 
PiOgram-ProJect ' 

Top :1o-:C~nai;if_an:'Eco.jorn.i!::.pl3vel.opmen,i Gi:oOp;,to the City'~ 
Econ?ll),ic Devel,opmentoffi,cs, fromf:lit€fSelectlon-10agazlne's anllual 
spscliiI section or) Canadian indust[r~_I, development and trends: 

Nati'~n:'Sl.iilde~_hOn'QUr; tq'Mff)'6(Mccalilo'rl;xdtjesPlrlt:oftlle 
Famous 5 Woman'tJy:the famous 5 Ottawa Chapter, 

!ii~iv,id,u.aI2Q1 f ~i::~!le",ce)n, M,unicfPilI Finiin_ce Amird 
to. Janice Bakerfro,m,lhe,Mul)lcipal Rnance Qincers: Association 
of, ontario ,(MFQA). ' 

Ubraiy~!1d-~9I'additions at Clar~on and Malton OOI)l~UnitY C~nfres, 
from it1e'3Otil AnnualiY1isslssauga Urban,Design AWard'Ol- the ibngest· 
running muhi,6lp81 urban aesign cOmpetltion'in Ontario. 

Co,rpor.jt~ Exc'epti,o_nsl Perf()rmsnc~Outstanding Achievement 
Awatd, forthe,MiWay Brar:ld )mpl~l'I1enta\lon Program, frQrn,the 
C<J(1adian. Urban Transit As~iatlon (CUTAJ. 

Exc:eliencEfin Municipal systems Award for, MlWay Mobile Site; 
from Municipallf]fon:nation Systems Associatlon'(MISA). 

PeW J. Marshall MunicipallnnOv,ation' Award, fortha, 
MiWay Mobile Websile P(Ojecl, frOm ,he ASsocia1lon of Municipalities' 
:of Ontario Wv10), 

Certificate :Of,Merit for-the "MiVVay MobileWebsite -:-AnyUme, 
AnyvI!here,: Transit Schedules'for Mobile Devices'; frorri lIl,e Canadian 
Asscdallm Of MunioJpal Administrators (CAMAl as part of the ,2011 
Willis A~ard lor InnovallOfi. 

Distinguished Award Honouree-forE:.::cellence ',in Public Servlce: 
Delivery:(muQicipal pategD[jI). for thi) MiWay-,MobileWebsiteHoje(rt; 

,from GovemmentTBChnolDgy E\ient Canada,(GTEC), 

First PlaceJo Yllssissauga Fire & Emergency Services at the 
IntematlQnal RecognitiDn in'Autb Exliicallon ,Compe\~ion: 

HIGHLIGHTS ~II 

HIGHLIGHTS ~II iv') 



, ',' . 
. ~8cf8.atiCin.arKl:Parks··~$li~~d ~,3bD:'p.rOgrarl1:_·~~U'~S_YI'it~, more. 

1hao 1]6,QQQ ~t"1ratiOh.s': . . . , 

c~M~' p,.-q~~,a~'~i~~~tt~i.s irij~~ ,Hi' der.Qefrt'ov~i~,1b 
atlcl aqua\io progl~rQ' ~§t(aliorl~;jnQI1!las:ed ~ight-.pet cent", ' 

i;1o~'lhiir;"2~6o piiti~jJ:;~':r~ "~i~e:r~d. ~rOg~~~ 'M ouid6orp\Jo.ls; 
,~~?n~~ e~~,nd:a~c,~, ~~~~grC~:at,i~n ~im~:Sl1rpas$~d 100,009; 

Tb~ new clarkSon.,~nJty,,~O:q:I.in.creaS\?d ,regi~FlS bY 
77 p:r:cent ovp; IP?I:-year:~arid'th~,.,.V(.-t.'!altol'!~ommullity Pool 
saw'a 16 per, cent increase, . 

m6,C~yrs.~i't'l'eis~r~:~it.~, fh,~ UfeSa~~ :&;4~ provided iJi28 
Grade 3:stLidetr~: With th'e:'''Sw1ri1,t~ Sl.!r'v.iv~~·:.program th~ughi'! 

" $57,167·grant:~Tr~}lfQgrarn.has:,!)gen,:oIrered,fcir si>O;,Yern:s and has: 
nelpeci(jpp.qX11D(11elY, 29:000 Msslssauga ph!ldren le,a~.IW!jsa'0ng 
swlm,s,l,Jry!V?( s~llrs. ' 

'llll'ough, rp.etii~ '~lar~,s,\t?ta1 au'dienc~. rea9tiioias :9.6~;dO?,541;' 
via B;5-6:l: Qlty°N,latW:n~s'.Il€trns> 

lll~ ~rall ~JJ-v9i~1TJ1lI 'tq16e. :Clt- (nc'rea'~~d~;e-:per ~'eht:bVer'201'o, ' 
with ;j'5J9S'·calis. . 

}ll8 (JjlY.psrticiipa~ Ifl'Ery1ergen,cy e,i"ep~rediieSsWe'e,k TEP'iV); 
er)coL!ra'ging' iV1iSSiss.8iJgat:E!siqanls .lo'p1an:8.he8d arid be'preparec:l'itl 
I~e·ev.ent of al'l emergency. . 

HIGHLIGHTS ~II rrc: 



MIWay achieved a 5,9 per cent increase in ridership 
over 2010 numbers. 

Customers used Presto to pay for 253,965 MiWay 
trips and 155,237 transfers. 2,461 Preslo cards were 
sold; $587,135 was collocted through Presto fares, 

Paid parking was impl8lTlented at the Civic Centre, 
Cel'tral Library and Living Arts Centre parking 
garages, In addition, two surface pa'king lots, 
featuring permeable pavers an'd LED technology, \lV8re 
built adjacent to Sheridan College to manage parking 
demand in the growing downtown, 

6yyear-end, BO per cent of a~ MiWay routes were 
des1gmted as fully accessible, In November, the last 
high·~oor bus was retired, providing a fully accessible 
bus fleet with 95 per cent of trips being accessible 

MIWay introduced more frequent service, extended 
service hours artd additional weekend service to 
serve the growirtg .1umber of cuslDmers who travel on 
the Hurontario-Main Street corridor, 

The City developed its liml smartphone app to help 
commuters navigate Mississauga's trans1: system. 

The CitY's ''':1J1Nay s1aff.ho5IBd:a,oustotner,appreeiation'.event 
.with a passenger (latety Jheme at tvvo' MlssisS8.Clfl8. transitiErminoo 
tn October. ' 

The Clty.'sMVVaY:Trarisiradde(j 43 neliv,fuerefficie'nt and fully, 
aCCessibie bUSes:on the,roads in'Novetnber"to serve cuStOmer'S 
on local Ml\IVay routes. 

Throu!jh the lr)fra~tru~[8,HrnLilus Furiq,(ISF) progrem: 19 
sidewalks (a '1dtald.J8 kl?,m,etres,.. approxim~lifhe length' 
pfEglirilDh AyenU9 tllrough Mississauga), were cons,irucjed. 

An' addjtjonal nine'kilcimetreS bfnew $idewaik'lvveie inStalled'tO 
irT1PrcN9 ,ped'eirtrjim:an~.~ra'n'$U: accessib!ljty. 

A ,~tUdent Arnba'ssador,~i'o~ram' in '16 'MissiSSE\uga,seoonqary 
'SChCiQls ~elpeq encourage,the'use or:pUbIIG, transit, 

HIGHUGf-lTS ~II 

HIGHLIGHTS ~II 



BELONG 

:~i~r~~§'u'~~~' ~~!~~_~t;:oR~_~"~:f1;~[~iLS~_~~: 
&)~ry~te_~:4-1_~,O?O reslderlts_:a~9N_I?~~» ,c-, 

,(~y'l()I~din\.fpas$lye:c~~t9m~rsr;v¥~ ~teJ1_d~d)? ,,' 
__ eGlectlG'ev~~}~lne,m~tybC!th_evenU3:-gltracted 
'Jqp, iOQ -pEu:tlcJpanls:~t1AB:r YOl:Jli\Vo(untElerS. 

-:~'h~--Cjiyl~-:C:~:;.iJ;~~i-~~~!_itira-i ~~ij~i~'a~d 
pelebt:atiO!'ls-_Gi;ant:P(O~lram ptOvid,$d £41$;000-
_in.:r~\1dihg; 'Whll~ arl::hiri_~:d:i[ldr~ ~~ provided 
~1 ;_?24,_81 ~,-_ cOJ!tributing 10-,~:stJstqjDabUily;of-~ltural:: 

-,Dq:lanization;l'ahd ens~titlg_ tr~:{avail8.b_iltty nt:a;Wltj8 
fangs.-ofcuttura[ opportunitiElS \OI}tJSid_$'nts " 
and vlsitors.-

-the qfti:prDVl~eci $-h5:'25_~-jQ_ ~n'?n9j~l:suPPo,rt t6-':: 
a ,~r:ge:of-c?m_mur1I~Y:~~:S!;lcj __ groUP$_'\Qt'clugh :th~ _ 
_ Corporate_~rant_Program fclf'IlOj'J",aHsku]lurar 
c.ommun(ty groups. " 

r d' C~t8 ~:V6iC,e:'for:yo~ih i~:pio~r~~mirq aha,:eV~n.t 
PE;lCisiof)"rnakillg,jr:t. <;:9ffi~UnlbPC,:.0~'a,nd ,Iil:>r~rle~; 
;343 'yo~h,iidvisorY,ri:Jeetings V'!ere'nelct With 913 
yq~th' parJCipants, 

Th.e Gi!~:,~h0g,htimO:,~~ril~~ j)f 8eal,~;Pn;.~dlOn 
f.\flCl.sport·tmd, ~h$,Qldet,Adutt CE!~tr~s,Of prrtI'!.no'} 
p~nerl3d to',8re~en\ .'~S?+ In~;Il.I~d),.i,v~ng:F,a,ir:',':: 
00 rnte'rgoti\n;i. ~m to~i,I'mI?ire'peOple ,agif15~'pl,us 
,1o,be:r,ealthY.8fld a¢tNe ari?,getth~ fTlo$hJptqt)IFe 

Q'9~,~i':'~;P'rD~¢::~~-:~g~:i'~n~ai::~~iiPi,!tyip:'~nj"2D~'6 
~Qn,~aL'RePo,~ ~~d 4;~'1! ,:W!ltr8lt~e)3,':'iVhiqh ~ the CJtY:i~h~~d of 
:Sc:~cj~le: in iJ")~fw:;g:tarQflt$;PID~d.,by pfoyinolallegii3lation .In 

, ,~,~0n,g:~~:~~b~~:,~~.~9Ei$:::::;:., :~:,,:.,:' '/.:.: ,:/::{: , :':.; ~ :,': ,: 
,~ft9ty,fird'~~~,rartbered,~,,?ot(ur;e:~r~~g~!s :,',', 
D\Jrpp!ing'FI;lS!ival aI,tt?e,lrllBfnatlcnaL:HOfIlS:~'Gard,en 8hcWipbvidirig 
'~'s~~'qk Prevl~'Of~~~~~~;:,M,i,~,~~'S~vab!~~~,~:,:,:,' 
rh8-:{;itY:Gelebr~ the:arriy~,ar·the:~~o,rii'llClj'P in Jviay'·and : 
pfil?lally ,11:l-,d~Jca.ted, '!hB:Crry:;; Q,OITJi-nI;lOtty ;t-1.~rnod!'i':on, lIIIiis'l~saLr9a:': 
,GslebMQn SqL:1are 

:"~Th~:'~~~;'~litv~n'~~~:a~[f~:I:ihyi8i,bi~:~i~'~billi'i'l~,<a(~11 " 
,as,tI\a a.oC$,Ss!~mIY'llOlg~it:ef!lEints.bDlit into ,a~, [)fIts n~ "faclli!i~~ lor,', :: 
Na:tiqna.t'A.Cc'essA"Ii'tre;ne;;:s)Veek;',:, .::\" ':' ,::, '., ,:',,;, " 

~,~~M~~'~:~~n'n~:':pt;t;~~:~'b~6i~)~teih~~~ri~j~'iricf~~~r;b::, 
I;~CI~~?"Y,lII~,~.rA.~"a{~iS:,'13Llzz:! ,ey8'r\1.locatTohs': 'i\lhidh}Mered 
~'rf)Q ,S\Ot!~IJI!3~,~r0:9~Q,rjQut:),unej"G:L1,lrcinati,hg:j~ ,~:.te!ebl<j.tiQ8 ~of 
:eql~yYO,?~ ~k~I.;;!3~:~9~~!;Jt~?~ ~q.~a~~:.:: :,':::-, , ,::',;: <, 

, ,J:~t}"~ty'~,~~ed:'~'1'lli~p~s?fdI,~,~i~eA~is,f~"Fee,~sei~;;'~ :', 
J-0'JJo,~!~4PqQ'fll~(€dQ1\'-II,1C]9rr'i3 :hop~hotd,i::to' reg.I,S\Ek !lno .. : ,', ' 
partiQipaIB'in,Si:IJ,J,ctU!€9: qlialitj! '~r:e8.tiQn:a,ctivJti~s,' c' 

": T~~:Qi:~:;~~;~~~M~1~~,~~~jh·~~,;.¢'~~miciEie:(MYAPj;§~d", \'; 
, ·the.:/yIlssl.§iS'1~Qla''Yoi.,rth,A¢fioh;T~rr]; h~~,:Y qutIi,Cphli,ec~t20~1: ':, 

1!w::)!(sf~ent,ti,: !W?j\is,:yljU);n:trofn:,~9t9~S,:~is~J.ssaLlga:ln:,d,ev~ldptr\Q':. ,,:: , 
cOr;'Jrr)un~Y:rel,a!iC;ms~l~ :<l~<Zf"li8~.;>JP;oi~~ Y01J.1r :lh: ~.flln'r,l}I:J" " ~, 

:-: :'i,~~:~~~,wa~.:::::::",:::<:~. ':,-<',::t;"?<'; ;):';' l: :.(:':~,:,,:' >:':'~ <~ ""i. ',:: ,:;, ::",;, :::'>)> 
~,M~bfu~,¥~,u~~d~J>U~,~,~9n!;:~,~~,~:~,~,!~~,i;U;Y:YP~tn: Prov~~;' " 
: ~,~6i,ce fqr-~,ar1,d'El:fB~,?D$'N-' e,l:jgq8.fBnd,:w1f9rm 'Co,UhqlIJ ' 

: .Leaaershrp,i'earrll.ndme'PIJ.bllo,: '" 

:'i~:ii&::¢,51h:;~¥;Mjs~I~#~,~~~;D~y\:;;~~"tti'e;'B.~~;~¥~:~P~9~~':',: 
chiI8ll¥n.h'\ 1)~9 \hrQLJgh,~nG:<JE!rry'l()vE! Phi,dtqri;;:fw:ld/ ' 

;'?'i~~~:~~,~~n~"~i~~ll~,~,~~0~:'O~;9.iv~¥:,0~;~j~~9:,~~,~~6~~':::;: 
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: :irvil'l!;( r~ir~)ri ,Seplem~:eir:,a\-09,r:th-ar:id~:s,outh' t0lssi~s?u~~ 10~tl90$ 
fOr, irifolTTlflti90,:,stQ~(tOm,(nLiflitY, ~~~4ro,es ,8n0 ,,$'YII?3S ,th,at:wllr , 
help th,em live: full, aqtlV? 'a[1d h'OOIthy,ltv!ls, 

~~ke~:.~,I,iiir,~:p~~:6~:ih~: $g~~r?:~:hpwo~'0',26,J~k: 
selec~dp}us!c;aL',gTPup§, El!ld,i'lrti~ on: ~issi,ss~Qa:~IB9re.~io,ri 
Square ir] October. ' , 

tJ),e,3'Dth:8hii~<iirS.ary:ttMIS8j~S,auga:s,~[stei'ditY iBI~bi:Ji:'~hip: ~ii0 
i'<arlya; J~PliIl, ~i3':69JT¥nern()rated, at a~ appreplation.S::i::remDny 
lh;Kariya ~ar~,:ih ~t;lP\9cn,b9{, . , 

1l1~ ,'c~'rt)i lnVi\~ 're$,icie,h.t$'~n(f~\i'l~hpl~~rS ,to p~I~,eJD~,«r< 
a ,dran r:'ric:f!:1,g ;;tl:uJ~:!<ip:Qrt'Wlli?h recor1'l0'l80de1,p,eW:fee;s fOt'.' 

'-recreatiDI1Programs'an:d'$8rvlu;js,' , ' '" , 

,~ #:l~}~d~~';~;o ~,~ 'PU~(iq, a~:'p[i0:~s:'~:j~.~~'~,ic~ar"t:'.;, '.; , 
c911~IQn"jncluqlfl!il:r:~~J~ in$tElHed'irr;~old,~. K(lnrjooy F:PiK,' 
,aD~ GrDs-sing:P~desi,nans:~ B~e: nter,s6<:i1l\Jn o(Cltyp:intiB-DnVe 
and DukoQfYork,Blv8, ' ' 

'~'r.~isse1~~'~'GI$~r3ti:d~:SqU~TEi:~qsffi'dX5'~t:~~\V,:Y~i'ris: 
~d~~t~~~~~~~~.~~~~~grks~~S2in~~~'~': 1~~I"art? 

'~,~ ~i'~'cb§ili~+'9~p~~;Cft:~A~:i~a'~,:;,C~I"~/~~~~, ~:,:: 
Stuc!ents~jl)' Septein,ber ,a,nd:iYas;qtftclafly, opeQ,ed' in Nl)Yembi3f~", 

HIGHLIGHTS ~II 'lY;, 



The City, tile Province of Ontario and Ontario 
Power Generation (OPG) signed a Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) that comrnits them to working 
together on a shared vision for the future of the 
Lakeview lands that will benefit tile community 
and families lor generations, 

Port Credit's waterfront was nolEd as the number 
one public space in tile GreaterToronto Area by 
Spacing Magazine, 

As part of the City of Mississauga's Port Credit 
Cultural Node pilot project new bike racks and 
additional parking at the farmers' market were made 
available 10 residents and visilDrs in tile Port Credit area. 

The City opened rts iirst downtown roundabout 
at Duke olYork Boulevard and Square One Drive in 
conjunction with Sheridan College to help facilitate 
existing and expected traffic volumes and to support 
tile concept of "pedestrian first" street design, 

The Ridgeway Drive overpass was completed, 
providing a connection between the neighbourhoods 
north and south of Highway 400. 

The City opened a:JeW Cycling Office and 
expanded the cycling network by over 20 kilometres 

, Of cycling irnrastruoliite, Including, bike Jane;; sh~i.red, lane m,arklngs, 
bOLllevard mujtl"use trails and of Hoed trails, New wa:y-~ridl,tlg 
slgnage' wB;s h,talled; 

The MI,sslssaugii. CyclJrlg Advisory Committee~s'(M,QIlC)'A1h 
Annual Tour de Mi~lssauga highllghlEd off·roOOtrai,ls ard, on·road 
Cycllng'.roUteS in th~ haihEl8.st p§rt of the City; ad featured thi'E;e' d~t 
iDUIEs open t6 6ycITSts' 10 yeArS dd.and up wlth.BiIy level.of Ellq?enence, 

'Erin lYJ:e~dows C6inmurdty C:entre and ,L,ilir'a,ry ,m,Br,kM its: ,~O:' , , 
y~ar annl'/Elrsary y:<Jth a special c,el\3biElflon al ,Ipe 1?O11~1' 10 Septefl:lber. 

O',Conno(Park.'offlcl81ly opened, Wilh'· Ei.'OElremciW fOli'0'\V8d',' by'par~ 
1ours:in Se~mtier. ' 

ThirtY-seven t,Aissjs8a~g~:iisiablrsh~nts opened ttieir doors, 'to 
" !\lsl,dents for free lotJrs"<Ind fanlilY activltles',for !he, 8tb·.annuOli ' 

O,oClrs:Ope,neventirlOCtober" ' , , 

HIGHLIGHTS ~II 

HIGHLIGHTS ~II Y~l 



PROSPER 

The City had an 8.1 por wnt rcduGiion in 
Mississauga's eleclrcily demand during Earth Hour 
in March. Mississauga ranked 8th among cities 
in Canada by the World Wildlife Fund {\fINVF) with 
mspeat 10 action llg8inst climate ohange. 

As part of the City's annuct Earth Days campaign, 
Mississauga joined municipalities in the Greater 
Toronlo Pvea to participate in the 20-Minute Makeover. 

A customer appreciation event was held on Clean 
Air Day during Canadian Environment Week cO 
thank customers for using MiWay, improving air quality 
and protecting 1he environment. 

The City joined Ashgrove Public School 10 
celebrate Arbor Day with a special assembly 
and lree planting ceremony. 

Streetscape 2011, Mississauga's residential front 
garden contest, Murned for a third year. The conles1, 
open to all residenm, bs a successful partnership 
between the City and looal horticultural societies, 

Through the annual Summer Sign Litter Removal 
program, 15,000 illegal signs were removed from Ciiy 
road allowances. 

HIGHLIGHTS ~II i;{S 

HIGHLIGHTS ~II &I1 



'w~ t'~ re'~eveloprrient'of l.cI,k~ii:te I;' .. ,~k, !ri~'CIV(j6r,S~rved 
and ;nCJ:?l3Sl?? :thE:,naturaJ ,areas wllhln :the-'p,ark from' 3.6,heclares 
tq 4,85, hectare:;:;; -an Increase or 30 'per ce,nt Of the orl~il1f\l,:area 
Th$ ~_m.:tlriVe:fow~hnPae,i: de'ielopmerit prol9~t was' ,-:/,' " 
c9r:nP~te9, jncludl~,Q ~ew eycull!?,lanes _and parking'lay-bys-Wlth 
~(rne$ble pa~rs~, rq,ln-r;laidens,; 

Wj1h 16'e deVeloprnent-Of,_O',c'onnor',FJilrk, ,1i1e-eny con,served and 
IncJ1?~ natwral <lI"W,s ~nd wetl9[1ds wlthl~ttlB_patk'fturil, .7-tiec\affii 
10:2.7 heotr;u-es. ,'- , 

The City aCqiJired 1,.2 hectares of parkland 9Ild,7.3 hectares 
of-Greenbelt land, 

Lo~'l,~paqt; ~,~I~p~errt iLiO) technoJogles weffi _'Impjernen:teicl 
in -til" cqr:lstrtjctlan of three perviou;:; pa.rkin9. lots at Lel\eside Psr\<, 
O:9Qnnor Par~ ¥1d the EtobicoKe Cree~ Tmlheoo. At SchoiP(s 
Gre_~t1,-, LID: technologies lilJi30included ,Pervious pavements. use 
qf,~CYCled,materiais. IOw<How irrigation,',nalive:plarrt species 
enp"LED lightfng. ' 

Alter(lative winter de-icing materials were used -ror, ' 
wfnter mallite,rmce, ',- , 

An LED street Ifghting pilot project waseomPietecJ.'The-CIty:plans 
to replac:e exJs~ng-street-llgh~ngW1th enel!JY~efficient LED_Ughling over 
tI)e, next tWO'years",whlch wni !B9uce ~nergy,consurnPll?n. ' 

A ~Usta:iriable'Neighbourj,ood Retrofl~ Ae,tlon Plan w,ss 
iriitl,ated In,partnershlp with the Totum and,Region Conservation 
Authority and Region of Peel 

The,City tooka big ,stei:do(Vliarcl with)tS 'Greentng pur Fleet' 
, p,f()gram through tn?-addllion oflts'~rst all electric vehicle:MayOr, 

Hazel ,tylcCaHiorHllso E\Gqulr:ed: flQ energSr"eflicfent electric-vehicle to, 
earlY OllT- her dUties.' "--

Stanqa(d & Poqr'Ci,l'Saffirrned ihe,c:;,!:y's 'AM' :Cre~it 'ratllig ror ' 
tl!e eighth_year in a row . .Thl~, I?tl~g re1jecJts- Mlssisi3auga's }'debt-free 
s,ta:tui;), dlverBifying,econQrny and, vel)'_ Wong liquidlty,· 

Qpe(<;Itional efflCI~nc,jes:"in.wlnter m'~lriterlance, le,af cqllection 
and,street olean,ing progl<lrnS::~ved $1.a~ rqillion:' 

]he _Ci!y:secured $,158;000 Tn ,9fi1,n'ts f~m Enbrldge_ en¢ 
Onterlo PoVver:Authority's SaveQnEnl>fgY Pro'gram fa[ 8Ilergy 
-Conservatiori'projects. 

Gourd :approve'd thEl move tei LED streetjights whloh_vvlll'greatly 
reduce future' hydro' costs, 

The Ci'ty partriered w[thPartners in Project Gres~ fbr $90;000 an,d 
with 'Hoicfm Danooa fur $112,000 tq' constrUct tWo LOW I,mpiu;:t' 
DeVe[c;pment (LID) parking lots attvvoJqca:tI{]I}S. 

l}1[oUgh thE;! ~irii:S(rY on:oLlnsm', ~,~d ,CUltui.iS:$55,OOO C~p,acity 
,Building Grant fur public Iib'raries, the MlssiSsauga Ubra(y'SyStem 
pur'chased'18 children's compute@'- Dn's fOr ~lyJibrary,JO,cation. 

HD G6lf Simu'18Jors atBr8.sBen"Golf Academy provided 'customers 
with-a\Oiimer activlly ana g'erletated$30,OOO, 

iVlaplE! LBaf: $poits ,and, Errtertainment'[MLS1=l :ahd.:RONA partnered 
with the City to rerurbish rinks at Burnhamlhorpe Gommunlly. Centre 
hDUgh '8, $29,000 grant, 

the Cll;partnered wllh the OOferln-Peet:calh6IiC District 
School Boom, to 9onstn.icta shared-Use, ,E?lI:weat~er track and 
fleld,facility, cUf$n!ly under construction al the new Loyola catholic 
Secondary SShool. ' 
,The, ,City ap~l:Jd a Debt Pcilioi' Ib provide' guidelii:leS 'for p'riJd'ent 
use' or-debt financing. 

HIGHUGKTS ~II ,,\CX 



, :~e\'~~:c~~;t::~_~,4~;i~ ~~:'0~'-~~:O~~d ~a'-~:i;' 
8,c:cessible':fa¢lI~Y;' :wtfile: P~S~Nln9'lts': bistoribafsigr'iificai'Jee;'-arid 'was, 

, t,e~0ened;\ci,V1~:qXJt:li.lo in'APtlI,: -

:~0'e~>p:o~ ~~;:,t ~,~:~~~:P~';k,'U6;a-~i~ ~~: 
re.d(N81.9P?,r;(3fld'_Qfl'ir:,iaIIY'I13fJpeljep in J_UflS under 'the Ihfrostrl,1OtUr\? 

, stnl!lu~:fund:QElP)progrEUl) '~:a,fUooing ,psrinefship:betlivEierithEfOitY, 
proyln~:~,q;~1 :GQ\'el))n:Je.nt, __ 'BI,II'nharhtho-:pe,Ub~ry, alSo. ." 
an 18,17_' PrQlE!c:vq!nqiar~_tedP,ered ~,AUfli:Jst, alqog:vt!tli;th,e: dedjctltio)l Qf. 
MaJ~,PrelltICie-Ttlf~attli; , 

CI~~:O'~_:~,~~~,J,~'I~ ,P,k'~'i:a6~,:_Maj~,i1,COJ'fl~:u'~itY priol:, 
built uI'l9$r-.tjle--i8Foprograi:ri: OfIlcielly opi;ln,sd ,in' ~uns. 

',:~~,~~,~g~ ¢ele~~:ii'~,~:,~qJa,r~'; iW:Ciii$,fjew,mulli--~9dia,everi' 
,d8_sti,nati0n ~d l~est}$'F'~rojeCt" cif(icl\)ily 098Of;1d Ir:r..),unl;l ,«ltl'ra~ 
owtdoo~_,GitY"CQuncii Meej:ilig. . 

,,-',' , ''',. 

/),pplewood ji~j~hb;! ,;,,~s:~radi~','l)avid: R,am~sy, 'E~ndale 
,and-:St.r~$v,ille,_'?J.lfdoq(~I:l()ls-~re'iedi3Verop~ ~lJder-lhe 
,~ep,reE1tion~,ln~lIJ[Ei'Q.an~-.tF!lnt) I?rog~ ,$nsJDffjGiEli,IY', 
r.e,?pen~?:1,~: Jyl~i POI;S, CI,ub,()f,Sre~!t V~lI.eY ,Outl;loq(P?OI 
,w,"f3:reQam~d:,ar1~',fe9eveloNd:'lI.~(jer ~if19,'an~J-:?f~cl~~I';,reQP,~Ded in 
OOrljunQIQR_:with 18e oediWtion,oF-J-larold E.:l<en,nedy;Pai"k.~ 

~~~g~::i'$i:,:;g_p~r~:~~~ay~:.j~uI"ih:9::~~~:~i;,iD'~~~'~: 
~abll,It.Eitetr\fJ,fth,n,~pflvlr:Q ar~~l~h~ifl9./ " 

" " , ,. 

th~-,CitY ,~as,a~~:-9ne_0;Ga~e:s,Top, Eoi~'(o~~:i~~::-Y;o_~ng 
P,e,~J:il~ I~ ,201 __ ~ 'bi(-qanadas'T:op _1 go ,~mplqyee,s,thr9lJ9h.-.ME!di<;c,OfP, 
Canadarnc. fOf'lhe'S8C,ohd War,.il'\. aJDVe' .. 

; 'Tbg 9~ ~~-iCJenii~e~~',-;~~'-~f,t~J,:~a'ti~:~'S; oe~_:~81PI~~,~r 
_re.c,s8t, im[Tligr~,?t?:'-Tfi~(.20,1:1:-El,est' Empl~,er_s:fl?~ NeW:,~anmll~n!;, 
sp~ci_al:,desig6~trtlrl-kcognlZE1s:tfie ,01,0/ for ,"ad,dres,sil'lg ,1h~: pf'3:-GUCal 
chalr.o>nges,lhat'fI,ew- canadians faCe :whliln,sel3klng empioymem." ' 

"" ~b6!n~lIsh~~h~':.6FM:r~~'is~;~I~:Fi~ :rn:~;~~'rg_~~:8~~j~: ,'-~ '::,' , 
, ,(MPE::>l s1aff'Vv$lB:,re,CO\1r)jz:e~,:,~t ar1.-Ac~.ie-~e.rite,n.t_'~i_g~tC~r~~ol1~ 
W~~Ch /nc,~~docfroo918n.lS or:r6i;le~r~we;rd$ f?_r' 2.0,_30 arJdc4():~~ , 
0, SelNlce. 

'bi~,e~p;~~e~, taJ~~~cNl;lr ;t1'8.l5',O~' 't~roLl9~,pe;~:~r~l_p!;~,d~e$ ~~J 
B.'{f)[1-~ dLlrJn?:the ',lJ!I,it~d ,w,ilY, ~~p,lo~,e'e~rnpai,g~j"be~l;lntlng 
,organtrtltions 1hrDughOU[Miss,ssauga~ and trie Re'gldn Of ,Peel. ' 

T'h~ ~tty ,~iJj~~'~iBd~:~lN~~'0J~~:ti fb:~:pi¥e:ci~~~rs' ~itll( 
Ihe,orrJ,anizall9n ~,pat~-.oUh~-0®orihl:T~ke: Oqr'l~Ids t9~lJVO~,9aY: 
Irr:~ernl:ltil-,' , , '. " , c 

HIGHLIGHTS ~II 

HIGHLIGHTS ~II Wi) 



Sity 6f 'Miss,is~a ... g,a 
qOO Qity qentreDrive 
Mississauga, oN 1;58 36'1 

lriquiri,es: ,3+1 or 
905-615-431J outside city limits 
7'a.m: to 7. p.m;, Monday,to Frid<3.y 

Fax: 905-615-4081 

TTY:'905,B96-5151 

Email: pLiblic:ihfoomississauga:ca 

HIGHLIGHTS ~II 



MISSISSAUGA ,. 
Iiiiiiii 

DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

Corporate 
Report 

May 16, 2012 

Mayor and Members of Council 
Meeting Date: May 23,2012 

Mary Ellen Bench, BA, JD, CS 
City Solicitor 

Clerk's Files 

Originator's 
Files 

\2-4 

COUNCIL AGENDA 

MAY 232012 

Enersource Corporation - Unanimous Shareholder Resolution in 
lieu of an annual general meeting 

RECOMMENDATION: 1. That City Council authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to 
execute Resolutions of the shareholders of Enersource 
Corporation ("Enersource") for the purpose of accepting the 
audited consolidated financial statements of Enersource for the 
fiscal year ended December 31, 2011, confirming the election 
of the Directors of Enersource in accordance with the 
Amended and Restated Shareholders' Agreement, and 
appointing KPMG LLP as the auditor for Enersource; 

2. That City Council select a representative City nominated 
Director to serve on the Nominating Committee of the 
Enersource Board of Directors once the Amended and Restated 
Shareholders' Agreement is in effect, such representative being 
a then current Director of Enersource who does not need to be 
an independent Director; 

3. That City Council authorize a change to the effective date of 
the Amended and Restated Shareholders' Agreement to June 1, 
2012 from May 1,2012. 



~-4(a) 
Council 

BACKGROUND: 

COMMENTS: 

- 2- May 16, 2012 

At a meeting of the Enersource Board of Directors held on March 6, 
2012, it was recommended that the Shareholders execute a 
Unanimous Shareholder Resolution to deal with the following 
matters, in lieu of an annual general meeting: 

1. Accept the audited consolidated financial statements of 
Enersource for the fiscal year ended December 31,2011; 

2. Confirm the election of the nominees of the City of Mississauga 
and BPC Energy Corporation (Borealis) as Directors of 

Enersource; and 
3. Appoint KPMG LLP as the auditors for Enersource until the 

close of the next annual meeting of shareholders. 

At the April 25, 2012 meeting of Council the City's external counsel, 
Jeff Singer, reviewed the details of the Amended and Restated 
Shareholders' Agreement with members of Council. 

City Council at its meeting of May 9, 2012 enacted By-law No. 
0099-2012 authorizing the execution of the Amended and Restated 
Shareholders' Agreement. The Amended and Restated Shareholders' 
Agreement, once in effect, will require the City to select a 
representative Director to serve on Enersource's Board's Nomination 
Committee. Legal counsel to Enersource has requested that Council 

consider who such representative Director will be to enable him to 
set up a meeting of the Committee as soon as possible once the 

Amended and Restated Shareholders' Agreement is in effect. 

The Ontario Business Corporations Act authorizes shareholders to 

enact a resolution of the shareholders of a corporation in lieu of 
holding an annual general meeting. The Board of Directors of 
Enersource is recommending that the City and Borealis exercise this 
option under the current Shareholders' Agreement. As the only 
matters for consideration outside of the revised agreement do not 
result in any change to current operations or to membership on the 
Board of Directors, other than that required under the Amended and 
Restated Shareholders' Agreement, it is appropriate for the 
shareholders to deal with these matters by resolution in lieu of an 
annual general meeting. 



Council - 3 - May 16, 2012 

The Amended and Restated Shareholders' Agreement, once in effect, 
will require Enersource to establish a Nomination Committee and for 
the City to designate a then current Director as a member of the 
Committee. Such City designate need not be an Independent 
Director. To put these requirements into place, legal counsel for 
Enersource has requested that the effective date for the coming into 
force of the Amended and Restated Shareholders' Agreement be 
changed to June 1, 2012 from May 1, 2012. The City external 
counsel and legal counsel for Borealis do not have any objections to 
this change. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: None. 

CONCLUSION: It is recommended that the City of Mississauga and Borealis enact a 
Unanimous Shareholder Resolution in lieu of holding an annual 
general meeting of the Shareholders to properly accept the audited 
financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011; to 
confirm the membership of the Board of Directors; and to appoint 
KPMG LLP as the Enersource's auditors until the close of the next 
annual meeting of shareholders. It is also recommended that Council 
designate, as a member of Enersource's Nomination Committee, a 
Director pursuant to the Amended and Restated Shareholders' 
Agreement once in effect and approve the change in the effective 
date of the new revised agreement to June 1,2012 instead of May 1, 
2012. 

ATTACHMENTS: Appendix 1: Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 
December 31, 2011. 

M""F~CS 
City Solicitor 

Prepared By: Margaret Beck, Legal Counsel 



Appendix 1 

Consolidated Financial Statements of 

ENERSOURCE CORPORATION 

Years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 



KPMGLLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Yonge Corporate Centre 

4100 Yonge Street, Suite 200 

Toronto ON M2P 2H3 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Shareholder of Enersource Corporation 

Telephone 

F" 
Internet 

(416)228-7000 
(416)224-4671 

www.kpmg.ca 

lL-4(d) 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Enersource Corporation, 
which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at December 31, 2011, the consolidated statement 
of income and comprehensive income, and consolidated cash flows for the years then ended, and 
notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting prinCiples, and for such 
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our 
audit. We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. 
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the 
entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audit is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

OpInion 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
consolidated financial position of Enersource Corporation as at December 31, 2011, and the 
consolidated results of its operations and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. 

KPMG LLP 
Chartered Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 

Toronto, Canada 
March 6, 2012 
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ENERSOURCE CORPORATION 
Consolidated Balance Sheets 
(In thousands of dollars) 

December 31,2011 and 2010 

Assets 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable (note 14(b)) 
Unbilled revenue 
Inventory (note 3) 
Prepaid expenses and deposits 
Future income tax assets (note 5(b)) 

Property, plant and equipment (notes 1 (h) and 2) 
Intangible assets (note 1 (i) and 4) 
Deposits and prudentials (note 6) 
Regulatory assets (note 7) 
Future income tax assets (note 5(b)) 

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Income taxes payable 
Deferred revenue (note 1 (h)) 
Advance payments 
Future income tax liabilities (note 5(b» 
Regulatory liability for future income tax assets (note 5(c)) 
Regulatory liabilities (note 7) 
Bonds payable (note 8) 

Long-term liabilities: 
Debentures payable (note 8) 
Deposits 
Employee retirement and post-retirement benefits (note 9) 
Regulatory liability for future income tax assets (note 5(c)) 

Shareholders' equity: 
Capital stock (note 1 0) 
Retained earnings 

Contingencies (note 12) 
Commitments (notes 6 and 13) 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 

2011 2010 

$ 107,127 $ 53,568 
59,881 56,016 
59,739 67,563 

7,527 7,872 
2,267 1,787 
2,419 

238,960 186,806 

465,403 446,494 
18,694 15,583 
22,693 20,739 

7,719 20,013 
27,924 32,540 

542,433 535,369 

$ 781,393 $ 722,175 

$ 99,564 $ 90,888 
2,875 3,418 

11,143 150 
2,070 2,759 

189 
98 149 

42,691 39,671 
289,811 

158,441 427,035 

317,864 
22,693 20,739 

5,156 4,656 
27,865 32,495 

373,578 57,890 

175,691 175,691 
73,683 61,559 

249,374 237,250 

$ 781,393 $ 722,175 

Director _'~_?dJ~_Director 
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ENERSOURCE CORPORATION 
Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 

2011 2010 

Revenue: 
Energy sales $ 683,116 $ 675,255 
Distribution 108,780 120,076 
Recovery of regulatory accounts 7,772 7,429 
Services 10,332 7,849 
Other 14,351 11,267 

824,351 821,876 

Operating expenses: 
Energy purchases 683,116 675,255 
Operations, maintenance and administration 58,342 51,767 
Services 7,454 6,669 
Amortization of property, plant and equipment 23,863 36,311 
Amortization of intangible assets 2,309 1,936 
Amortization of regulatory accounts 7,772 7,429 

782,856 779,367 

Operating income 41,495 42,509 

Non-operating revenue (expense): 
Interest income 1,431 626 
Interest ex~ense (17,975) (18,999) 

(16,544) (18,373) 

Income before the undernoted 24,951 24,136 

Income tax expense (note 5(a)) 2,205 6,432 

Net income and com~rehensive income $ 22,746 $ 17,704 

Consolidated Statements of Retained Earnings 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 

2011 2010 

Retained earnings, beginning of year $ 61,559 $ 54,393 

Net income and comprehensive income 22,746 17,704 

Dividends paid (note 10) (10,622) (10,538) 

Retained earnings, end of year $ 73,683 $ 61,559 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 

2 



ENERSOURCE CORPORATION 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 

2011 2010 

Cash provided by (used in): 

Operating activities: 
Net income $ 22,746 $ 17,704 
Items not affecting cash: 

Amortization of debt issue costs 245 555 
Amortization of property, plant and equipment 23,863 36,311 
Amortization of intangible assets 2,309 1,936 
Amortization of regulatory accounts 7,772 7,429 
Gain on the disposal of property, plant and equipment (169) (187) 
Employee retirement and post-retirement benefits 500 469 
Future income tax exeense (recove~) (2,672) 611 

54,594 64,828 
Change in non-cash oeerating working caeital (note 11) 23,771 25,097 

78,365 89,925 

Financing activities: 
Bonds (290,000) 
Debentures 317,808 
Deposits 1,954 514 
Dividends eaid (10,622) (10,538) 

19,140 (10,024) 

Investing activities: 
Deposits and prudentials (1,954) (514) 
Additions to property, plant and equipment (38,185) (38,701 ) 
Additions to intangible assets (5,575) (3,633) 
Other deferred costs (2,246) 
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 282 204 
Decrease (Increase) in regulato~ assets 1,486 (15,204) 

(43,946) (60,094) 

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 53,559 19,807 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 53,568 33,761 

Cash and cash eguivalents, end of ~ear $ 107,127 $ 53,568 

Supplemental cash flow information: 
I nterest received $ 1,374 $ 591 
Interest paid 17,169 18,241 
Income taxes paid 4,202 1,432 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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ENERSOURCE CORPORATION 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Years ended December 31,2011 and 2010 

Enersource Corporation (the "Corporation"), incorporated under the Ontario Business Corporations 
Act, was formed to conduct electricity distribution and non-regulated utility service ventures. The 
Corporation is owned 90% by the City of Mississauga (the "City") and 10% by BPC Energy 
Corporation ("Borealis"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement 
System ("OMERS") 

1. Significant accounting policies: 

(a) Basis of presentation: 

The accompanying annual consolidated financial statements have been prepared by 
management in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP"). The 
consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Corporation's wholly owned 
subsidiaries: Enersource Hydro Mississauga Inc. ("Enersource Hydro"), Enersource 
Services Inc., Enersource Telecom Inc. ("Telecom"), Enersource Technologies Inc. 
('Technologies") and Enersource Hydro Mississauga Services Inc. (EHM Services") 

(b) Nature of operations: 

Through its subsidiary, Enersource Hydro, the Corporation provides electricity distribution 
services to businesses and residences in the service area of Mississauga, Ontario. 

Enersource Services Inc. is the parent company for the Corporation's non-regulated 
businesses, which include Telecom and EHM Services. 

(i) EHM Services provides utility services, including electricity distribution infrastructure 
design, construction and operations, street light construction and maintenance services 
to customers in Ontario. 

(ii) In September 2011, the Corporation received the articles of amalgamation confirming 
that Telecom amalgamated with EHM Services. An amalgamation certificate was 
received indicating that the assets and liabilities of Telecom were amalgamated into 
EHMS Services. Intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated. 
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ENERSOURCE CORPORATION 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Years ended December 31,2011 and 2010 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(c) Rate setting: 

Enersource Hydro is regulated by the Ontario Energy Board ("OEB") under authority of the 
Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998. The OEB is charged with the responsibility of approving 
or setting rates for the transmission and distribution of electricity and the responsibility for 
ensuring that distribution companies fulfill obligations to connect and service customers. 

The OEB has the general power to include or exclude costs, revenue, losses or gains in 
the rates of a specified period, resulting in the change in the timing of accounting 
recognition from that which would be applied in an unregulated company. Specifically, the 
following accounting treatments have been applied: 

(i) The Corporation capitalizes interest monthly based on an approved OEB allowance for 
the cost of funds used during construction and development. 

(ii) The Corporation records future income tax assets and a corresponding regulatory tax 
liability for its regulated business activities to the extent that it is expected that the 
recovery or realization of these amounts will be included in future distribution rates. 

(iii) The Corporation has deferred certain cost of power and retail settlement variances in 
accordance with Article 490 of the OEB's Accounting Procedures Handbook. 

(iv) The Corporation has deferred all revenue and associated costs not included in 
Enersource Hydro's smart meter revenue requirement, as directed by the OEB. 

(v) The Corporation has deferred costs related to the implementation of International 
Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") and costs relating to achieving compliance with 
Environment Canada's new polychlorinated biphenyls ("PCB") regulations. 

The OEB has the power to establish electricity prices to be charged under a regulated price 
plan ("RPP"), as summarized in the following chart, to low volume consumers and 
designated consumers who do not choose an electricity retailer. The OEB may adjust 
consumption thresholds and electricity commodity prices charged to these RPP consumers 
every six months as required. 
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ENERSOURCE CORPORATION 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Years ended December 31 , 2011 and 2010 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

Regulated Price Plan: 

November 2011 - May 2011 - November 2010 - May 2010 - November 2009-
December 2011 October 2011 April 2011 October 2010 April 2010 

Residential consumption 
threshold 1.000 kWh 

Non-residential 
consumption threshold 750 kWh 

Price below threshold $.071IkWh 
Price above threshold $.083IkWh 

Time of Use Rates: 

600 kWh 

750 kWh 
$.068IkWh 
$ 0791kWh 

1,000 kWh 

750 kWh 
$.064IkWh 
$.074IkWh 

600 kWh 

750 kWh 
$.065IkWh 
$.075IkWh 

1,000 kWh 

750 kWh 
$.058IkWh 
$.067IkWh 

In May 2009, The Ontario government announced the province-wide implementation of 
time of use rates. These rates will help customers make decisions about when they use 
electricity, and will encourage people to shift some of their electricity use to off-peak hours 
where they will benefit by being charged lower prices. Enersource Hydro commenced 
moving residential and small commercial customers to time of use rates in August 2011, 
and anticipates that all eligible customers will have migrated to time of use by May 2012. 
Time of use rates are reviewed every six months by the OEB, with any rate changes 
occurring on May 1 and November 1. A summary of TaU rates since May 2011 is listed 
below: 

Off-Peak 

Mid-Peak 

On-Peak 

7:00 p.m. - 7:00 a.m. 

7:00 a.m. -11 :00 a.m. 
5:00 p.m. - 7:00 p.m. 
11 :00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m. 

11 :00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m. 
7:00 a.m. - 11 :00 a.m. 
5:00 p.m. - 7:00 a.m. 

Weekends & Holidays All day 

Summer Weekdays 
May 2011 - October 2011 

$.059IkWh 

$.089IkWh 
$.089IkWh 

$.107IkWh 

$.059IkWh 

Winter Weekdays 
November 2011- April 2012 

$.062IkWh 

$.092IkWh 

$. 1 081kWh 
$.108IkWh 

$.062IkWh 

In November 2008, Enersource Hydro submitted a formula based rate application to the 
OEB for the rate period May 1, 2009 through April 30, 2010. On March 16, 2009, the OEB 
released its decision and order on this rate application. Enersource Hydro implemented 
this distribution rate decision, along with OEB-approved changes to electricity commodity 
prices May 1, 2009. 
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ENERSOURCE CORPORATION 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

Dn November 27, 2009 Enersource Hydro submitted an application to recoverlrefund all 
retail settlement variance account balances as at December 31, 2008, as well as energy 
variance and Global Adjustment variance account balances as at September 30, 2009. 
The net recovery of $12,800 was approved by the DEB on January 29,2010. The $12,800 
net balance in these accounts will be recovered over a two year period from February 1, 
2010 through January 31, 2012. 

Enersource Hydro submitted a formula based rate application in July 2009 to the DEB 
which was approved on March 29, 2010. Enersource Hydro implemented this distribution 
rate decision, along with DEB-approved changes to electricity commodity prices May 1, 
2010 to April 30, 2011. 

In October 2010, Enersource Hydro submitted a formula based rate application to the OEB 
to change distribution rates for the rate period May 1, 2011 through April 30, 2011. The 
application was approved by the DEB on March 17, 2011. Enersource Hydro implemented 
the distribution rate decision, along with the DEB-approved changes to electricity 
commodity prices, effective May 1, 2011. 

(d) Cash and cash equivalents: 

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash and bank term deposits or equivalent 
financial instruments with original maturities upon issue of less than 90 days. 

(e) Revenue recognition: 

Distribution revenue attributable to the delivery of electricity is based upon OEB-approved 
distribution rates and charges that is recognized as electricity is delivered to customers, 
which includes an estimate of unbilled revenue that represents electricity consumed by 
customers since the date of each customer's last meter reading. Actual electricity usage 
could differ from estimates. 

Service and other revenue are recognized as services are rendered or contract milestones 
are achieved. Amounts received in advance of these milestones are presented as deferred 
revenue. 

(I) Measurement uncertainty: 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
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ENERSOURCE CORPORATION 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

12-4 (J) 

amounts of revenue and expenses during the years. Accounts receivable is reported 
based on amounts expected to be recovered less an appropriate allowance for 
unrecoverable amounts based on prior experience. Unbilled revenue and regulatory 
assets are reported based on amounts expected to be recovered. Inventory is recorded 
net of a provision for obsolescence. Amounts recorded for amortization of property, plant, 
equipment and intangible assets are based on estimates of useful life. 

Due to the inherent uncertainty involved in making such estimates, actual results could 
differ from estimates recorded in preparing these consolidated financial statements. 
including changes as a result of future decisions made by the OEB or the Minister of 
Energy. 

(g) Inventory: 

Inventory consists primarily of parts and supplies acquired for internal construction, 
consumption or recoverable work. The Corporation accounts for major spare parts and 
standby equipment as property. plant and equipment. 

Inventory is carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value, with cost determined on a 
weighted average cost basis net of a provision for obsolescence. 

(h) Property, plant and equipment: 

Property. plant and equipment are recorded at cost. which includes labour. materials. 
contracted services, engineering costs, allocated overhead and an OEB-approved 
allowance for the cost of funds used during construction when applied. Certain assets may 
be acquired or constructed with financial assistance in the form of contributions from 
customers. 

When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, their original cost and accumulated 
amortization are removed from the accounts and the related gain or loss is included in the 
operating results for the related fiscal period. The cost and related accumulated 
amortization of grouped assets, such as overhead and underground distribution systems, is 
removed from the accounts at the end of their estimated service lives. 

As of January 1, 2011, the Corporation revised the useful lives of its depreciable assets 
based on an independent evaluation. The revised estimates were adopted prospectively 
and extended the lives of many depreciable assets and will reduce current and future 
amortization expense. Since amortization expense is a component of approved distribution 
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ENERSOURCE CORPORATION 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

rates, Enersource Hydro has decided to defer distribution revenue equal to the decrease in 
amortization expense until the change in useful lives is approved by the OEB. Enersource 
Hydro will be seeking OEB approval for the revised useful lives in its 2013 cost of service 
application. The change in useful lives has resulted in $10,734 of distribution revenue being 

deferred onto the balance sheet, and is included in deferred revenue. 

Amortization of property, plant and equipment values is charged to operations on a 

straight-line basis over their estimated service lives as follows: 

Buildings and other fixtures 
Distribution station equipment 
Overhead and underground distribution system 
Meters 
Equipment and furniture 
Rolling stock 
Computer hardware 

20 - 60 years 
15 - 40 years 
15 - 55 years 
15 - 25 years 

10 years 
4 - 12 years 
3 -10 years 

An allowance for the cost of funds used during the construction period has been applied 
and capitalized as a component of cost of property, plant and equipment where applicable. 
The prescribed interest rate used during the period equalled the average weighted bond 

yield of the DEX Mid Term Corporate Bond Index as published on the OEB website, 
updated quarterly. 

(i) Intangible assets: 

Intangible assets are assets that lack physical substance, other than financial assets. 
Intangible assets are recorded at cost and include expenditures associated with the initial 
acquisition or development, which are directly attributable to the acquisition, production and 

preparation of the asset for its intended use. 

Indefinite life intangible assets such as easements are held in perpetuity and are not 
amortized. The amortization of other intangible asset values are charged to operations on a 
straight-line basis over their estimated service lives as follows: 

Computer software 2 -10 years 
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ENERSOURCE CORPORATION 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Years ended December 31,2011 and 2010 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

12-YCn ") 

The Corporation evaluates intangible assets for impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not be recoverable. For purposes of such 
an evaluation, the fair value estimate is compared to the carrying amount of the asset to 
determine if a write-down is required. The impairment loss is measured as the amount by 
which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its fair value. 

An allowance for the cost of funds used during the development stage of internally 
developed I modified software has been applied and capitalized as a component of cost of 
intangible assets where applicable. The prescribed interest rate used during the period 
equalled the average weighted bond yield of the DEX Mid Term Corporate Bond Index as 
published on the OEB website, updated quarterly. 

U) Deferred debt issue costs: 

Deferred debt issue costs represent the cost of the issuance of the bonds. In accordance 
with The Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants' ("CICA") Handbook Section 3855, 
Financial Instruments - Recognition and Measurement, the Corporation's deferred debt 
issuance costs, net of accumulated amortization, is included in the carrying amount of 
bonds payable. The bonds are accreted back to their face amount using the effective 
interest rate method over the remaining period to maturity. 

(k) Deposits and prudentials: 

Customers may be required to post security to obtain electricity or other services. Where 
the security posted is in the form of cash or cash equivalents, these amounts are recorded 
in the accounts as deposits and prudentials, which are reported separately from the 
Corporation's own cash and cash equivalents. Interest rates paid on customer deposits 
are based on a variable rate of prime less 2.0%. 

Also included in this balance are cash and securities lodged with the Corporation by 
counterparties under electricity supply agreements. 

(I) Employee retirement and post-employment benefits: 

The Corporation accounts for its participation in OMERS, a multi-employer public sector 
pension fund, as a defined contribution plan and all contributions made to OMERS by the 
Corporation are expensed in the year. 
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ENERSOURCE CORPORATION 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Years ended December 31,2011 and 2010 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

The Corporation actuarially determines the cost of other employment and post-employment 
benefits offered to employees using the projected benefit method, prorated on service and 
based on management's best estimate assumptions. Under this method, the projected 
post-retirement benefit is deemed to be earned on a pro rata basis over the years of 
service in the attribution period commencing at date of hire, and ending at the earliest age 
the employee could retire and qualify for benefits. Net actuarial gains or losses exceeding 
10% of the accrued benefit obligation are amortized into expense on a straight-line basis 
over the expected average remaining service lifetime. 

The Corporation presently offers a retirement and post-retirement benefit plan that consists 
of life, health and dental benefits to those employees who retire on or after age 55 with at 
least 10 years of service with a specified cost sharing formula for participation from the time 
of early retirement to age 65. 

(m) Income taxes: 

Under the Electricity Act, 1998, the Corporation is required to make payments in lieu of 
corporate income taxes ("PILs") to the Ontario Energy Financial Corporation ("OEFC"). 
These payments are calculated in accordance with the rules for computing income and 
taxable capital and other relevant amounts contained in the Income Tax Act (Canada), the 
Taxation Act, 2007 (Ontario), both as modified by the Electricity Act, 1998, and related 
regulations. References in these financial statements to income taxes are with respect to 
PILs. 

The Corporation uses the asset and liability method of accounting for the tax effect of 
temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of the Corporation's 
assets and liabilities. Temporary differences arise when the realization of an asset or the 
settlement of a liability would give rise to either an increase or decrease in the 
Corporation's income taxes payable in the year or a later period. A valuation allowance is 
recorded against a future income tax asset to the extent that it is more likely than not that 
the full asset value will not be realized in the future. 

(n) Foreign currency translation: 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the 
prevailing rates of exchange at the consolidated balance sheet dates. Revenue and 
expenses are translated at the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction date. Realized 
and unrealized exchange gains and losses are included in income. 
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ENERSOURCE CORPORATION 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Years ended December 31 , 2011 and 2010 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(0) Financial instruments: 

1L-4Cp) 

Financial assets, financial liabilities and non-financial derivatives are recorded on the 
consolidated balance sheets at their fair value or with cost-based measures under different 
circumstances. Financial instruments are classified into one of these five categories: held­
for-trading, held-to-maturity, loans and receivables, available-far-sale financial assets and 
other financial liabilities. All financial instruments, including derivatives, are measured on 
the consolidated balance sheets at fair value except for loans and receivables, held-to­
maturity investments and other financial liabilities which are measured at amortized cost. 

Subsequent measurement and changes in fair value will depend on their initial 
classification, as follows: held-for-trading financial instruments are measured at fair value 
and changes in fair value are recognized in net income; available-far-sale financial 
instruments are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recorded in other 
comprehensive income until the investment is derecognized or impaired at which time the 
amounts would be recorded in net income. 

The Corporation designates its cash and cash equivalents and deposits and prudentials as 
held-for-trading, which are measured at fair value. Accounts receivable are classified as 
loans and receivables, which are measured at amortized cost. 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities are classified as other financial liabilities, which 
are measured at amortized cost. Advance payments and deposits are classified as held­
for-trading, which are measured at fair value. Bonds payable and debentures payable are 
classified as other financial liabilities and measured at amortized cost. The transaction 
costs are added to the carrying value of the bonds and amortized over the expected life 
using the effective interest rate method. 

(p) Capital disclosures: 

The Corporation's objectives with respect to its capital structure are to maintain effective 
access to capital on a long-term basis, at reasonable rates, and to deliver the appropriate 
financial returns to its shareholders. 

Effective May 1, 2008, Enersource Hydro was deemed by the OEB for rate setting 
purposes to have a capital structure that was funded by 56% long-term debt, 4% short-term 
debt and 40% equity. The OEB uses this deemed structure as a basis of how capital is 
funded for rate setting purposes only. The actual capital structure for Enersource Hydro 
may differ from the OEB deemed structure. 
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ENERSOURCE CORPORATION 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

2. 

(q) Future accounting changes: 

Transition to International Financial Reporting Standards: 

In October 2010, the Accounting Standards Board ("AcSB") issued an amendment to 
the Introduction of Part 1 of the CICA Handbook to permit qualifying entities with rate­
regulated activities the option to defer their adoption of IFRS to annual periods 
beginning on or after January 1, 2012. Entities using the deferral are required to 
disclose that fact. 

Prior to this amendment, the AcSB required publicly accountable enterprises to adopt 
IFRS for interim and annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2011, 
including comparative amounts for the prior year. 

The Corporation will continue to prepare its consolidated financial statements 
according to Canadian GAAP for 2011 and has elected to adopt IFRS for interim and 
annual financial statements relating to annual periods beginning on January 1,2012. 

Property, plant and equipment: 

Accumulated 2011 net 2010 net 
Cost amortization book value book value 

Land $ 4,069 $ $ 4,069 $ 4,071 
Buildings and other fixtures 20,996 6,677 14,319 12,451 
Distribution station equipment 104,173 40,844 63,329 58,200 
Overhead and underground 

distribution system 672,866 345,115 327,751 317,217 
Meters 45,095 8,270 36,825 33,272 
Equipment and furniture 8,605 4,324 4,281 4,646 
Rolling stock 15,450 8,547 6,903 6,433 
Computer hardware 7,199 3,560 3,639 3,608 
Construction in progress 4,287 4,287 6,596 

$ 882,740 $ 417,337 $ 465,403 $ 446,494 

During the year, $286 (2010 - $271), representing an allowance for the cost of funds used 
during construction, was capitalized to construction in progress. 
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ENERSOURCE CORPORATION 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 

3, Inventory: 

4, 

The amount of inventory consumed by the Corporation and recognized as an expense during 
2011 was $2,682 (2010 - $2,062), The amount of inventory that was written down due to 
obsolescence was $20 (2010 - $48), 

Intangible assets: 

Accumulated 2011 net 2010 net 
Cost amortization book value book value 

Computer software $ 22,529 $ 4,721 $ 17,808 $ 13,743 
Software in development 554 554 1,804 
Easements 332 332 36 

$ 23,415 $ 4,721 $ 18,694 $ 15,583 

During the year, $114 (2010 - $43), representing an allowance for the cost of funds used during 
construction, was capitalized to software in development 

5, Income taxes: 

The provision for income taxes differs from the amount that would have been recorded using 
the combined federal and Ontario statutory income tax rate, A reconciliation between the 
statutory and effective tax rates is provided as follows: 

2011 2010 

Federal and Ontario statutory income tax rate 28,25% 31,0% 

Income before ~rovision for income taxes $ 24,951 $ 24,136 

Provision for income taxes at statutory rate $ 7,049 $ 7,482 
Increase (decrease) resulting from: 

Amortization less than capital cost allowance (4,212) (638) 
Tax effect of non-capital losses for which no 

benefit has been recorded (563) (203) 
Other timing differences between accounting 

net income and net income for 
tax purposes (69) (209) 

Provision for income taxes $ 2,205 $ 6,432 

Effective income tax rate 8,8% 26,6% 
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ENERSOURCE CORPORATION 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Years ended December 31,2011 and 2010 

5. Income Taxes (continued): 

Future income taxes reflect the net effects of temporary differences between the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for 
income tax purposes. The significant components of the Corporation's future tax assets, 

liabilities and expense are as follows: 

(a) Components of provision for income taxes: 

Current income tax expense $ 
Future income tax expense (recovery) 

$ 

2011 

4,877 
(2,672) 

2,205 

2010 

$ 5,821 
611 

$ 6,432 

(b) Significant components of future income tax assets and liabilities on the consolidated 

balance sheet are as follows: 

2011 

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets $ 19,710 
Regulatory liability for future income taxes 7,044 
Regulatory assets and liabilities (469) 
Employee retirement and post retirement benefits 1,289 
Deferred revenue 2,777 
Other temporary differences (8) 

$ 30,343 

The future tax asset is presented on the consolidated balance sheet as follows: 

Future income tax assets, current 
Future income tax assets, non-current 

15 

$ 

$ 

2011 

2,419 
27,924 

30,343 

2010 

$ 23,450 
8,025 
(388) 

1,164 

100 

$ 32,351 

2010 

$ 
32,540 

$ 32,540 



ENERSOURCE CORPORATION 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Years ended December 31,2011 and 2010 

5, Income Taxes (continued): 

The future tax liability is presented on the consolidated balance sheet as follows: 

Future income tax liability, current 
Future income tax liability, non-current 

$ 

$ 

2011 2010 

$ 189 

$ 189 

(c) Management expects that $20,919 (2010 - $24,619) of the future income tax assets will be 
included in the future rates charged to customers and accordingly has recorded a 
corresponding regulatory liability, The regulatory liability will itself result in an additional 
future income tax asset of $7,044 (2010 - $8,025), Accordingly, $27,963 (2010 - $32,644) 
has been recorded as a regulatory liability for future income taxes, 

The regulatory liability for future income tax assets is presented on the consolidated 
balance sheet as follows: 

Regulatory liability for future income taxes, current $ 
Regulatory liability for future income taxes, non-current 

$ 

2011 

98 
27,865 

27,963 

2010 

$ 149 
32,495 

$ 32,644 

At December 31, 2011, certain other subsidiaries have estimated non-capital loss 
carryforwards totalling $376 (2010 - $2,368) available, which will expire in 2015, The 
potential benefit relating to these amounts has not been recorded given the uncertainty as 
to their realization, 
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ENERSOURCE CORPORA liON 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 

6. Deposits and prudentials: 

The following outlines the deposits and prudentials of the Corporation, posted as security. The 
amounts are comprised of cash and cash equivalents in the form of deposits, letters of credit 
and letters of guarantee, under which the Corporation is contingently liable. 

Customer deposits 
Security with I ESO 
Security with the City of Brampton 

Security deposits: 

(a) Customer deposits: 

Cash 
and cash 

equivalents 

$ 22,693 

$ 22,693 

2011 
Letters of 

credit! 
letters of 

guarantee 

$ 
10,588 

5,026 

$ 15,614 

2010 
Letters of 

Cash credit! 
and cash letters of 

equivalents guarantee 

$ 20,739 $ 
10,588 

5,026 

$ 20,739 $ 15,614 

The Corporation collects cash and cash equivalents as deposits from certain customers to 
reduce credit risk. 

Contingent obligations: 

(b) Security with the Independent Electricity System Operator: 

Entities that purchase electricity in Ontario through the Independent Electricity System 
Operator ("IESO") are required to post security to mitigate the risk of their default on their 
expected activity in the market. The IESO could draw on this security if the Corporation 
failed to make payment required by a default notice issued by the IESO. The Corporation 

has posted a letter of credit as security in the amount of $10,588 (2010 - $10,588) 

(c) Security with the City of Brampton: 

The Corporation has posted letters of credit in the amount of $5,026 (2010 - $5,026) 
relating to contracts with the City of Brampton to provide routine and emergency 
maintenance of streetlighting and related services. The City of Brampton could draw on 

this security by issuing a certificate demonstrating that the Corporation has failed to fulfill its 
obligations related to these contracts. 
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ENERSOURCE CORPORATION 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 

7. Regulatory assets and liabilities: 

Q.-LJ Cv\ 

Regulatory assets primarily represent costs that have been deferred because they are 
expected to be recovered in future distribution rates. Similarly, regulatory liabilities can arise 
from differences in amounts billed to customers under the regulated pricing mechanism and the 
corresponding wholesale market cost of power incurred by the utility. 

Enersource Hydro is also required to record a regulatory liability or asset relating to the amount 
of future tax assets that are expected to be refunded or recovered through distribution rates. 

Regulatory balances are comprised principally as follows: 

(i) Retail settlement variances are caused by the difference between the actual price of the 
electricity commodity throughput and the prices set by the OEB. Specifically, these 
amounts include variances between the amounts charged by Hydro One and the IESO for 
the operation of the electricity markets and grid, as well as various wholesale market 
settlement charges and transmission charges as compared to the amount billed to 
consumers based on the OEB-approved rates. 

(ii) Unrecognized revenue and costs associated with the smart meter program, and costs 
relating to stranded conventional meters have been deferred and will continue to be 
deferred until directed by the OEB. 
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ENERSOURCE CORPORATION 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Years ended December 31,2011 and 2010 

7. Regulatory assets and liabilities (continued): 

The following table demonstrates the impact on 2011 earnings net of income taxes as a result 
of regulated accounting requirements. Explanatory notes follow the table below. 

Regulatory assets (liabilities): 
Other regulatory assets ((a)(ii)) 
Smart meter revenue/expense 

((a)(iii)) 
Special Purpose Charge ((a)(iv)) 
Late Payment Penalty ((a)(v)) 

$ 

2011 

3,495 

6,639 
(140) 
323 

Net regUlatory liabIlities/assets approved 
for refund/recovery ((a)(vi)) (2,598) 

Regulatory liabilities (assets). 
Retail Settlement & Global 
Adjustment variances ((a)(vii)) 

Regulatory liability for future income 
tax assets ((a)(viii)) 

(a) Explanatory notes: 

$ 7,719 

42,691 

$ 42,691 

$ 27,963 

2010 

$ 2,590 

9,572 
1,705 
1,006 

5,140 

$ 20,013 

39,671 

$ 39,671 

$ 32,644 

Estimated 2011 
remaining impact on 
settlement earnings net 

period of income taxes 
(years) ((a)(i)) 

2 $ (905) 

2 3,119 
1-2 (7) 
1-2 (683) 

1-2 (34) 

$ 1,490 

1 - 2 656 

$ 656 

$ 

(i) The 2011 impact on earnings net of income taxes represents the effect on the net 
income as a result of the treatment under rate regulated accounting. 

(ii) The OEB has approved deferral accounts to record incremental costs associated with 
the implementation of IFRS, and any incremental costs needed to comply with 
Environment Canada's new regulations associated with PCBs. The OEB also requires 
that Enersource Hydro record and defer the difference between revenue and costs 
associated with providing retailers with customer settlement services as retail cost 
variance account deferrals. The remaining balance reflects PILs differences resulting 
from legislative or regulatory changes to tax rates or rules as compared to rate-setting. 
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ENERSOURCE CORPORATION 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Years ended December 31,2011 and 2010 

7. Regulatory assets and liabilities (continued): 

(iii) On June .13, 2006, the OEB issued an update to the Accounting Procedures Handbook 
regarding the accounting treatment for smart meter expenditures. On December 8, 
2008, the OEB issued its decision approving the recognition of smart meter revenue 
and costs as at December 31, 2007. On October 1, 2009, the OEB issued a decision 
approving the on-going accounting recognition of investments in smart meters. Based 
on this decision, Enersource Hydro has recognized revenue and costs for smart meter 
investments to December 31, 2011. The OEB also established guidelines for the 
accounting treatment for stranded meter costs, which directed distributors to defer 
stranded meter costs as a regulatory asset. This amount represents the cumulative 
costs related to stranded conventional meters. 

(iv) On April 9, 2010, the OEB informed electricity distributors of a Special Purpose Charge 
("SPC") assessment for the Ministry of Energy conservation and renewable energy 
program costs and that the SPC would be recoverable through distribution rates. 
Enersource Hydro was assessed $3,016 for its apportioned share of the total provincial 
amount of $53,695. This amount represents Enersource Hydro's remaining 
assessment to be refunded or recovered. 

(v) On March 2, 2010, the Electricity Distributors Association ("EDA") reached a 
settlement, in principle, in a class action suit which claimed that Local Distribution 
Companies ("LDCs") were charging late payment interest at effective rates in excess of 
60% per year, which is illegal under Section 347(1)(b) of the Criminal Code. The 
settlement received consent and approval by all LDCs. On July 22, 2010 the Ontario 
Superior Court of Justice approved the settlement which stipulates that LDCs will 
collectively pay $17,000 in damages by June 30, 2011 to the Winter Warmth Fund or 
similar charities, after deducting legal fees. On February 22, 2011 the OEB approved 
the recovery of the late payment penalty through distribution rates effective May 1, 
2011. 

(vi) On November 27, 2009, Enersource Hydro submitted an application to the OEB to 
recover/refund all retail settlement variance account balances as at December 31, 
2008, as well as energy variance and global adjustment variance account balances a 
at September 30, 2009. The net recovery of $12,800 was approved by the OEB on 
January 29, 2010 to be recovered from February 1,2010 to January 31,2012. 
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ENERSOURCE CORPORATION 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Years ended December 31,2011 and 2010 

7. Regulatory assets and liabilities (continued): 

(vii) The OEB requires Enersource Hydro to record and defer the difference between 
energy charged to its customers and the actual cost of power incurred and paid to the 
IESO and to Hydro One. The retail settlement variance reflects this difference for all 
accounts plus interest at an OEB approved rate since January 1, 2009, excluding 
energy variance account which reflects this difference from October 1, 2009. The 
Global Adjustment amount is the difference between market prices and rates paid to 
regulated and contracted generators which are set by the IESO. This adjustment may 
be positive or negative. The Global Adjustment retail settlement variance captures the 
unpaid or recoverable amounts due to or recoverable from Enersource Hydro's 
customers. The global adjustment variance reflects this difference since October 1, 
2009 plus interest charged at an OEB approved rate. 

(viii) This amount represents the regulatory liability for future income taxes expected to be 
refunded to customers through future distribution rates. 

The Corporation has accrued interest on the deferral account balances for the regulatory 
assets and liabilities, as directed by the OEB. As at December 31, 2011, this net accrued 
interest amounted to $532 (2010 - $104). 

(b) Financial statement effects of rate regulation: 

(i) General information regarding rate regulation and its economic effects: 

The operations of the Corporation's subsidiary, Enersource Hydro, are regulated by the 
OEB. The OEB exercises statutory authority over matters such as distribution asset 
construction, rates and underlying accounting practices, and rate setting issues with 
Enersource Hydro's customers. 

(ii) Regulatory risk and uncertainties affecting recovery or settlement: 

The regulatory assets and liabilities recorded in the consolidated financial statements 
are based upon an expectation of the future actions of the OEB. To the extent that the 
OEB's future actions are different from Enersource Hydro's expectations, the timing 
and amount of recovery or settlement of amounts recorded on the consolidated 
balance sheets could be significantly different from the timing and amounts that are 
eventually recovered or settled. 
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ENERSOURCE CORPORATION 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Years ended December 31,2011 and 2010 

7, Regulatory assets and liabilities (continued): 

(iii) Financial statement effects: 

In order to recognize the economic effects of the actions or expected actions of the 
regulator, the timing of recognition of certain revenue and expenses in these 
operations may differ from that otherwise expected under GAAP for non rate-regulated 
entities. 

Regulatory assets represent amounts that are expected to be recovered from 
customers in future periods through the rate setting process. In the absence of rate 
regulated accounting, GAAP would not permit deferral of regulatory assets and, 
therefore, the earnings impact would be recorded in the period of recovery. 

Regulatory liabilities represent amounts that are expected to be refunded to customers 
as a result of the rate-setting process. The GAAP treatment of regulatory liabilities and 
the resulting earnings impact is the same as that under rate regulated accounting 
because the liabilities represent contractual obligations. 

8. Debentures and bonds payable: 

Bonds 

6.29% Borealis-Enersource Series Bonds, 
Tranche 1, due May 3, 2011 

Deferred debt issue costs 
Accumulated amortization 

Net bonds payable 

Debentures 

4.52% Series A Debentures 
Due April 29, 2021 

Deferred debt issue costs (net of accumulated 
amortization of $43 (2010 - $nil)) 

5.30% Series B Debentures 
Due April 29, 2041 

Deferred debt issue costs (net of accumulated 
amortization of $13 (2010 - $nil)) 

Net debentures payable 

22 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2011 2010 

$ 290,000 
(4,336) 
4,147 

$ 289,811 

2011 2010 

110,000 $ 

(748) 

210,000 $ 

(1,388) 

317,864 $ 



ENERSOURCE CORPORATION 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Years ended December 31 , 2011 and 2010 

8. Debentures and bonds payable (continued): 

The Borealis-Enersource Series Bonds matured on May 3, 2011. On April 29, 2011, the 
Corporation completed its private placement debt offering of $320,000. The placement is 
comprised of $110,000 of Series A, 10-year debentures with a fixed coupon rate of 4.521 %, 
and $210,000 of Series B, 30-year debentures with a fixed coupon rate of 5.297%. The net 
proceeds of the debentures were used to repay the amount owed by the Corporation to 
Borealis Infrastructure Trust and the balance will be used for general corporate purposes. 

The debentures and bonds payable are considered as financial instruments and measured at 
amortized cost. 

Interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2011 included $17,091 (2010 - $18,241) in 
respect of interest on this debt and amortization of debt issue costs in the amount of $245 
(2010 - $555). 

The Corporation has the following material covenants associated with its long-term debt: 

(a) The Corporation will duly and punctually payor cause to be paid payments of principal and 
interest to each holder of the debentures. 

(b) The Corporation will, and will cause each designated subsidiary to maintain its corporate 
existence (unless all of its assets are or have been conveyed to the Corporation or another 
designated subsidiary), and will carry on and conduct its business in a proper and efficient 
manner. 

(c) The Corporation will provide to the Trustee copies of (i) within 120 days of each fiscal 
year end of the Corporation, annual audited consolidated financial statements of the 
Corporation together with a report of the Corporation's auditors thereon; (ii) within 60 days 
of the end of the first, second and third quarters of the Corporation's fiscal year, 
consolidated interim financial statements other than with respect to the consolidated interim 
financial report prepared in accordance with IFRS for the first quarter in which such report 
is required to be prepared, which may be provided within 90 days of the end of such 
quarter. 

(d) The Corporation will, and will cause each Designated Subsidiary to, from time to time pay 
or cause to be paid all taxes (including transfer taxes), rates, levies, payments in lieu of 
taxes, assessments (ordinary or extraordinary), government fees or dues lawfully levied, 
assessed or imposed upon or in respect of its respective property or any part thereof or 
upon its income and profits as and when the same become due and payable and to 
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ENERSOURCE CORPORATION 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Years ended December 31,2011 and 2010 

~-4lb)Cb) 

withhold and remit any amounts required to be withheld by it from payments due to others 
and remit the same to any government or agency thereof. 

8. Debentures and bonds payable (continued): 

(e) The Corporation will not, and will not permit any designated subsidiary to, create, assume 
or suffer to exist any security interest, other than permitted encumbrances, on any of its 
assets to secure any obligation, unless at the same time it secures equally and rateably 
therewith all the debentures issued pursuant to the Trust Indenture then outstanding. 

(I) The Corporation shall not issue, incur or become liable for obligations that exceed 75% of 
the total consolidated capitalization. 

(g) The Corporation may not amalgamate or consolidate with or merge into any other Person, 
or permit any other Person to amalgamate or consolidate with or merge into with the 
Corporation, or directly or indirectly transfer, sell, lease or otherwise dispose of all or 
substantially all of its property or assets. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Designated 
Subsidiary shall be permitted to merge with another entity provided that, after giving effect 
to such merger, it continues to be a Designated Subsidiary. 

(h) No default or event of default shall have occurred and be continuing, or shall occur. 

The Corporation is in compliance with all credit agreement covenants and limitations 
associated with its debt. 

9. Employee retirement and post-retirement benefits: 

(a) Pensions: 

During fiscal 2011, the Corporation expensed contributions made to OMERS of $2,956 
(2010 - $2,489). 

(b) Other retirement and post-retirement benefits: 

The Corporation measures its accrued benefit obligations for accounting purposes at 
December 31 each year. The latest actuarial valuation was performed as at December 31, 
2009. 
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ENERSOURCE CORPORATION 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 

9. Employee retirement and post-retirement benefits (continued): 

Retirement and post-retirement life, health and dental benefits plan: 

(i) Post-employment benefits obligation: 

Change in benefit obligations: 
Accrued benefit obligation, beginning of year $ 
Current service cost 
Amortization of transition obligation 
Interest cost 
Benefits paid 
Transition obligation 
Amortization of actuarial gain 
Net actuarial loss 

Post-emelolment benefits oblisation, end of lear $ 

2011 

5,168 $ 
207 
167 
289 

(163) 
(167) 

5,501 $ 

(ii) Reconciliation of retirement and post-retirement life, health and dental benefits plan: 

2011 

Accrued benefit, end of year $ 5,501 $ 
Unrecognized transition obligation (498) 
Unrecognized actuarial gain 153 

Accrued benefit liability $ 5,156 $ 

(iii) Significant assumptions: 

2011 

Discount rate 5.50% 
Health care cost increases 9.00% 
Dental cost increases 4.00% 
Rate of compensation increase 3.00% 

2010 

4,559 
178 
167 
279 

(155) 
(167) 

307 
5,168 

2010 

5,168 
(665) 
153 

4,656 

2010 

6.00% 
9.00% 
4.00% 
3.00% 

The total post-employment benefits liability for this plan at December 31, 2011 is $5,156 
(2010- $4,656). The unrecognized transition obligation relating to this plan is being 
amortized over the expected average remaining service lifetime on the date of transition. 
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ENERSOURCE CORPORATION 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Years ended December 31,2011 and 2010 

9. Employee retirement and post-retirement benefits (continued): 

The Corporation's net life, health and dental benefit expense relating to this plan is as 
follows: 

2011 2010 

Amortization of transition obligation $ 167 $ 167 
Current service cost 207 178 
Interest cost 289 279 
Amortization of actuarial gain 

$ 663 $ 624 

The December 31, 2011 accounting report assumed health care costs would increase by 
9% in 2011, then grading down to 5% per annum after 8 years. Dental costs were 
assumed to increase by 4% per annum. 

A 1% increase (decrease) in the interest assumption would decrease (increase) the 
expected post-retirement benefit obligation, the interest cost and the service cost by 
approximately $411. 

10. Capital stock: 

2011 2010 

Authorized: 
Unlimited Class A shares, voting 
1,000 Class B shares, non-voting 
100 Class C shares, voting 

Issued: 
180,555,562 Class A shares $ 155,628 $ 155,628 
1,000 Class B shares 1 1 
100 Class C shares 20,062 20,062 

$ 175,691 $ 175,691 

Dividends may be declared by the Board of Directors through a resolution. 

In 2011, a dividend of $10,622 (2010 - $10,538) was declared and paid to the Shareholders of 
the Corporation. 
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ENERSOURCE CORPORATION 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 

11. Change in non-cash operating working capital: 

2011 2010 

Accounts receivable $ (3,865) $ 2,449 
Unbilled revenue 7,824 (15,965) 
I ncome taxes receivable 535 
Inventory 345 199 
Prepaid expenses and deposits (480) 144 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 8,676 (5,561) 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities in assets (1,510) (585) 
Income taxes payable (543) 3,418 
Deferred revenue 10,993 104 
Advance payments (689) 688 
Regulatory liabilities 3,020 39,671 

$ 23,771 $ 25,097 

Accrued liabilities relating to additions to property, plant, equipment and intangible assets for 
the year ended December 31, 2011 of $7,124 (2010 - $5,614) have been excluded from the 
change in non-cash operating working capital and from cash used in investing activities. 

12. Contingencies: 

(a) Insurance claims: 

The Corporation is a member of the Municipal Electric Association Reciprocal Insurance 
Exchange ("MEARIE"). A reciprocal insurance exchange may be defined as a group of 
persons formed for the purpose of exchanging reciprocal contracts of indemnity or 
inter-insurance with each other. MEARIE is licensed to provide general liability insurance 
to its members. 

Insurance premiums charged to each member consist of a levy per thousand dollars of 
service revenue subject to a credit or surcharge based on each member's claims 
experience. Current liability coverage is provided to a level of $24,000 per occurrence. 
The Corporation has also obtained additional general liability insurance of $10,000 per 
occurrence. 

Enersource Hydro has been jointly named as a defendant in several actions. No provision 
has been made for these potential liabilities as Enersource Hydro expects that these claims 
are adequately covered by its insurance. 
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ENERSOURCE CORPORATION 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Years ended December 31,2011 and 2010 

12. Contingencies (continued): 

(b) Environmental matters: 

Q-4CF)(t) 

(i) The Corporation is subject to Canadian federal, provincial and municipal environmental 
regulations. As part of the Corporation's risk mitigation strategy, environmental 
assessments and environmental remediation is underway at various sites. The 
Corporation records a liability for the estimated future expenditures associated with 
testing and remediation of contaminated lands at various municipal substations and 
neighbouring properties. Actual future environmental expenditures may vary from these 
estimates. As at December 31, 2011, the Corporation provided $160 (2010 - $217) for 
testing and future remediation. 

(ii) Environment Canada has issued new regulations governing the management of 
PCB's. On December 1, 2008, the OEB approved the Corporation's request to defer 
any expenses incurred to comply with the new regulations. As at December 31, 2011, 
the Corporation deferred $1,236 (2010 - $974) included in regulatory assets, 
representing costs incurred for compliance with the new regulations. 

13. Commitments: 

Property, plant, equipment and intangible asset purchase commitments outstanding as at 
December 31, 2011 total $12,800 (2010 - $7,524). 

As at December 31, 2011, the future minimum annual lease payments under property 
operating leases totalled $127 (2010 - $121). 

14. Financial instruments: 

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, deposits and 
prudentials, accounts payable and accrued liabilities and advance payments approximate their 
fair values because of the short term to maturity of these financial instruments. 

The Borealis-Enersource series bonds with a face value of $290,000 matured on May 3, 2011. 
They had a fair value of $294,318 at December 31, 2010. 
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ENERSOURCE CORPORATION 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Years ended December 31 , 2011 and 2010 

The private placement debt offering, having a principal amount of $320,000 (2010 - $nil), have 
a fair value of $376,766 (2010 - $nil), based on year-end quoted market prices. 

Exposure to market risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk arises in the normal 
course of the Corporation's business. 

14. Financial instruments (continued): 

(a) Market risk: 

Market risk refers primarily to risk of loss that results from changes in commodity prices, foreign 
exchange rates and interest rates. The Corporation does not have commodity risk due to the 
flow through nature of commodity costs and its foreign exchange risk is not considered material 
since the Corporation's exposure is limited to U.S. dollar cash and cash equivalent holdings of 
$4 as at December 31, 2011 (2010 - $103). 

Distribution rates and charges are currently based on a revenue requirement less other 
income, which includes interest income. The difference between actual interest income earned 
by the Corporation and the interest revenue reduction approved by the OEB may have a 
negative impact on the results of operations. 

(b) Credit risk: 

The Corporation manages counterparty credit risk through various techniques including limiting 
total exposure levels with individual counterparties consistent with the Corporation's policies 
and monitoring the financial condition of counterparties. Short-term investments held as at 
December 31,2011, met the criteria specified under the Corporation's Investment Policy. 

Financial assets create credit risk that a counterparty will fail to discharge an obligation, 
causing a financial loss. The Corporation's distribution revenue is earned on a broad base of 
customers principally located in Mississauga. As a result, the Corporation did not earn a 
significant amount of revenue from any individual customer. As at December 31, 2011, there 
were no significant balances of accounts receivable due from any single customer. 

Management believes that the credit risk of accounts receivable is limited due to the following 
reasons: 

(i) There is a broad base of customers with no single customer that accounts for revenue 
or an accounts receivable balance in excess of 10% of the respective balance in either 
year. 

29 



ENERSOURCE CORPORATION 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Years ended December 31 , 2011 and 2010 

(ii) Enersource Hydro, as permitted by the OEB's Retail Settlement and Distribution 
System Code, may obtain a security deposit or letter of credit from customers to 
mitigate risk of payment defaul!. 

14. Financial instruments (continued): 

(c) 

(iii) The percentage of accounts receivable that is past due for more than 75 days is 
approximately 8.7% (2010 - 9.0%) of the total net outstanding balance. 

(iv) Enersource Hydro included an amount for accounts receivable write-offs within 
operations, maintenance and administration expense for rate setting purposes. 

Pursuant to their respective terms, accounts receivable are aged as follows as at 
December 31: 

2011 2010 

Total accounts receivable $ 63,554 $ 58,552 
Less allowance for doubtful accounts (3,673) (2,536) 

Total accounts receivable, net $ 59,881 $ 56,016 

Of which: 
Not yet due $ 33,054 $ 37,052 
Past due 1 day but not more than 15 17,647 8,513 
Past due 15 days but not more than 45 5,691 6,207 
Past due 45 days but not more than 75 1,931 1,721 
Past due 75 days but not more than 105 1,335 1,354 
Past due more than 105 days 3,896 3,705 
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (3,673) (2,536) 

Total accounts receivable, net $ 59,881 $ 56,016 

Liquidity risk: 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Corporation will not be able to meet its financial obligations 
as they come due. Short-term liquidity is provided through cash and cash equivalents on 
hand, funds from operations, as well as an established $50,000 banking line of credit, if 
required. Short-term liquidity is expected to be sufficient to fund normal operating 
requirements. The liquidity risks associated with financial commitments are as follows: 
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Years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 

14. Financial instruments (continued): 

Financial liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued 

liabilities 
Debenture interest and principle 

payable 

(d) Interest rate risk: 

Due within 
1 year 

$ 99,564 

16,097 

$ 115,561 

Due between 1 
and 5 years 

$ 

64,387 

$ 64,387 

The Corporation minimizes interest rate risk by issuing long-term fixed rate deb!. 

15. Related party transactions: 

$ 

Due past 
5 years 

614,910 

$ 614,910 

The Corporation's operations include the provision of electricity and services to its principal 
shareholder, the City. Electricity is billed to the City at the prices and terms established 
between the City and its electricity retailer. Streetlighting maintenance and construction 
services are provided at an exchange amount, being that amount agreed to by the parties. A 
summary of amounts charged by the Corporation to the City is as follows: 

Electrical energy 
Streetlighting maintenance and construction 
Streetlighting energy 

2011 

$ 9,415 
4,578 
6,315 

2010 

$ 9,677 
6,355 
6,098 

At December 31, 2011, accounts payable and accrued liabilities include $28 (2010 - $33) due 
to the City and accounts receivable include $2,610 (2010 - $3,093) due from the City. 

At December 31,2011, the Corporation incurred property taxes which are paid to the City in the 
amount of $820 (2010 - $814). 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
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Years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 

The Corporation charged Borealis $9 (2010 - $9) for an access agreement. These transactions 
were recorded at the exchange amount being the amount agreed to by the parties. At 
December 31,2011, accounts receivable included $nil (2010 - $nil) due from Borealis. 

15. Related party transactions (continued): 

Enerpower Corporation is an organization in which the Corporation holds a 10% minority 
ownership interest. The Corporation was charged $10,103 (2010 - $8,530) by Enerpower 
Corporation during 2011 for the construction of distribution system infrastructure. At December 
31, 2011, accounts payable and accrued liabilities due to Enerpower Corporation were $2,193 
(2010 - $1,651). 

The Corporation received a dividend from Enerpower Corporation during 2011 of $247 (2010 -
$332). 

16. Segmented information: 

The Corporation operates primarily in two operating segments, electricity distribution services 
and other operations. Other operations are primarily comprised of engineering design, 
construction and maintenance services for utilities and developers and streetlighting design 
and maintenance services. 

The designation of segments is based on a combination of regulatory status and the nature of 
the products and services provided. The accounting policies followed by the segments are the 
same as those described in the summary of significant accounting policies. 

2011 

Revenue 

Operating expenses 
AmortizatIon 

Interest income 
Interest expense 

Income before the under noted 

Income taxes 

$ 

Electricity 
distribution 

services 

813,959 

(740,575) 
(33,810) 

(774,385) 
39,574 

1,154 
(17,958) 

22,770 

2,131 

32 

Other Intersegment 
operations eliminations Total 

10,760 (368) 824,351 

(8,705) 368 (748,912) 
(134) (33,944) 

(8,839) 368 (782,856) 
1,921 41,495 

277 1,431 
(17) (17,975) 

2,181 24,951 

74 2,205 



ENERSOURCE CORPORATION 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Years ended December 31,2011 and 2010 

16. 

Net income $ 20,639 

Capital expenditures $ 43,574 
Increase in cash and cash 

equivalents 51,742 

Segmented information (continued): 

2010 

Revenue 

Operating expenses 
Amortization 

Interest Income 
Interest expense 

Income before the under noted 

I ncome taxes 

Net Income 

Capital expenditures 
Increase in cash and cash 

equivalents 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Electricity 
distribution 

services 

813,896 

(726,379) 
(45,542) 

(771,921) 
41,975 

463 
(18,982) 

23,456 

6,404 

17,052 

42,302 

18,260 

2,107 

186 

1,817 

Other 
operations 

$ 8,390 

(7,722) 
(134) 

(7,856) 
534 

163 
(17) 

680 

28 

$ 652 

$ 32 

1,547 

Intersegment 
eliminations 

$ (410) 

410 

410 

$ 

$ 

Total assets for the Corporation's two operating segments are as follows: 

2011 

Electricity distribution services $ 752,285 
Other operations 29,108 

Total assets $ 781,393 

17. Energy purchases: 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

22,746 

43,760 

53,559 

Total 

821,876 

(733,691 ) 
(45,676) 

(779,367) 
42,509 

626 
(18,999) 

24,136 

6,432 

17,704 

42,334 

19,807 

2010 

694,515 
27,660 

722,175 

All electricity purchases for standard supply customers are subject to pricing determined by the 

IESO, a provincial government body. 

Included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities as at December 31, 2011 is $58,893 
(2010- $63,438) owed in respect of electricity purchases through the IESO. 
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Years ended December 31 , 2011 and 2010 

18. Comparative figures: 

12-4U')(I) 

Certain 2010 comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the financial 
statement presentation adopted in 2011. 
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Audit Committee May 7,2012 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 2 - 2012 
HAY 2 32012 

TO: MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF COUNCIL 

The Audit Committee presents its second report of 2012 and recommends: 

AC-0004-2012 
That the Audit Committee minutes of March 5, 2012 be approved as presented. 

AC-0005-20 12 
That the Information Security - Identity and Access Management Project, approved as 
an assurance assignment (i.e. audit) under the 2011 Internal Audit Work Plan on March 
7, 2011, be switched to a consulting engagement with periodic updates to the Audit 
Committee on the status and progress of the engagement. 

AC-0006-2012 
That the report dated April 23, 2012 from the Director of Internal Audit with respect to 
the 2011 Investment Audit be received for information. 

AC-0007 -2012 
That the report dated April 25, 2012 from the City Manager & Chief Administrative 
Officer regarding the status of outstanding audit recommendations be received for 
information. 

AC-0008-2012 
That the 2011 Audited Financial Statements for City of Mississauga (City), City of 
Mississauga Public Library Board, City of Mississauga Trust Funds, Clarkson Business 
Improvement Area, Port Credit Business Improvement Area, Streetsville Business 
Improvement Area, and Enersource Corporation be received. 

AC-0009-2012 
That the 2011 External Audit Findings and Recommendations Report dated April 26, 
2012 from the Commissioner of Corporate Services and Treasurer, which includes the 
Audit Findings Report from KPMG for the fiscal year 2011 for the City of Mississauga, 
be received for information. 

AC-0010-2012 
That the memorandum dated April 30, 2012 from the Director of Culture Division re: 
Culture Grant Policy, be received for information. 

AC-0011-2012 
That the Final Audit Report: Community Services Department, Recreation Division -
Mississauga Spectator Arena Complex (Hershey Centre) Management Agreement 
Audit - Phase I, be received. 



General Connnittee May 16, 2012 

REPORT 10 - 2012 
MAY 232012 

COUNCIL AGENDA 

TO: THE MAYOR & MEMBERS OF COUNCIL 

General Connnittee of Council presents its tenth Report of2012 and reconnnends: 

GC-0368-2012 
That the information related to potentially implementing comer parking prohibitions due to 
identified safety issues be included in the parking questionnaire distributed to the residents as 
part of the Resident Parking Petition process. 

GC-0369-2012 
That a by-law be enacted to amend By-law 555-2000, as amended, to implement an all-
way stop at the intersection of White Clover Way and Trailmaster Drive/Sandford Farm Drive. 
(Ward 6) 

GC-0370-2012 
That the Corporate Report dated April 23, 2012 from the Connnissioner of Transportation and 
Works with respect to an all-way stop at Miller's Grove and Switzer Gate be referred to the 
General Committee meeting on May 30, 2012. 
(Ward 9) 

GC-0371-20l2 
That a by-law be enacted to amend By-law 555-2000, as amended, to implement an all-way stop 
at the intersection of Owls Foot Drive and Summerside Drive. 
(Ward 10) 

GC-0372-20l2 
That a by-law be enacted to amend By-law 555-2000, as amended, to extend the 40 kmlh 
speed zone on Miller's Grove between Bartholomew Crescent (south intersection) and 
Battleford Road. 
(Ward 9) 

GC-0373-20l2 
That a by-law be enacted to implement a temporary road closure of Donnelly Drive at Mary Fix 
Creek connnencing at 7:00 a.m., Tuesday, July 3, 2012 and ending at 7:00 p.m., Friday, July 20, 
2012. 
(Ward 1) 

GC-0374-2012 
That the City of Mississauga assume the municipal works as constructed by the developer under 
the terms of the Servicing Agreement for CD.09.TRI, 488236 Ontario Limited, (lands located 
South of Courtneypark Drive East, West of Danville Road, East of Kennedy Road and North of 
Otto Road), and that the Letter of Credit in the amount of $20,451.05 be returned to the 
developer. 
(Ward 5) 



General Committee -2- May 16, 2012 

GC-0375-2012 
That a by-law be enacted to authorize the Commissioner of Transportation and Works and the 
City Clerk to execute and affix a Corporate Seal to the required municipal statement confirming 
installation offacilities and services to be added to Schedule' G' to Declaration for a Standard or 
Phased Condominium Corporation for Draft Plan of Phased Condominium CDM.12.005, Phase 
2, located at 2288 Britannia Road West and 5972 Turney Drive. 
(Ward 11) 

GC-0376-2012 
1. That the Realty Services Section of the Corporate Services Department be authorized to 

enter into negotiations for a License Agreement, or such form of agreement as deemed 
appropriate by the City Solicitor, between the City of Mississauga and the Mississauga 
Aquatic Club for the subject property in accordance with the principles contained herein. 

2. That the Commissioner of the Community Services Department and City Clerk be 
authorized to execute the License Agreements or such form of agreement as deemed 
appropriate by the City Solicitor, and all documents ancillary thereto, including amending 
agreements, between the City of Mississauga and the Mississauga Aquatic Club. 

3. That all necessary by-laws be enacted. 
(Ward 3) 

GC-0377-2012 
1. That the 2012 net operating levy be approved at $345,435,000. 

2. That the City of Mississauga's 2012 tax ratios remain unchanged and be set as follows: 

Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 
Multi-residential 
Pipeline 
Farmland 
Managed Forest 

1.000000 
1.409816 
1.570762 
1.778781 
1.151172 
0.250000 
0.250000 

3. That the City of Mississauga' s 2012 tax rates be established as outlined in Appendix 1 to 
the report dated May 3, 2012 from the Commissioner of Corporate Services and 
Treasurer. 

4. That the 2012 residential tax due dates be set for July 5th
, August 2nd and September 6'\ 

2012. 

5. That the 2012 non-residential tax due date be set for August 2nd
, 2012. 

6. That the 2012 due dates for properties enrolled in one of the City's Pre-authorized Tax 
Payment Plans be set based on their chosen withdrawal date. 



General Committee - 3 - May 16,2012 

7. That the 2012 budgets of the Clarkson, Port Credit and Streetsville Business 
Improvement Areas as set out in Appendix 2 requiring tax levies of $63,200, $536,568 
and $226,000 respectively, be approved as submitted, and that the necessary budget 
adjustments be made. 

8. That the rates to levy the 2012 taxes for the Clarkson, Port Credit and Streetsville 
Business Improvement Areas be established as set out in Appendix 3 to the report dated 
May 3, 2012 from the Commissioner of Corporate Services and Treasurer. 

9. That the necessary by-laws be enacted. 

GC-0378-2012 
1. That the Purchasing Agent be authorized to execute the necessary contracts for the period 

of2012 through to 2017 to Cisco Systems Canada Co. for Technological Upgrades and 
Expansion to Existing Network Infrastructure including ongoing maintenance at an 
estimated amount of $3,034,000 exclusive of taxes, based on a five year contract term; 

2. That the Purchasing Agent be authorized to issue contract amendments to increase the 
value ofthe contract where necessary to accommodate growth and where amount is 
approved in the budget; 

3. That Cisco Systems Canada Co. (Cisco Systems) continue to be designated a "City 
Standard" for a five year term. 

GC-0379-2012 
That the matter of the name and the logo of the Civic Centre Cafe be referred back to the 
Mississauga Celebration Square Events Committee for further discussion. 
(MCSEC-0014-20 12) 

GC-0380-2012 
That the PowerPoint presentation by Katie Brewda, Acting Manager, Sponsorship providing a 
review of sponsorship for the 2012 Canada Day celebrations at the Mississauga Celebration 
Square, be received for information. 
(MCSEC-0015-2012) 

GC-0381-2012 
That the Mississauga Celebration Square Events Committee supports the concept of Mississauga 
Legends Row at the Mississauga Celebration Square and that staff report back to the Committee. 
(MCSEC-0016-20l2) 

GC-0382-20l2 
That the PowerPoint presentation by Melissa Agius, Manager, Mississauga Celebration Square 
Events regarding programming and 2012 marketing for the Mississauga Celebration Square to be 
presented at Council on May 23, 2012, be received for information. 
(MCSEC-0017-2012) 



General Committee - 4 - May 16, 2012 

GC-0383-2012 
That the letter dated April 3, 2012 from Jackie Chan, resident with respect to the viewing of the 
2012 summer Olympics on the digital screens in the Mississauga Celebration Square be received 
and that the Legislative Coordinator be directed to forward a response letter to Ms. Chan. 
(MCSEC-0018-20 12) 

GC-0384-2012 
That the matter of the role of public art on the Mississauga Celebration Square be deferred to the 
May 28,2012 Mississauga Celebration Square Events Committee meeting. 
(MCSEC-0019-2012) 

GC-0385-2012 
That the PowerPoint presentation, dated May 1,2012 and entitled "Woodlands & Natural Areas 
Update," by Jessika Corkum-Gorrill, Parks Natural Areas Coordinator, Sarah Jane Miller, Forest 
Ecologist Assistant, and Jessica McEachren, Forest Ecologist, to the Environmental Advisory 
Committee on May 1, 2012 be received. 
(EAC-0023-2012) 

GC-0386-2012 
That the chart from Environmental Management staff with respect to upcoming agenda items 
and Environmental Advisory Committee (EAC) role be received. 
(EAC-0024-2012) 

GC-0387-2012 
That the chart dated May 1,2012 from Julie Lavertu, Legislative Coordinator, Environmental 
Advisory Committee, with respect to the status of outstanding issues from the Environmental 
Advisory Committee (EAC) be received. 
(EAC-0025-2012) 

GC-0388-2012 
That the Memorandum dated April12, 2012 from Brenda E. Osborne, Manager, Environment, 
with respect to the Region of Peel's outdoor special event recycling service ~ proposed 
enhancements and City of Mississauga involvement be received. 
(EAC-0026-2012) 

GC-0389-2012 
That staff be authorized to obtain quotes for purchasing 300 or 500 Tour de Mississaugajerseys, 
200 Tour de Mississauga t-shirts and 50 Marshal t-shirts for Tour de Mississauga. 
(MCAC-0032-2012) 

GC-0390-2012 
That a speaker for a public event be referred to staff for further consideration regarding 
availability of a speaker, information to be presented and marketing of the public speaker. 
(MCAC-0033-2012) 

GC-0391-2012 
That the 2012 Bikeway and Trail Maps be received for information. 
(MCAC-0034-2012) 



General Committee - 5 - May 16, 2012 

GC-0392-2012 
That Irwin Nayer, Citizen Member from the Mississauga Cycling Advisory Committee (MCAC) 
attend the 2012 Joint Meetings of Bicycling Committees being held on May 9, 2012 in WeIland 
Ontario. 
(MCAC-0035-2012) 

GC-0393-2012 
That the 2012 calendar of events regarding Mississauga cycling related events in 2012 be 
received for information. 
(MCAC-0036-2012) 

GC-0394-2012 
That the action list from the meeting held on April 10, 2012 be received for information. 
(MCAC-0037-2012) 

GC-0395-2012 
1. That the report entitled" Update on Sheridan College Phase 2" from the City Manager 

and Chief Administrative Officer, dated May 4,2012, be received for information. 

2. That the letter received from Dr. Jeff Zabudsky, dated October 20, 2011, with respect to 
pursuing a lease on the Option Lands, located on the west side of Duke of York 
Boulevard, between Rathburn Road West and Square One Drive, be received for 
information. 

3. That staff continue to work with representatives of Sheridan College to negotiate and 
fmalize all relevant details and issues pertaining to the development of the Phase II 
campus building together with related issues connected with the Phase I campus building 
including but not limited to details involving underground parking on Phase II site, the 
content of the Sheridan Master Plan document, details of a proposed Ground Lease 
Agreement and accompanying documents (i.e. Consent to Enter Documents, Licence 
Agreement, Development/Site Plan Agreement, etc.), and to report back to Council on 
the details of the Ground Lease Agreement, prior to work commencing on the subject 
lands. 

4. That staff report back with the results of the parking study in a timely manner in 
conjunction with an update on the broader downtown action plan. 

5. That staff be directed to negotiate an underground parking solution with Sheridan College 
and report back on the details. 

GC-0396-2012 
That the educational session regarding the Emerald Ash Borer be received for information. 



\- \ -

THE FRANKLIN 
"'~-U:S:t.:5: 

COUNCJLAGENDti 

bUY 2 32912 

May 10,2012 

Cannela Radice: 
City of Mississauga Legislative Services Division 

I am writing to request that the approval by Mississauga City Council resolution 
0090-2012 in letter dated April 26, 2012 be amended to show that the "City has no 
objection to The Franklin House for the temporary extension of an existing liquor licence 
for Bread & Honey Festival" to show dates Saturday June 2nd and Sunday June 3rd

, 

. ad e- 1st d2nd mste .or June an, = 

If you require any further detailS', please call me at the number listed below. 

Sincerely, 

I rI'" Receive IIt'Resolution 

o Direction Required o Resolution I By·Law 

g Proctor, Owner o Community Services For 
o Corporate Services o Appropriate Action 

o Information 
o Planning & Building o Reply 
o Transportation & Works o Report 

263 Queen St. South, Mississauga, Ontario (905) 369-0500 



Carmela Radice 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Morning Ms. Radice: 

Evelyn Liu .' 
2012/05/14 8:41 AM 
Carmela Radice 
Re: 5881 Creditview rod 

\-~ 

My name is Evelyn Liu, living in 1480 Britannia Rd W., Unit 163. I am writing to strongly against the 
proposal of National Home from Zoning RM2 to RM 6. We have explained dour reasons at the PIC Feb. 13 
2012. 

I can't make it May 232012 as I have to work. 

Please kindly pass my opinion to the meeting. 

COUNClLAGENDA 

MAY 2 32012 Many thanks, Evelyn 

I~eceive o Roso/utlon 

o Direction Required CJ Resolution I By-Law 

o Community Services 
~ o Corporate Services Appropriate Action 

u"Plannir,g & Building 

o Information 

o Reply 
o Transportation & Works o Report 
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Walk ""\-3 
to figlrt 

Arthritis 
May 14, 2012 P:"""""<ibY~ 

The City of Mississauga 
Legislative Services, Office of the City Clerk 
300 City Centre Dr. 

COUNCJLAaENDA 

Mississauga, On L5B 3C1 
MAY 2 32012 

On behalf of The Arthritis Society, I am pleased to provide information about the 3'd annual Walk to 
Fight Arthritis, presented by the makers of TYLENOL®. 

Chances are you or someone you know has been affected by arthritis. On June 10, you can join us along 
with Canadians in 21 other communities across Canada. You can show your support in the fight against 
arthritis by participating in the Walk and by encouraging others to join the Walk through your 
newsletters, social media and other correspondence. Your local Walk details are: 

What: The Arthritis Society's Walk to Fight Arthritis presented by the makers of TYLENOL • 
Date: June 10, 2012 
Location: Mississauga Valley Park, 1275 Mississauga Valley Blvd. 
Time: Registration: lOam Walk Starts l1am. 

The Walk to Fight Arthritis seeks to raise awareness of and support the fight against arthritis, a leading 
cause of disability in Canada. Donations collected by participants fund leading research and essential 
programs that support the nearly 4.5 million Canadians who live with arthritis, a number that is growing 
rapidly and expected to reach more than 7 million by 2031. In fact, arthritis is not just a normal part of 
aging. Sixty per cent of those with arthritis are below age 65. Over the past 60+ years, The Arthritis 
Society has established itself as a leader in the fight against arthritis by helping people to live well while 
creating a future without arthritis. 

To date, more than 3700 people have registered to participate in the Walk -140 of which are registered 
for the Mississauga site. 

If you have any questions about joining us in the Walk or to discuss your inclusion in the day's program, I 
can be reached at 905.455.6273 x 221 or Icatrambone@on.arthritis.ca. I am sure all ofthe participants 
would appreciate your support. You can also visit www.WalkToFightArthritis.ca or our Facebook page 
for more information and to register. 

Thank you for considering this invitation. I look forward to corresponding with you. 

Warm regards, 

Lorna Catrambone 
Manager, Community Engagement 

~eceive o Resolution 

o Direction Required o Resolution I By-Law 

o Community Services For 
o Corporate Services o Appropriate Action 

Vlnformatlon 
Peel Region Office: o Planning & Building o Reply 

o Transportation & Works o Report 
#214 - 40 Finchgate Blvd., Brampton, On L6T 3J1 



Laura Wilson 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

Jill 

Diana Haas 
May 15, 201212:18 PM 
Jill Angus 
George Carlson; Stacey Balian; Haig Yeghouchian; Laura Wilson 
RE: 306 Queen SI. South, south of Princess Street OZ10/013 

Please accept this email as confinnation that I have received your written submission with respect to Planning and 
Development File OZ 10/013 Wll. A copy of this email has been forwarded to the Plamling and Building 
Department aud to Councillor George Carlson, Ward 11. By copy of this email to Stacey BaHan, I am also requesting 
that you be added to any distribution lists associated with the file. 

Thank you 

Sincerely 

Diana Haas 
Council Support Services Assistant 
Legislative Services 
City oj Mississouga 
905-615-3200 Ext. 4915 
diana. haas@mfssfssauqa.co 

~ecE'ive 

0 Direction Required 

o Community Services 

COUNCILAGENDA 

MAY 2 32012 

I 
[J Resolution 

[J Resolution I By-law 

r-J-J;;;-Gq)Ofata.-Sentic~~~~ ___ ~ ~ . ..IIpwllPllat!thcllon ..... .. ~~~~ 
From: Jill Angus 
Sent: May 14, 20123:54 f'M 
To: Diana Haas 
Subject: 306 Queen St. South, south of Princess Street 

Dear Ms. Haas, 

g4.';laniling & Building 

[J Information 
[J Reply 

o Transportation & Works o Report 

I live at 336 Queen St. South, Unit 12, Streetsville and will be unable to attend the public meeting planned for 
tonight, May 14, 2012 at Mississauga Civic Centre. 

I am very opposed to the proposed construction of a two storey medical bulding at 306 Queen Street South and 
would like to have my obtjection become part of the public record. I apologize for forwarding this email after the 
12:00 p.m. deadline. 

My objections are: 

1. Construction of a larger building with large parking lot. 

A larger building will need a large parking lot. This will increase traffic entering and leaving the location. Queen 
Street is already very congested. The addition of more traffic will result in more pollution, noise, aCCidents, and 
inconvenience. It is my understanding that Queen Street (the old main street of Streetsville) has been deSignated a 
heritage road, which means that the street cannot be widened. 

2. Degradation of Property Values. 

I live at Princess Mews, 336 Queen Street South. The proposed parking lot behind 306 Queen Street South will 
extend from the back of 306 Queen st. to the back fence bordering my neighbours' properties. They will endure 
noise and pollution, and their homes will lose value. Furthermore, if this development is allowed, it will set a 
precedent for further development along Queen Street South, negatively affecting many more of the properties at 
Princes Mews. 

I realize that we cannot prevent development in Streetsville, but if we are to keep the small town feel of the town, 

1 



development must enhance, not detract from that ideal. This proposed development will financially benefit Dr. Gusic, 
but will adversely affect his neighbours and the streetscape of Streetsvile. I do not see why we should allow this to 
happen. A smaller building with a smaller, well landscaped parking lot would be a better fit. I hope that Mississaga 
Council can prevail upon this gentleman to give more thought to his proposed development. 

Yours Sincerely, 
Jill Angus 
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-:I.-5 
Crystal Greer 

Subject: 
Attachments: 

Health Canada report on Radiofrequency Electromagnetic Energy 
Mississauga Council reponse RF radiation May 8 2012 FINAL.DOC; 
20120306161159333.pdf; 20120508155549569.pdf 

From: Wiegand, Dianne [mailto:Dianne.wiegand@peelreqion.ca] On Behalf Of Mowat, David 
Sent: 05/08/2012 3:23 PM 
To: Hazel McCallion 
Ce: Kolb, Emil; Szwarc, David; Smith, Janette; Reid, Carol; Bingham, Kate; Carol Horvat 
Subject: RE: Health Canada report on Radiofrequency Electromagnetic Energy 

Dear Mayor McCallion: 

COUNCIL AGENDA 

HAY 232012 

In response to your request following the adoption of Resolution 0036-2012 by the Council of the 
Corporation of the City of Mississauga, attached is a report on the health effects of radiofrequency 
radiation, including comments on Health Canada's Safety Code 6, "Limits of Human Exposure to 
Radiofrequency Electromagnetic Fields in the Frequency Range from 3 kHz to 300 GHz." 

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any further questions. 

Sincerely, 

David L. Mowat, MBChB, MPH, FRCPC 
Medical Officer of Health 
Peel Public Health 
7120 Hurontario Street 
PO Box 667, RPO Streetsville 
Mississauga, ON L5M 2C2 

Fax: 905-564-2683 
Phone: 905-791-7800 ext. 2566 

April 27, 2012 

David, 

st'Receive 

o Direction Required 

o Community Services 

o Corporate Services 

o Planning & Building 
o Transportation & Works 

o ResolutIon 

o Aesolutlon f By-law 

For 
o Appropriate Action 

IiJ""!nformation 
o Reply 
o Report 

Further to your e-mail dated March 8th on the above-noted matter, do you have any idea when we might anticipate a 
response? 

Thank you. 

Carol Horvat 
Executive Assistant to the Mayor 
City of Mississauga 
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300 City Centre Drive, 3rd Floor 
Mississauga, Ontario L5B 3C1 
Tel: (905) 615-4030 
Fax: (905) 896-5879 

"This e-mail may not be forwarded or shored without written permission of the author. " 

From: Wiegand, Dianne On Behalf Of Mowat, David 
Sent: March 8, 2012 11:49 AM 
To: McCallion, Hazel 
Cc: Kolb, Emil; Szwarc, David; Smith, Janette; Reid, Carol 
Subject: Health Canada report on Radiofrequency Electromagnetic Energy 

Dear Mayor McCallion: 

Thank you for forwarding the Health Canada report on Radiofrequency Electromagnetic Energy for 
my comments. 

In order to properly assess the report, we will need to look at the literature on this topic as a whole. 
We have started this process and will provide comments as soon as our review is complete. 

David L. Mowat, MBChB, MPH, FRCPC 
Medical Officer of Health 
Peel Public Health 
7120 Hurontario Street 
PO Box 667, RPO Streetsville 
Mississauga, ON L5M 2C2 

Fax: 905-564-2683 
Phone: 905-791-7800 ext. 2566 

z 



May 8,2012 

Health Effects of Radiofrequency Energy 
Report to Mississauga City Council 

Mississauga City Council has asked Peel Public Health to review and comment on the 
document: Safety Code 6, "Limits of Human Exposure to Radiofrequency 
Electromagnetic Fields in the Frequency Range from 3 kHz to 300 GHz" (Health Canada 
2009) in response to concerns from employees regarding the potential health effects of 
exposure to mobile phone base stations. This report includes a review of Safety Code 6, 
as well as the results of a broader review ofthe current research regarding the potential 

health effects of radiofrequency energy. 

Radiofrequency Energy 
Radiofrequency (RF) energy refers to the portion ofthe electromagnetic spectrum that 
can be readily used for radio communications. The electromagnetic spectrum covers the 
entire range of energy that is emitted from a variety of natural and manmade sources: 
from low frequency (long wave length), low energy heat waves and radio waves, 
through microwaves, infrared light, visible light and ultraviolet light, to high frequency 
(short wave length), high-energy x-rays and gamma radiation. It includes both ionizing 
and non-ionizing radiation. Radiofrequency energy is non-ionizing radiation, meaning 
that, unlike ionizing radiation, it does not have sufficient energy to create ions (charged 
atoms or molecules) which can cause DNA damage, break chemical bonds in cells, and 
create free radicals which can also be damaging to cells. 

RF energy includes frequencies ranging from 3 kHz to 300 GHz, below that of visible light 
and infrared radiation and above that of extremely low frequency (ELF) electromagnetic 
radiation, the energy emitted from overhead power lines and anything else with 
electricity flowing through it. RF energy is produced by mobile (cell) phones and base 
stations, radio and television broadcasting facilities, radar, microwaves, and a variety of 
other electronic devices. 

People are exposed to RF energy both from localized sources very close to the body (e.g. 
mobile phones) that focus the energy over a small area, and sources at a distance 
greater than one wave-length (e.g. base stations) that result in relatively uniform whole­
body exposure. Both types of exposure are addressed in Safety Code 6; however, the 
focus ofthis report will be on far-field whole-body exposures such as those from mobile 
phone base stations. 

Regulation in Canada 
Safety Code 6, "Limits of Human Exposure to Radiofrequency Electromagnetic Fields in 
the Frequency Range from 3 kHz to 300 GHz," is a guideline for exposure to 
radiofrequency fields prepared by Health Canada's Consumer and Clinical Radiation 
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Protection Bureau. It was first published in 1999 and was updated in 2009. The specified 
exposure limits apply for workers and visitors to all federally regulated sites, but may be 
adopted by provinces and territories, industry, or other regulatory bodies. 

Industry Canada regulates all radio-communications and broadcasting equipment in 
Canada, including mobile phone base stations. Industry Canada has adopted Safety 
Code 6 for the purpose of protecting the health of the general public, and requires that 
operators comply with the specified limits at all times, including the consideration of the 
combined effects of nearby installations and any new updates. 

The exposure limits specified by Health Canada in Safety Code 6 are developed by 
means of a thorough evaluation of peer-reviewed studies on the thermal and possible 
non-thermal effects of RF energy on health. This process involves a weight-of-evidence 
approach, where both the quantity of studies and, more importantly, their quality, are 
taken into account. Poorly conducted studies are given less weight than those that use 
more rigorous methods. Exposure limits are set based on the lowest level at which 
scientifically-established health hazards occur, with a safety factor built in for additional 
protection. Other scientific bodies internationally use a similar weight-of-evidence 
approach to develop exposure limits and therefore the basic restrictions in Canada are 
similar to standards adopted by other countries. 

Exposure to Radiofrequency Energy 
In contrast to ionizing and ultraviolet radiation, where the greater proportion of 
exposure is from natural sources, most RF energy exposure is from man-made sources. 
The use of electrical energy and telecommunications technology has increased 
substantially over the past several decades, and it is clear that exposure of the general 
population has increased substantially. 

The absorption of RF energy depends on power density, which in turn depends on the 
power output of the device and the configuration ofthe transmitting antenna, distance 
from the source, frequency, volume and duration ofthe exposure, and characteristics of 
the affected tissues. At frequencies between 100 kHz and 6 GHz, RF energy absorption is 
usually described in terms ofthe specific absorption rate (SAR). The SAR is a measure of 
the rate of energy deposition per unit of mass of body tissue and is usually expressed in 
units of watts per kilogram (W/kg). The SAR cannot be easily measured in humans and is 
usually estimated from simulations or computer-based models. 

Several researchers have conducted surveys of exposure levels around mobile phone 
base stations, including some studies using personal exposure meters, to characterize 
the distribution of exposure to RF energy in the general population. Average exposures 
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were generally less than 1% of the recommended reference levell, and peak exposures 
were less than 10% ofthe reference level (HPA 2012). 

Health Effects 
The established negative health effects associated with RF energy relate to tissue 
heating. These include burns, the potential for impaired fertility due to whole body 
heating or localized heating of reproductive organs, and impaired cognitive performance 
from whole-body heat stress (ICNIRP 2009a). Exposure limits, including those in Safety 
Code 6, have been developed to avoid these effects. 

Recent research has focused on determining whether there are any health effects 
associated with exposures to RF energy at levels below those required to induce thermal 
effects, and therefore below established guidelines. Multiple, mostly non-specific 
symptoms have been attributed to low-level exposures, such as headache, fatigue, sleep 
disturbances, and difficulty concentrating. There has also been concern whether there is 
any increased risk of cancer at these exposure levels, although this concern is largely 
related to direct exposures through mobile phone handset use. 

Following a review of the literature in the most recent update of Safety Code 6, Health 
Canada concluded that there is no evidence of negative health effects from exposure to 
low-intensity RF energy (Le. below the threshold required to heat tissue), or any 
evidence of chronic and/or cumulative health risks from RF energy at levels below the 
limits in Safety Code 6 (Health Canada 2009). Health Canada does not provide details of 
the specific methods used to identify and evaluate the literature that was reviewed in 
the development and subsequent updates of Safety Code 6. 

Peel Public Health conducted an additional review ofthe most recent peer-reviewed 
literature, focusing on systematic reviews and meta-analyses. Three recent reviews 
were found 2

, only one of which (Roosli M, et al. 2010) was conducted systematically and 
assessed to be of high quality using the Health Evidence Critical Appraisal Tool 
(published in Dobbins, et al. 2010). 

Roosli, et al. (2010) completed a high quality systematic review and meta-analysis, in 
which the authors reviewed and evaluated the recent literature on the health effects of 
exposure to RF fields from mobile phone base stations. Out of 134 potentially eligible 
articles identified in the initial search, 17 studies meeting strict inclusion and quality 
criteria were included in the review. These were a combination of randomized trials and 
epidemiological studies, and most examined non-specific symptoms. 

1 Most studies reference the International Commission on Non-Ionizing Radiation (ICNIRP) guideline 
(ICNIRP 2009), which is the guideline that has been adopted by most countries outside of North America, 
including most of Europe. Note that the Health Canada guidelines are somewhat more stringent that the 

ICNIRP guideline for some localized tissue exposures, but are the same for whole-body SAR: 0.08 W/kg. 
2 Khurana V, et al. (2010), Roosli M, et al. (2010), and Moulder J, et al. (2005). 
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Based on the data from all ofthe studies considered together, the authors make the 
following conclusions: 

• No single symptom or symptom pattern is found to be consistently related to 
RF energy exposure, even among individuals who identify themselves as 
hypersensitive to electromagnetic fields 

• Some studies using the distance that subjects live from a mobile phone base 
station as a proxy for estimated RF energy exposure did show an association 
with reported symptoms, but the association was rarely present in studies 
using objective measurements of RF energy exposure with local or personal 
energy meters 

• There is no evidence of a negative effect on cognitive function with base 
station exposure 

• Research investigating the association between RF energy and cancer is 
limited, but to date there is no evidence of genetic effects (chromosomal 
aberrations, DNA damage) or an increase in overall cancer risk with RF 
exposure. 

Electromagnetic Hypersensitivity Syndrome 
Electromagnetic hypersensitivity Syndrome (EHS) is characterized by a variety of non­
specific symptoms, which affected individuals attribute to electromagnetic field 
exposure. The most frequent symptoms include non-specific symptoms such as fatigue, 
concentration difficulties, nausea, heart palpitations, digestive disturbances, tingling, 
rashes, and muscle aches. EHS is part of a group of similar syndromes for which there is 
no known toxicological or phYSiological basis, collectively referred to as Idiopathic 
Environmental Intolerance (lEi). 

The World Health Organization (WHO) convened a workshop on EHS on 2004 as part of 
the WHO International Electromagnetic Field (EMF) Project in order to conduct a 
thorough review of the scientific evidence to determine if there is a relationship 
between EMF exposure and reported symptoms, and what further research is necessary 
to fill any gaps in knowledge. The group reported that the majority of studies show that 
affected individuals do not seem to be able to detect EMF fields more accurately than 
unaffected individuals, and large well-controlled double-blind studies have shown that 
symptoms in affected individuals do not seem to be related to EMF exposure. While the 
symptoms experienced by affected individuals are certainly real, and can be debilitating, 
there is no scientific basis to connect them to EMF exposure. (WHO 2006) 

International Agency for Research on Cancer (IARC) classification 
The World Health Organization/International Agency for Research on Cancer (IARC) 
provides government authorities with expert, independent, scientific opinion on 
environmental exposures that may increase the risk of cancer. An interdisciplinary 
working group of expert scientists reviews and evaluates all ofthe published studies on 
a particular agent in humans and animals, including laboratory studies, and the agent is 
classified in terms of its potential carcinogenicity based on a weight of evidence 
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approach.IARC categories refer only to the strength of evidence that an exposure is 
carcinogenic and not to the extent of an agent's carcinogenic activity or potency. 

In 2011, IARC classified RF electromagnetic fields as "possibly carcinogenic to humans" 
(Group 2B), based on an increased risk of glioma, a type of malignant brain tumour, 
associated with mobile phone handset use in the heaviest phone users in one large 
study examining mobile phone handset use (INTERPHONE Study Group 2010), and 
which did not include base station exposures. It is important to note that the evidence 
overall was assessed by IARC to be "limited" among all users of mobile phones (i.e. not 
just the heaviest users), and that the evidence from environmental or occupational 
exposures (i.e. generalized, low-level exposures, such as those from base stations) was 
judged to be "inadequate" to draw conclusions (See Table 1 for IARC classifications and 
definitions). Many common exposures, including caffeine and medications such as 
phenytoin (an anticseizure medication) and oxazepam (an anti-anxiety medication), have 
been classified in this group. (IARC 2011a, IARC 2011b) 

Table 1. International Agency for Research on Cancer (I ARC) categories of overall 
carcinogenicity of exposures. 

IARCGroup Description3 

Group 1 The agent is carcinogenic to humans 

Group 2A The agent is probably carcinogenic to humans 

Group 2B The agent is possibly carcinogenic to humans 

Group 3 The agent is not classifiable as to its carcinogenicity to humans. 

Group 4 The agent is probably not carcinogenic to humans 

International Consensus 
Health Canada's exposure limits in Safety Code 6 are similar to those established by 
other international and national scientific and regulatory bodies. The following scientific 
and regulatory bodies have published statements on the health effects of RF energy: 

Table 2. Summary statements from international and national scientific and 
regulatory bodies on the health effects of RF energy from mobile phone base 
stations. 

Agency Summary Statement 

Health Canada, Safety Code 6 "Based on scientific evidence, Health Canada 

(2010) has determined that exposure to low-level 
radiofrequency energy, such as that from Wi-Fi 
equipment, is not dangerous to the public." 

US Food and Drug "Although research is ongoing, the Food and 

Administration, Consumer Drug Administration (FDA) says that available 

3 Full descriptions of the IARC groups can be found in the IARC Preamble (IARC 2006). 
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Update (2010) ,. sCientific evidence ... shows no increased health 
risk due to radiofrequency (RF) energy" 
(mobile phones only) 

UK Health Protection Agency, "In summary, although a substantial amount of 
Independent Advisory Group on research has been conducted in this area, 
Non-Ionizing Radiation (2012) there is no convincing evidence that RF field 

exposure below guideline levels causes health 
effects in adults or children." 

World Health Organization, Fact "Considering the very low exposure levels and 
Sheet 304 (2006) research results collected to date, there is no 

convincing scientific evidence that the weak RF 
signals from base stations and wireless 
networks cause adverse health effects." 

International Commission on "Epidemiological data on possible health 
Non-Ionizing Radiation effects of chronic, low-level, whole-body 
Protection (ICNIRP), Statement exposure in the far-field of radiofrequency (RF) 
on "Guidelines for Limiting transmitters are poor, especially because of 
Exposure to Time-Varying lack of satisfactory individual exposure 
Electric, Magnetic, and assessment. The few studies with adequate 
Electromagnetic Fields (up to exposure assessment did not reveal any 
300GHz)" (200gb) health-related effects." 

The World Health Organization has established the International Electromagnetic Field 
(EMF) Project, mentioned earlier, in order to provide a coordinated international 
response to concerns about potential health effects of exposure to electromagnetic 
fields, including radiofrequency energy. This group, among the others mentioned in this 
report, will continue to monitor the scientific literature and provide advice about 
possible hazards. 

Radiofrequency Energy and the Precautionary Principle 
The precautionary principle arose out of modern environmental policy, and has also 
been used in public health policy. It states that complete evidence of harm is not 
required before taking action to mitigate the effects of a potential risk. 

Application of the precautionary principle is not straightforward. The appropriateness of 
applying it to public health risks increases as more of the following criteria are met: the 
exposure or harm is widespread, the incidence of the harm (Le. observed health effect) 
is increasing and otherwise unexplained, the suspected harm associated with the risk is 

serious, the suspected harm associated with exposure is not easily reversible or 
treatable, economic or social costs of removing the exposure are small relative to the 
suspected risk, the health costs of removing the exposure are minimal, and when there 
are known health, economic, or social harms associated with the exposure, in addition 
to the new suspected harm (Weir et ai, 2010). 
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There is no evidence in the scientific literature at this time to suggest that there are any 
negative health effects associated with exposure to radiofrequency energy from mobile 
phone base stations. Although this exposure is widespread, there is no evidence of 
potential harm and it would not be appropriate to apply the precautionary principle in 
this case. 

Summary and Conclusions 

Safety Code 6, "Limits of Human Exposure to Radiofrequency Electromagnetic Fields in 
the Frequency Range from 3 kHz to 300 GHz," is a guideline for exposure to 
radiofrequency fields prepared by Health Canada, and adopted by Industry Canada in 

the regulation on telecommunications equipment, including mobile phone base 
stations, to for the purpose of protecting the health of the general public. These 
guidelines are similar to those used in the US and internationally. 

Several recent extensive reviews of the scientific literature by national and international 
scientific and regulatory bodies have all concluded that there is no evidence of any 
negative health effects associated with radiofrequency energy from mobile phone base 
stations. Peel Public Health will continue to monitor this area of research and provide 
updates as necessary. 

Prepared by: 

Dr. David Mowat, Medical Officer of Health, Region of Peel 
Dr. Kate Bingham, Senior Medical Resident, Public Health and Preventive Medicine, 

University of Toronto 
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Dr. David Mowat 
Medical Officer of Health 
Peel Public Health 
7120 Hurontario Street 
P.O. Box 630 
Mississauga, Ontario 
L5M2CS 

Dear Dr. Mowat: 

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR 

February 24,2012 

Re: Cell Towers - Health Concerns 

The Council of the Corporation of the City of Mississauga at its meeting on February 22, 
2012, adopted the enclosed Resolution 0036-2012 with respect to the Health Canada report on 
wU'eless device issues and Limits of Human Exposure to Radiofl'equency Electromagnetic 
Energy in the Frequency Range from 3kHz to 300 GHz. 

Employees have been contacting City Council with respect to their concerns that the 
placement of cell towers on City properties may cause short or long term health concerns to all 
City staff. 

On behalf of the members of Council, I request you to read the report by Health Canada 
that I have enclosed and provide your comments. I look forward to your favourable reply. 

cc: 

Ene. 

Members of Council 
Federation of Canadian Municipalities 
Carol Reid, Regional Clerk 

EL McCALLION, C.M., LL.D. 
MAYOR 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF MISSISSAUGA 
300 CITY CENTRE DRIVE. MISSISSAUGA, ON L5B 3C1 

TEL: 905'696-5555 FAX: 905-896-5879 
mayor@misslssauga,ca 



M/SS/SSAUGA 

RESOLUTION 0036-2012 
adopted by the Council of 

The Corporation of the City of Mississauga 
at its meeting on February 22, 2012 

I-s~\ 

0036-2012 Moved by: Pat Saito Seconded by: Katie Mahoney 

That the report from Federal Health Canada on Cell Towers from the Minister of Health 

from the Federal Government be received and distributed to all City of Mississauga 

unions' Health and Safety Committees, Ratepayers Associations, the Region of Peel for 

comments and the Medical Officer of Health, for his comment.. 

Page 1 of! 
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COUNCIL AGENDA 

MAY 2 32012 

To the City Clerk, 

This is to notify you that Waterfront Records Inc, in association with Fairhart 
Productions Inc has applied for a permit to run a festival in Memorial Park on July 
28, 2012. From 12pm - 11 pm. Adam Clidero of Waterfront Records is the main 
applicant; Jim Fairhart of Fairhart Productions is a secondary applicant providing 
production expertise for the festival. 

We have been dreaming about this idea for quite some time and as of the current 
events that have transpired in the last year, the time to implement this idea is 
now. My Father was diagnosed with Colon Cancer last spring and between the 
Blood Transfusions, Colon operation and Chemotherapy, was successful in 
removing the Cancer and reattaching the Colon. The spread that moved to his 
liver was followed in a second operation, but thankfully due to the fact that 
Chemo had reduced the Cancer on the Liver to 25%, not much of the Liver had 
to be removed. (Fortunately the liver does grow back) Since I lost my Mother to 
Cancer about 18yrs ago; Cancer seerlls to be in tlly fanliiy. Not to fllention how 
many fellow Mississaugians can relate with a story of their own. We have now 
developed a relationship with The Canadian Cancer Society and have their 
support to endorse our one-day event. The CCS will be our prime benefactor 
receiving a percentage of our net proceeds from the event. 

The Port Credit EMF is an Electronic Music Festival that we have built to bring 
awareness of the massive amount of talent in the Electronic Music Industry that 
lives in the GTA. Our goal is also to educate the various generations about how 
much of an art form this genre truly is. Our mission is to provide a fun filled 
experience of energetic uplifting music for people that love to dance, produce, 
engineer, watch, learn, or just simply enjoy the gifted talents of the people in this 
industry. We have both an amazing lineup OJ's (music programmers) from 
across the city as well as a couple international headliners from Ireland, New 
York, and Montreal. We will also be having live performers on stage with a few 
surprise performances from dance groups such as our stilt performers in the 
park. In addition our event will be sponsored by Metal Works as they will be 
providing an opportunity for up and coming artists as well as tendered 



professionals to learn everything from the basics of pro audio & sound 
engineering, to fine tuning their skill set. The target demographic we are hoping 
to bridge in our community is the 20-40 year old age group of young adults both 
new and present to the 905 areas. These people spend most of their weekends 
at various locations in Toronto. We would like to provide them with a local 
experience that will keep them in town and involved with the community where 
they reside. 

'"ve therefore respectfully request that council designate this a "pubiic event", 
as required by the AGCO, in order that we may serve alcohol in the park in our 
controlled areas under both police and security surveillance. The proceeds from 
our alcohol service as well as our food vendors will be directed to our prime 
benefactor; The Canadian Cancer Society. We have also discussed with the 
CCS setting up both an information booth to bring awareness to cancer as well 
as the effects of smoking to minimize the consumption of smoking during the 
event and first and for most educating that demographic about all the 
developments in cancer research today. As an example, during a prime time 
performance we would like to have a "smoke free hour" in place. The details of 
awareness are in discussion to determine what would be the best fit for achieving 
this goal. 

We thank you for your consideration of our event and look forward to working 
with the city to provide a safe and fun filled day of education, awareness to our 
cause, and of coarse great music and dancing. 

A diagram showing how the park will be setup is included with this proposal. 

Respectfully, 

~~~ RECEIVED 
Adam Clidero REGISTRY No. 
Waterfront Records Inc. TM 

DATE 

fiLE No. 

CLERK'S DEPARTMENT 
o Receive [] Resolution 

rsv6irection Required C Resolution ( By-Law 

o Community Services For 
o Corporate ServIces o Appropriate Action 

o Information 
o Planning & Building o Reply 
o Transportation & Works o Report 
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L ' • Canadian Societe 

-111 Cancer canadienne Ill' ~ Society du cancer 

May 15, 2012 

Adam Clidero 
15 Onaway Rd 
Mississauga, Ontario 
L5G 1A2 

Dear Adam, 

Georgetown Dufferin Peel Unit 

2227 SOllth MiHway, Suite 202 
Mississauga, Ontario 

L5L 3R6 
Tdephone: (905) 608-8411 
Fac~jmile: (905) 608-2266 

I COUNCJJ.AGENDA. i 
HAY 2 2012 ~ 

This letter will serve to confirm that the event "Port Credit Electronic Music Festival" 
being held at Port Credit Memorial Park on Saturday, July 28, 2012 by Adam Clidero 
will be held in part to raise funds and awareness for the Canadian Cancer Society. It 
is understood that 20% of all net proceeds will be donated to the Canadian Cancer 
Society in support of cancer research. 

The Canadian Cancer Society is a national community based organization of 
volunteers whose mission is the eradication of cancer and to support those living 
with cancer. The Society supports this mission through Prevention information, 
Advocacy work, Funding Research on all types of cancer and providing Support 
Services like transportation to our clients. 

The Canadian Cancer Society is grateful for the dedication and commitment of 
individual community members like Adam Clidero. The Canadian Cancer Society will 
support this initiative as outlined in our Community Partnership Agreement. 

Please feel free to contact me should you have any further questions. 

RECEIVED 
REGISTRY No. 

DATE tifA 'Y' 1 5 Z 0 1Z 

FILENo. 

CLERK'S DEPARTMENT 

For informarion about cancer, OUf services or w make a donanon / Pour obtenir de l'informarion sur le cancer, nos services au pour falre un don 
1 888 939-3333 • .WWW.CJncer.ca 

Charit;\blc Orf;~niza[ion No. 118829803 RR0006 
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WHEREAS the use of indoor tanning facilities has a measurable affect on the increase in the 
incidences of skin cancer, specifically Melanoma; 

AND WHEREAS those under the age of 35 who use tanning beds are 75 per cent more likely to 
develop skin cancer, and those who have spent more than 50 hours under artificial UV rays are 
three times more likely to develop the disease; 

AND WHEREAS Melanoma is now the second most common type of cancer in people aged 15-34; 

AND WHEREAS other Canadian jurisdictions such as the province of Nova Scotia and Victoria, 
British Columbia have banned tanning for minors, and the province of British Columbia has 
recently introduced similar legislation and the municipalities of St. Thomas and Sarnia, Ontario 
have introduced by-laws to ban the use of indoor tanning equipment by minors; 

AND WHEREAS a multitude of jurisdictions internationally have banned the use of tanning beds 
for minors, including Texas, California, Belgium, Germany, France, New South Wales, Australia, 
Spain and Portugal 

AND WHEREAS prominent health care organizations and charities, including the Canadian 
Paediatric Society, the Canadian Dermatological Association, the Canadian Medical Association, 
the Canadian Cancer Society and the World Health Organization are all calling for a ban on the use 
of indoor tanning equipment by minors; 

AND WHEREAS artificial tanning equipment is sold and used in the City of Mississauga making 
the matter of indoor tanning an issue of municipal concern; 

AND WHEREAS the Municipal Act, 2001 authorizes municipalities to have broad authority in 
regulating matters with respect to health, safety and well-being of persons, and protection of 
persons and property; 

AND WHEREAS the Municipal Act, 200 I also states that the powers of a muuicipality under the 
Act shall be interpreted broadly so as to confer broad authority on the municipality to enhance the 
municipality's ability to respond to municipal issues; 

AND WHEREAS the City of Mississauga's Compliance and Enforcement Office is already 
conducting a Business Licensing By-law review; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 

I) As part ofthe ongoing review ofthe Business Licensing By-law staff prepare a Corporate 
Report to Council on the feasibility of amending the Business Licensing By-law to prohibit 
minors from using indoor tanning beds or equipment; and 

2) Staff consult with all stakeholders affected by such a by-law. 
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